#21-033

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: The University of Chicago Medical Center

Street Address: 14290 S. LaGrange Road

City and Zip Code: Orland Park 60462-2350

County: Cook Health Service Area: 6 Health Planning Area: A-04

Applicant{s) (Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]
Exact Legal Name:  The University of Chicago Medical Center

Street Address: 5841 S. Maryland Avenue
City and Zip Code: Chicago 60637
Name of Registered Agent: John Satalic

Registered Agent Street Address: 5841 S. Maryland Avenue
Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Chicago 60637

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Thomas Jackiewicz
CEOQ Street Address: 5841 S. Maryland Avenue
CEQ City and Zip Code: Chicago 60637
CEO Telephone Number: {(773) 702-6240
Type of Ownership of Applicants
| Non-profit Corporation | Partnership
O For-profit Corporation O Governmental
| Limited Liability Company [l Sole Proprietorship O
Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lilinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name
and address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Joe Qurth

Title: Partner

Company Name: Saul Ewing Arnstein & Lehr LLP

Address: 161 N. Clark Street, Site 4200, Chicago, IL 60601
Telephone Number: {312) 876-7815

E-mail Address: joe.ourth@saul.com

Fax Number: (312) 8766215

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]
Name:

Title:

Company Name:
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Address:

Telephone Number:

E-mail Address:

Fax Number:
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#21-033

Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE
EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960]

Name: Phillip L. Kaufman, CPA

Title: Vice President — Finance Shared Services
Company Name: The University of Chicago Medical Center
Address: 9841 8. Maryland Avenue, Chicago, IL 60637
Telephone Number: (773) 702-8184

E-mail Address: phillipkaufman@uchospitals.edu

Fax Number: (773) 702-8184

Site Ownership

Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: The University of Chicago Medical Center
Address of Site Owner: 5841 S. Maryland Avenue, Chicago, IL 60637

Street Address or Legal Description of the Site:
Proof of ownarship or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of
ownership are property tax statements, tax assessor’s documentation, deed, notarized statement of the

corporation attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease, or a lease.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Operating Identity/Licensee
Provide this information for each applicable facility and insert after this page.]
Exact Legal Name: The University of Chicago Medical Center

Address: 5841 S. Maryland Avenue, Chicago, IL 60637

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership

1 For-profit Corporation 1 Governmental

] Limited Liability Company 1 Sole Proprietorship ]
Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an llincis Certificate of Good
Standing.

© Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address
of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the %
of ownership.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person
or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). if the refated person or entity is participating in
the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
financial contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM,
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Flood Plain Requirements
Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-
5 pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of
the flood plain requirements, please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any
identified  floodplain  areas. Floodplain maps can beprinted at www.FEMA.gov or
www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a readable format. In addition, please provide a
statement attesting that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5
(http://www.hfsrb.illincis.gov). NOTE: A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-
YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION FORM has been added at the conclusion of

this Application for Permit that must be completed to deem a project complete.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 6. IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.20 and Part 1120.20(b)

Part 1110 Classification :

O Substantive

[ Non-substantive

39103865.5
. Page 5



#21-033

2. Narrative Description

In the space below, provide a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in
State Board defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street
address, include a legal description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's
classification as substantive or non-substantive.

On August 27, 2014, the University of Chicago Medical Center (*“UCMC” or the “Medical
Center”) received Permit #14-023 from the Iilinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board
(“IHFSRB” or the “Review Board”) to move forward with the construction of a four-story
ambulatory medical office building in downtown Orland Park. The fourth floor was reserved as
shell space. On June 4, 2019, UCMC received Permit #19-013 from the Review Board to move
forward with a Mammography Services Joint Venture to develop and jointly operate a dedicated
Mammography Suite with Solis Mammography in a portion of this shell space on the fourth floor.

UCMC now seeks authority from the Review Board to build out the remainder of this shell
space on the fourth floor, to reconfigure existing space on the second and third floors of the Orland
Park medical office building, and to expand diagnostic imaging (the “Project”).

Specifically, UCMC proposes to complete the build out of the fourth floor of the Orland
Park MOB with 18 multi-specialty exams rooms (17 net new multi-specialty exam rooms and 1
relocated exam room), a procedure suite with two rooms equipped for GI endoscopy, colonoscopy
and other similar office-based procedures, and dedicated space for cardiac and vascular imaging.
Additionally, UCMC proposes to expand diagnostic imaging with one (1) additional MRI and one
(1) PET scan in the existing diagnostic imaging suite on the second floor.

The purpose of the Project is to expand access to multi-specialty outpatient care, high-
quality cancer screening and diagnostic imaging, for which there is increased demand and a
continued disparate distribution of resources in the communities that UCMC serves.

The build out would consist of 22,759 DGSF (23,100 BGSF) for both clinical and non-
clinical space. The total project cost is expected to be $18530,768 and will be funded with cash
and securities. The Project is expected to be completed by May 31, 2023.

Pursuant to 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1120.20(b), the Project is classified as “Non-Substantive”
because it will not establish a new facility on a new site, establish or discontinue a category of
service, or propose a change in bed capacity.

39103869.5
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a
project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must be
equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS REVIEWABLE NONREVIEWABLE TOTAL

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil Investigation

Site Preparation $485,440 $43,120 $528,560
Off Site Work

New Construction Contracts 3,154,286 1,494,615 4,648,901
Modemization Contracts 1,550,300 481,043 2,031,343
Contingencies 475,927 192,097 668,024
Architectural/Engineering Fees 404,246 189,071 573,400
Consuiting and Other Fees 475,929 189,071 665,000
Movable or Other Equipment (hot in construction

contracts) 6,799,787 574,063 7,373,850

Bond Issuance Expense {project related)

Net Interest Expense During Construction {(project

related) 599,410 183,280 782,690

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment

Other Costs to Be Capitalized 855,728 403,272 1,259,000

Acquisition of Building or Other Property {excluding

land}

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $14,801,053 $3,729,715 $18,530,768
SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Cash and Securities $14,801,053 $3,729,715 $18,530,768

Pledges

Gifts and Bequests

Bond Issues (project related)

Mortgages

Leases (fair market value)

Governmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $14,801,053 $3,729,715 $18,530,768

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER
THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

39103869.5
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Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that will
be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project ] Yes 1 No
Purchase Price: § N/A
Fair Market Value: $ N/A

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service

] Yes X No
If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the
target utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $ N/A

Project Status and Completion Schedules

For facilities in which prior permits have been issued please provide the permit numbers.

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:
[] None or not applicable D] Preliminary
{ 1 Schematics [] Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): May 31,
2023

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to financial commitments (refer
to Part 1130.140):

[J Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been
executed. [] Financial commitment is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a
copy of the contingent “certification of financial commitment” document, highlighting
any language related to CON Contingencies

[] Financial Commitment will occur after permit issuance.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

State Agency Submittals [Section 1130.620(c)]

Are the following submittals up to date as applicable?
D4 Cancer Registry
B> APORS
X1 All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports
been submitted
X All reports regarding outstanding permits

39103869.5
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L Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for
__permit being deemed incomplete.

39103869.5
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Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the Departmental Gross Square Feet (DGSF) or the Building Gross
Square Feet (BGSF) and cost. The type of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified.
The sum of the department costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is
being reallocated for a different purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department’s or
area’s portion of the surrounding circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Not Reviewable Space [i.e. non-clinical]: means an area for the benefit of the patients, visitors, staff or smployees of a health care
facility and not directly related to the diagnosis, treatment, or rehabilitation of persons receiving services from the health care
faciiity. "Non-clinical service areas” include, but are not limited to, chapels; gift shops; newsstands; computer systems; funnels,
walkways, and elevators; telephone systems; projects to comply with life safely codes; educational faciliies; student housing; patient,
employes, staff, and visitor dining aress; administration and volunteer offices; modernization of structural components (such as roof
replacement and masonry work); boiler repair or replacement; vehicle maintenance and storage facilities; parking facilities; mechanical
systems for heating, ventilation, and air conditioning; loading docks; and repair or replacemnant of carpeting, tile, wall coverings, window
coverings or freatments, or furniture. Solely for the purpose of this definition, "non-clinical service area” does not include health and
fitness centers. [20 ILCS 3960/3)

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet
That Is:

Modernized

Gross Square Feet

Dept. / Area Vacated

New

Const. Asls

Cost Existing | Proposed

Space

EVIEWA_B_LE
Medical Surgical

Intensive Care

Diagnostic

Radiology
MRI i

Total Clinical

| NON-

| REVIEWABLE
Administrative

Parking

_Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical
TOTAL

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 9. IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM.

39103869.5
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Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

#21-033

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of the
project and insert the chart after this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which data is available. Include observation days in the patient day totals
for each bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the application being

deemed incomplete.

FACILITY NAME: The University of Chicago Medical | CITY: Chicago
Center
REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: 9/1/2020 to: 8/31/2021
Category of Service Authorized | Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed
Beds* Changes Beds
Medical/Surgical L 19,518 148,447 - 481
Obstetrics 46 2,906 5,849 - 46
Pediatrics 60 2,780 15,755 - 60
Intensive Care ki 6,170 38,845 - 142
Comprehensive Physical - - - 5 -
Rehabilitation
Acute/Chronic Mental lliness ) } ) j :
Neonatal Intensive Care ) 871 16,208 - 53
General Long-Term Care ) ) ) - -
Specialized Long-Term Care } i ) - -
Long Term Acute Care ) ) - - -
Other ((identify) " - s - -
TOTALS: 782 32,245 225,134 - 782

* Authorized bed information based on Alteration of Project #16-008 The University of Chicago Medical Center,
approved on September 16, 2021

39103869.5
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CERTIFICATION

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist),

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application is filed on the behalf of The University of Chicago Medical Center*

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this Application on
behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and information
provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this application is
sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

) s Xeder

Thomas Jafdkiewiaz

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

UL ML Presidentt DS\ YIS o)
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me Subscribfd and sworn to before me
this 2 /%*day of (ic aben 2921 this 2/%” day of d@ﬁ, ber 2021

éature of Notary ‘Srﬁgﬁature of Notary

Seaf BONITA ESCOBEDO ALCANTAR Seal BONITA ESCOBEDO ALCANTAR
OFFICIAL SEAL OFFICIAL SEAL
Notary Public - State of lllinois
______ W slicant My Commission Expires Oct 30, 2023
39103869.2
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SECTION HIl. BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs.

1110.110(a) - Background of the Applicant

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including ficensing, and certification
if applicable.

2. Alisting of all health care facilities currently owned and/or operated in lllinois, by any corporate officers or
directors, LI.C members, pariners, or owners of at least 5% of the proposed health care facility.

3. For the following questions, please provide information for each applicant, including corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners and owners of at least 5% of the proposed facility. A health care facility
is considered owned or operated by every person or entity that owns, directly or indirectly, an ownership
interest.

a. A certified lisling of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the
applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

b. A certified listing of each applicant, identifying those individuals that have been cited, arrested,
taken into custody, charged with, indicted, convicted or tried for, or pled guilty to the commission
of any felony or misdemeanor or violation of the law, except for mincr parking violations; or the
subject of any juvenile delinquency or youthful offender proceeding. Unless expunged, provide
details aboul the conviction and submit any police or court records regarding any matters
disclosed.

¢. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant or person charged with fraudulent conduct or any
act involving moral turpitude.

d. A certified listing of each applicant with one or more unsatisfied judgements against him or her.

e. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant who is in default in the performance or discharge
of any duty or obligation imposed by a judgment, decree, order or directive of any cour or
govemmental agency.

4. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Fallure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

5. W, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest that the information was previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and cerlify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant can submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.

39103869.5
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Criterion 1110.110(b) & (d)

"PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other relevant area, per the applicant's definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed as applicable and appropriate for the
project.

4. Cite the sources of the documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurabie objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded, if any. For facility projects, include
statements of the age and condition of the project sile, as well as regulatory citations, if any. For equipment being
replacad, include repair and maintenance records.

NOTE: Information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” will be included in the State Board Staff Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
| PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-8) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12.

ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL the alternatives to the proposed project;

Alternative options must include:

A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B} Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities fo meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion
of the population proposed to be served by the project; and

D} Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.,

2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to altemative options. The
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial benefits in
both the short-term (within one to three years after project completion) and long-term. This
may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED, THE TOTAL
PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST
BE PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidencs, including quantified outcome data that verifies
improved quality of care, as available.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

19103869.5
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SECTION IV. PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.120 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:
SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative and it shall include the basis used for determining the space
and the methodology applied.

2. Ifthe gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following:

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational |
needs, as supported by published data or studies and certified by the facility's Medical Director.

b. The existing facility'’s physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that delineates the constraints or impediments.

¢. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

d. Additional space is mandated by govemmentat or certification agency requirements that were not
in existence when Appendix B standards were adopted.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the |
following format with Attachment 14,

[ - SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE | PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION: )

This criterion Is applicable only to projects or portlons of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB hasg established utilization standards or occupancy targets In 77 lil. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annuai utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

a _UTILIZATION
DEPT/ | HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MEET
| SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
- (PATIENT DAYS) |
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.

39103869.5
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APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 15, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE:
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage (GSF) of the proposed shell space.

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF to be allocated to each
department, area or function.

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to:
a. Requirements of governmentat or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data is available;
and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of
future utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be
placed into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM,

ASSURANCES:
. Submit the following:
1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
shell space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service
involved.

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 17, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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M. Criterion 1110.270 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than
categories of service must submit the following information:

2. Indicate changes by Service: Indicate # of key room changes by action(s):
# Existing # Proposed
Service Key Rooms Key Rooms
Imaging
MRI 1 2
PET 0 1
Clinic Exam Rooms 3 20
Minor Procedure Rooms 0 3
Mobile Cardiac Imaging Room 0 1
Stress Echo Testing Room 2 1
Vascular Testing Room 1 1
3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required documentation
for the criteria:
Project Type Required Review Criteria
New Services or Facility or Equipment (b) — Need Determination — Establishment
Service Modernization (c)(1) — Deteriorated Facilities

AND/CR

(c)}(2) - Necessary Expansion
PLUS

" (c)(3)A) ~ Utilization - Major Medical Equipment

OR

[ (c)(3)(B) - Utitization - Service or Facility

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATFACHMENT 30, iIN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

39103869.5
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteaing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18-month period prior to the submittal of the application):

+ Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria
» Saection 1120.130 Financlal Viability - Review Criteria
« Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility — Review Criteria, subsection {a)

VI. 1120.120 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable [Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources]:

39103869.5
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$18,530,768_| a) Cash and Securities - statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters
from financial institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project,
including the identification of any security, its value and
availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be
earned on any asset from the date of applicant's submission
through project completion;

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges
showing anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated timetable of
gross receipts and related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past
fundraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any
conditions of use, and the estimated timetable of receipts;

d) Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt
time period, variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time period,
and the anticipated repayment schedule) for any interim and for the
permanent financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the
required referendum or evidence that the governmental unit
has the authority to issue the bonds and evidence of the
dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting
anticipated;

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the
specified amount and interest rate;

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting
to the expectation of making the loan in the amount and
time indicated, including the anticipated interest rate and
any conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but
not limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments,
etc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms
and conditions, including any purchase options, any capital
improvements to the property and provisicn of capital
equipment;

5) For any option to iease, a copy of the option, including all
terms and conditions.

e) Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance

accompanied by a statement of funding availability from an official of the

governmental unit. If funds are to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, a

copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental unit attesting to this intent;

f) Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in
terms of the amount and time of receipt;

39103869.5
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a) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any
other funds that will be used for the project.

$18,530,768

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 33, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF
THE APPLICATION FORM.

39103869.5
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SECTION Vil. 1120.130 - FINANCIAL VIABILITY - NOT APPLICABLE

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. “A” Bond rating or better

2. All the project’s capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

3. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to
be insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

4. The applicant provides a third-party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an
A rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 34, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE |
APPLICATION FORM.

| The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall
| provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available
' and for the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project
completion. When the applicant's facility does not have facility specific financiat statements and the
i facility is a member of a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the
i system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the
system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospitai standards.

Historical Projected
3 Years
Enter Historical andfor Projected
Years:
Current Ratio
Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand
Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the !
calculation and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a
separate table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another
organization, public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt
obligations should the applicant defauit.

| APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 35, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
i APPLICATION FORM.

]
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SECTION VIil.1120.140 - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by

submitting a notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to
one of the following:

1)

2)

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total
with cash and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds,
received pledge receipts and funded depreciation; or

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total
or in part by borrowing because:

A) A portion or all the cash and equivalents must be retained in the
balance sheet asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at
least 2.0 times for hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments,
and the existing investments being retained may be converted to cash
or used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant
shall document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the
following, as applicable:

1)

2)

3)

That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net
cost available;

That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost
available, but is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment
privileges, no required mortgage, access to additional indebtedness, term
(years), financing costs and other factors;

That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or
facilities and that the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are
less costly than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

1.

Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page).

39103869.5
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COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B C D E F G H
Department Total
{list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. § Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. | New Circ.* | Mod. Circ* | (AxC) (BxE) (G+H)
Contingency
TOTALS
* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

D. Projected Operating Costs

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no

more than two years following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs
of salaries, benefits and supptlies for the service.

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs {in current doltars per

equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two
years following project completion.

APPLICATION FORM.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 38, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

39103869.5
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SECTION IX. SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describas all the following must be submitted for ALL
SUBSTANTIVE PROJECTS AND PROJECTS TO DISCONTINUE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES [20 ILCS
3960/5.4]:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, including
the impact on racial and heaith care disparities in the community, to the extent that it is feasible
for an applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project’s impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety
net services, if reasonably known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a
given community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care
provided by the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the
reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the lllinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital
applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified
by the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to
Medicaid patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner
consistent with the information reported each year to the llinois Department of Public Health regarding
“Inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source” and "inpatient and Outpatient Net Revenue by
Payor Source" as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual
Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including
information regarding teaching, research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 37.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
Charity {cost in dollars)
npatient
Qutpatient
Total
MEDICAID
39103869.5
= - Page 25 — : _
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l_ Medicaid (# of patients) | Year Year Year T
Inpatient
Outpatient

Total
Medicaid {(revenue)

Inpatient

__Outpatient

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 37, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

39103869.5
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SECTION X. CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects [1120.20(c)].

1.

All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three
audited fiscal years, the cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient
revenue.

If the applicant owns or operates one or mare facilities, the reporting shall be for each

individual facility located in Hinois. If charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis,
the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity care; the ratio of that charity
care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of charity
care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

Iif the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by
payer source, anticipated charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient
revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care" means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not
expect to receive payment from the patient or a third-party payer (20 ILCS 3960/3). Charity Care
must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 39.

CHARITY CARE
Year I Yeoar Year

Net Patient Revenue
Amount of Charity Care (charges]
Cost of Charlty Care

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 38, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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Section I, Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant
Attachment 1

The University of Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC”) is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation. A
copy of UCMC’s Good Standing Certificate is attached.

ATTACHMENT 1

191409307
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File Number 5439-757-7

o

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON OCTOBER 01, 1986, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 25TH
day of OCTOBER A.D. 2021

A e
.
Authentication #: 2129803016 verifiable until 10/25/2022 M

Authenticate at: hitp:/fwww.llsos.gov

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT \
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Section I, Site Ownership
Attachment 2

Attached is a certification of the Applicants relating to control of the site.

ATTACHMENT 2

1405307
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AT THE FOREFRONT

UChicago
Maedicine

Attestation of Site Control

I hereby attest that The University of Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC) has “site
control,” as that term is used in Review Board regulations over the Project site located at 14290
S. LaGrange Road in Orland Park, IL 60462-2350. UCMC is the owner the 110,500 gross square
foot, four-story ambulatory care medical office building, in which the Project will occur. The
Village of Orland Park is the landlord of the ground lease on which the medical office building
was built and UCMC is the tenant in the ground lease with the landlord.

Dated: __1{/} / 4 Bl
Carla Gazes
Senior Associate General Counsel
The University of Chicago Medical Center

ATTACHMENT 2}
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Ground Lease

Village of Orland Park and University of Chicago Medical Center

Main Street Triangle:

Approximately 27-acre area located (at the northwest corner of 143rd Street and LaGrange Road in the
Village of Orland Park, Illinois that is owned or controlled by the Village of Orland Park for the purposes
of promoting mixed-use retail, commercial and residential development.

Premises:
3.48 acres* located within the Main Street Triangle at the northwest corner of LaGrange Road and 143rd
Street. Please see Exhibit A for a legal description of the Premises.

Tenant:
The University of Chicago Medical Center

Ground Lease Term:

The Ground Lease Term began on September 1, 2015, and the Term shall continue until, and expire at,
11:59 pm, Central Standard or Daylight Savings Time on the 25" anniversary of the Landlord’s issuance
of a final occupancy permit for Tenant’s improvements on the Premises.

Conveyance of Premises to Tenant: On the date of payment in full of all amounts of Rent due under the
Ground Lease, Landlord shall convey Premises to Tenant by special warranty deed transferring absolute
title to the Tenant.

Permitted Use: Tenant shall use the Premises for an ambulatory care center (but not to include hospital or
emergency room), medical office, back room and support services, and related motor vehicle parking.

Annual Rent: On the basis that the Premises is exempt from assessment and levy of real estate taxes,
Tenant shall pay to Landlord as rent the following ground rental rate for the Premises according to the
following schedule:

Years 1-15:  $770,000 per year
Years 16-25:  $750,000 in year 16 and reduced by $20,000 annually through year 25.

ATTACHMENT 2
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Exbibit A
Legal Deseription of the Land
UCMC PARCEL DESCRIPTION:

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH,
RANGE 12, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED A8 FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT A POINT 50 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION
4 AND 275 FEET WEST OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 4; THENCE NORTH 01
DEGREBS 34 MINUTES 53 SECONDS WEST, ALONG A LINE 275,00 FEET WEST OF
AND PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER: THENCE
NORTH 01 DEGREES 3¢ MINUTES 53 SECONDS WEST, 7.00 FCET TO A POINT ON A
LINE 57.00 FEET NORTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID
SECTION 4, ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE SOUTH 87 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 26 SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID
PARALLEL LINE, 39.94 FEET; THENCE NORTH 48 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 03
SECONDS WEST, 2044 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 353
SECONDS WEST, ALONG A LINE PARALLEL TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID
SOUTHEAST QUARTER, 431.79 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 07
SECONDS EAST, PERPENDICULAR TOQ THE LAST COURSE, 15243 FECT; THENCE
SOUTH 01 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 53 SECONDS EAST, ALONG A LINE PARALLEL TO
THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER, 10.50 FECT; THENCE NORTH 88
DEGREES 25 MINUTES 07 SECONDS BAST, PERPENDICULAR TO THE LAST COURSE,
77.52 FEET TO A POINT ON A LINE 60.00 FEET WEST OF AND PARALLEL WiTH THE
EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION, SAID LINE ALSO BEING A WEST LINE OF PROPERTY
CONVEYED IN WARRANTY DEED RECORDED AS DOCUMENT 0021061786; THENCE
SOUTHERLY, SOUTHWESTBRLY AND WESTERLY ALONG WESTERLY,
NORTHWESTERLY AND NORTHERLY LINES OF SAID WARRANTY DEED FOR THE
NEXT THREE COURSES (1) THENCE SOUTH 01 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 53 SECONDS
EAST, ALONG SAID LAST DESCRIBED LINE, 40627 FEET; (2) THENCE SQUTH 43
DEGREES 12 MINUTES 17 SECONDS WEST, 3833 FEET; (3) THENCE SOUTH 87
DBEGRREES 59 MINUTES 26 SECONDS WEST, 13801 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

TO BE KNOWN AS:
LOT 4 IN MAIN STREET TRIANGLE PHASE 2, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE

SOLTHEAST QUARTER OF SECT(ON 4, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 12, EAST OF
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

ATTACHMENT 2
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Section I, Operating Identity/Licensee
Attachment 3

The University of Chicago Medical Center is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation.

ATTACHMENT 3
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Section I, Organizational Relationships
Attachment 4

A copy of The University of Chicago Medical Center organizational chart is attached.

ATTACHMENT 4
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AT THE FOREFRONT

UChicago
Medicine

System Structure

University of
Chicago Medical

UCM Care
Network, LLC
|
UCM Care UCM Care
Network Network UCMCN
Medical Affiliated ACO, LLC
Group Physicians
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Community Health
and Hospital
Division

l
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Section ], Flood Plain Requirement

Attachment 5

Attestation that the site of the Project is not located in a flood plain and that the Project complies
with the Flood Plain Rules under Illinois Executive Order #2005-5 is attached.

ATTACHMENT 5§
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SECTION XI -SPECIAL FL.LOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION FORM

In accordance with Executive Order 2006-5 (EO 5), the Health Facilities & Services Review Board (HFSRB) must
determine if the site of the CRITICAL FACILITY, as defined in EO 5, is located in a mapped floodplain (Special Flood
Hazard Area) or a 500-year floodplain. All state agencies are required to ensure that before a permit, grant or a
development is planned or promoted, the proposed project meets the requirements of the Executive Order, including
compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and state floodplain regulation.

1. Applicant: University of Chicago Medical Center, 5841 S. Maryland Avenue

(Name) (Address)
Chicago IL 60837
(City) {State) (ZIP Code) (Telephone Number)
2. Project Location: 14290 S. LaGrange Road, Orland Park, IL
(Address) (City) (State)
Cook Orland
{County) (Township) (Section)

3. You can create a small map of your site showing the FEMA floodplain mapping using the FEMA Map Service
Center website (https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home) by entering the address for the property in the Search bar. If
a map, like that shown on page 2 is shown, select the Go To NFHL Viewer tab above the map. You can print a

2l
copy of the floodplain map by selecting the icon in the top corner of the page. Select the pin tool icon ¢
and place a pin on your site. Print a FIRMETTE size image.

If there is no digital flocdplain map available select the View/Print FIRM icon above the aerial photo. You will
then need to use the Zoom tools provided to locate the property on the map and use the Make a FIRMette tool
to create a pdf of the floodplain map.

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA: Yes___ No _X_

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN THE 500-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN? No

if you are unable to determine if the site is in the mapped floodplain or 500-year floodplain, contact the county or the
local community building or planning department for assistance.
If the determination is being made by a local official, please complete the following:

FIRM Panel Number: Effective Date:
Name of Official: Title:
Business/Agency: Address:
(City) (State) (ZIP Code) (Telephone Number)
Signature: ) Date:

NOTE: This finding only means that the property in question is or is not in a Special Flood Hazard Area or a 500-year
floodplain as designated on the map noted above. It does not constitute a guarantee that the property will or will not be
flooded or he subject to local drainage problems.

If you need additional help, contact the lllinois Statewide Floodplain Program at 217/782-4428

39103869.5 ATTACHMENT 5‘
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FEMA Flood Map Service Center: Search By
Address

Enter an address, place, or coordinates: §

14290 S. Lagrange Road, Orland Park 60462-2350 | Search

Whether you are in a high risk zone or not, you may need

insurance-program) because most homeowners insurance doesn't cover flood darnage IF you lrve in an area
with low or moderate flood risk, you are 5 times maore likely 1o experience flood than a fire in your home over the
next 30 years. For many, a National Flood Insurance Program's flood insurance policy could cost less than $400
per year. Call your insurance agent today and protect what you've built.

Learn more about sleps you can take (hitps//www fema goviwhat-mitigation) to reduce flood risk damage,

Search Results—Products for ORLAND PARK, VILLAGE  show ALL Products » (https:
OF
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Section 1, Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
Attachment 6

Attached is a letter from the Illinois Department of Natural Resources noting that no historic,
architectural or archaeological sites exists within the Project area.

ATTACHMENT 6
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; Illinois Department of
| Natural Resources T
| Ons Natural Resources Way  Springfield, llinois 62702-127) ‘Whye A. Roseniba), Director

FAX (217) 524-7525
Cook County
Orland Park '
Rehabilitation to Establish a Mammography Facility, University of Chicago Medicine Center
14290 S. LaGrange Road .
SHPO Log 1037060418

July 12, 2018

John R. Beberman

The University of Chicago Hospitals
14216 §. Meadowview

Orland Park, IL, 60462-2350

Dear Mr, Beberman;

This letter is lo inform you that we have reviewed the information provided concerning the referenced project,

Qur review of the records indicates that no historie, architectural or archaeological sites exist within the project
area.

Pleage retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of the Lilinois State Agency
Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et. seq.). This clearance remains In effect for two years
from date of issuance. It does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illinofs Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440).
If you have any further questions, please contact me at 217/785-5031.

Sincerely,

Rachel Leibowilz, Ph.D,

Deputy State Historie
Preservation Officer

ATTACHMENT &
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Section I, Project Costs and Source of Funds

Attachment 7

#21-033

Section 1120.110, Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Project Costs and Sources of Funds
NONREVIEWABL
USE OF FUNDS REVIEWABLE E TOTAL
Preplanning Costs
Site Survey and Soil Investigation
Site Preparation $485,440 $43,120 $528,560
Off Site Work
New Construction Contracts 3,154,286 1,494,615 4,648,901
Moderization Contracts 1,550,300 481,043 2,031,343
Contingencies 475,927 192,097 668,024
Architectural/Engineering Fees 404,246 189,071 573,400
Consulting and Other Fees 475,929 189,071 665,000
Movable and Other Equipment (not in construction
contracts) 6,799,787 574,063 7,373,850
Bond Issuance Expense (project related)
Net Interest Expense During Construction (project
related) 599,410 183,280 782,690
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment
Other Costs to be Capitalized 855,728 403,272 1,259,000
Acquisition of Building or Other property (excluding
land)
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $14,801,053 $3,729,715 | $18,530,768
SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securities $14,801,053 $3,729,715 | $18,530,768
Pledges
Gifts and Beguests
Bond Issue (project related)
Moertgages
Leases (fair market value) 1,082,812 162,245 1,245,057
Governmental Appropriations
Grants
Other Funds and Sources
TOTAL SOUCES OF FUNDS o $14,801,053 $3,729,715 | $18,530,768
NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT
ATTACHMENT-7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER
THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
ATTACHMENT 7
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Cost Detalled

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil Investigation

Site Preparation

New Construction

Modemization Contracts

Contingencics

Architectural/Engineering Fees

Consulting and Other Fees

Movable and Other Equipment

Net Interest Expense During Construction

Other Costs to be Capitalized

Total Costs

33 140530.7

Mockups

Mew Construction Site Preparation

CVS Site Preparation/Structure

Outpatient Clinics
Dinagnostic Imaging
Offices

Public

New Staff
Building Support

Outpatient Clinics
Diagnostic lmaging
Offices

Public

Architecture Design

City Permit Fess
IDPH Fees

CON Related Fees
Test and Balance
Legal Council
Capitalized Labor
Engineering
Commissioning Agent
Equipment Planning

Medical Equipment
1.5T MRI
Fluoroscopy! C-Amm
PET/CT

Nurse Call Equipment
Fumiture

Window Treatment
Signage

Artwaork

WiFi/DAS

Netwok Closets
Phones

PCs & Printers
Patient Monitoring
TV/PT Entertainment
Monitors/status Boards

IT Services/Cabling

CBIS Project Management
EPIC & Sunquest Licenses
Conference Room AV
Kronos

Security

Equipment Warehousing
EVs

Locks

Plant
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Total Clinigal  Non-Clinical Toul
$528,560
$235,440 54%.12 $178,560
250,000 250,000
4,648,901
3,048,715 3,048,718
108,572 105,572
577,696 577,696
327,165 327,165
411,836 411,836
177.918 177,918
2,031,343
339,700 339,700
1,210,600 1,210,600
102,700 102,700
378,343 378,343
668,024 475,927 192,007 668,024
§73,400
404,246 169,154 573,400
665,000
37,257 17,743 55,000
51,524 23,476 5,000
53,241 21,759 75,000
23,678 1,322 35,000
20,541 9,459 30,000
148,938 61,062 110,000
15,984 4016 20,000
50,493 24,507 75,000
74,274 15,726 90,000
1,373,850
1,205,000 150,004 1,355,000
1,800,000 1,800,000
280,000 280,000
2,500,000 2,500,000
127,500 127,500
403,607 190,243 593,850
10,928 4,572 15,500
12,01} 5,489 17,500
28,533 11,467 40,000
47,944 20,256 68,200
45,249 19,751 65,000
16,776 7,224 24,000
125,051 $3,449 178,500
90,226 53,574 143,800
44,219 20,781 65,000
62,744 37,256 100,000
782,690 599,410 183,280 781,690
1,259,000
196,204 83,706 280,000
248,171 126,829 375,000
242,230 102,770 345,000
25,098 14,902 40,000
16,433 7,567 24,000
55,050 29,950 85,000
22,819 12,181 35,000
16,545 8,455 25,000
22,819 12,181 35,000
10,270 4,730 15,000
$18.530.767 5$14.801.053 $3.729.715  $18.530.767
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Section I, Cost Space Requirements
Attachment 9
Cost Space Requirements

University of Chicago Medical Center
Orland Park Expansion

BGSF
Cost Existing Proposed New Modernization Asls Vacated Space Re-Assi:
Reviewable
Qutpatient Clinics $7,853,49 19,501 12,370 11,378 992 15,501 0
Infusion Therapy $0 717 0 0 0 7,17t 0
Radiation Oncology $0 5,994 0 0 0 5,994 0
Diagnostic Imaging $6,947,558 11,085 3614 394 3,220 11,085 0
Total Reviewable $14,821,848 43,751 15,984 11,772 4,712 43,751
Non-Reviewable
Administrative $1,374,710 1,593 2,282 2,156 126 1,593 0
Public $1,274,505 7465 2,633 1,221 1,412 7,465 0
Staff Support $759,040 1,992 1,537 1,537 0 1,992 0
Mechanical/Building Support $321,459 2,375 664 664 0 2,375 0
Space to be leased $0 14,196 0 0 0 14,196 0
Parking Deck $0 132,000 0 0 0 132,000 0
Total Non-Reviewabie $3,729,714 159,621 7,116 577 1,539 159,621
Project Totals: $18,530,768 203,371 23,100 17,349 5,751 203,371
ATTACHMENT 9
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Section III, Background of Applicant
Attachment 11
Section 1110.230, Background, Purpose of the Project and Alternatives

1. A listing of all health care facilities owned by the applicant, including licensing, and

certification if applicable.

UCMC’s full general hospital license #0003897, effective July 1, 2021, issued by the Illinois
Department of Public Health (“IDPH”), is attached. UCMC’s most recent accreditation letter
from the Joint Commission, dated May 12, 2016, is attached.

UCMC also owns Ingalls Memorial Hospital (“Ingalls Hospital”) and Ingalls Same Day
Surgery Center, an ambulatory surgery treatment center (“Ingalls ASTC”).

Ingalls Hospital’s full general hospital license is #0001099, effective January 1, 2021.
Ingalls ASTC’s ambulatory surgery treatment center license #7001043, effective
June 18, 2021.

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated
by applicant during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

There have been no adverse actions taken against UCMC within the prior three years. A letter
attesting to this fact is attached.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to documents necessary to verify the
information submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other
State agencies; the licensing or certification records of other States; when applicable; and
the records of nationally recognized accreditation organizations.

A letter granting the Review Board and the IDPH access to information to verify information
in the application is attached.

ATTACHMENT 11
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University of Chicago Medical Center
Chicago, IL

has been Accredited by

The Joint Commission

Which has surveyed this organization und found it to ineet the requirements for she

Hospital Accreditation Program

March 12, 2016

Accreditation is customartly valid for up to 36 months.
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AT THE FOREFRONT Thomas Jackiewicz MC 1000, S-115

w President 5841 South Maryland Avenue
UCh.cago Chicago, Itlinois 60637-1470

phone (773) 702-8908

MediCine fax  (773)702-1897

October 19, 2021

Ms. Courtney Avery, Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jackson Street, 2nd Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: UCMC Orland Park MOB
Permit Application — No Adverse Action

Dear Ms. Avery,
Please be advised that no disciplinary action relative to “Adverse Action” as defined
under Section 1110.230(a)(1) of the Review Board Rules has been adjudicated against The

University of Chicago Medical Center or against any health care facility owned or operated by it,
, within three (3) years preceding the filing of the permit application.

directly or indirec/tl

Thomas Jackieivicz /
President

Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn before me
this /" day of October, 2021

. ONITA ESCOBEDO ALCANTAR
i 0FFIC|A|§t§tF;A cl;f Winois
Notary Pubiic -

My Commission Expires Oct 30, 2023
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AT THE FOREFRONT

UChicago
Medicine

Ms. Courtney Avery, Administrator

Thomas Jackiewicz
President

October 19, 2021

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board

525 West Jackson Street, 2nd Floor
Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: UCMC Orland Park MOB

Permit Application — Access to Information

Dear Ms. Avery,

#21-033

MC 1000, S-115

5841 South Maryland Avenue
Chicago, Ulinois 60637-1470
phone (773) 702-8908

Jax  (773) 702-1897

I hereby authorize the State Board and State Agency access to information from any
licensing/certification agency in order to verify any and all documentation or information
submitted in relation to this permit application. I further authorize the Illinois Department of
Public Health to obtain any additional documentation or information that said agency deems
necessary for the review of the application as it pertains to Section 1100.230(a)(3)(C) of the

Review Board Rules.

Thomas Jac,
President
Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn before me
thisQ ["' day of October, 2021

gnature of Notary Public

BONITA ESCOBEDO ALCANTAR
OFFICIAL SEAL
Notary Public - State of Hlinois
My Commission Expires Oct 30, 2023
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Section II1, Purpose of Project

Attachment 12

Overview of Purpose

The Medical Center opened its Orland Park medical office building (“Orland Park MOB”)
in December 2016, bringing specialized medicine to a community setting for patients seeking care
closer to home. In our original application to the Review Board for the Medical Office Building,
Project No. 14-023, we proposed shell space on the fourth floor of the MOB with a projection for
robust growth in demand in Planning Area A-04.

The purpose of the Project is to expand access to multi-specialty outpatient care, high-
quality cancer screening, and diagnostic imaging to meet the demand we anticipated and to
continue to address the disparate distribution of needed health care resources in the communities
that UCMC serves. For the current fiscal year (FY21), 51% of the Medical Center’s patient care
was delivered in an outpatient setting, a figure that has grown steadily over time.

UCMC now seeks authority from the Review Board to build out the remainder of this shell
space on the fourth floor, to reconfigure existing space on the second and third floors of the Orland
Park medical office building, and to expand diagnostic imaging (the “Project”).

Specifically, UCMC proposes to complete the build out of the fourth floor of the Orland
Park MOB with 18 multi-specialty exams rooms (17 net new multi-specialty exam rooms and 1
relocated exam room), a procedure suite with two rooms equipped for GI endoscopy, colonoscopy!
and other similar office-based procedures, and dedicated space for cardiac and vascular imaging,
Additionally, UCMC proposes to expand diagnostic imaging with one (1) additional MRI and one
(1) PET scan in the existing diagnostic imaging suite on the second floor.

Based on current and planned provider FTEs, the new space on the 4™ floor will result in
an approximately 20% increase in clinical capacity exams in the building. The Project is expected
to be complete by May 31, 2023,

1. Document that the Project will provide health care services that improve the health
care or well-being of the market area population to be served.

UCMC has been serving the City of Chicago since 1927 and is one of the nation’s leading
academic medical institutions. Its mission is to provide superior health care in a compassionate
manner, ever mindful of each patient’s dignity and individuality. To accomplish this mission,
UCMC relies upon the skills and expertise of all who work together to advance medical innovation,

! The Project is an extension of UCMC's commitment to community service and to improve access to services in which our own
community has been historically underserved. Our 2016 community needs health assessment identified cancer screening as a priority
for the patients that we serve. The expansion of colon and bowel cancer screening and diagnostics throughout Chicagoe is a key
pricrity for UCMC.

ATTACHMENT 12
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serve the health needs of the community and further the knowledge of those dedicated to caring
for patients.

UCMC is a nationally recognized leader in patient care, research and medical education
and is the primary teaching hospital for the University of Chicago, Pritzker School of Medicine.
Renowned for treating some of the most complex medical cases, UCMC brings the very latest
medical treatments to patients in Chicago and continues to invest in the capital resources necessary
to maintain this effort. Moreover, UCMC routinely ranks among the top providers of Medicaid
services in Illinois. The Project would provide current and future patients in the immediately
adjacent Planning Area A-04 with expanded access to the same high-quality, patient care and
groundbreaking research and treatments currently available to patients at UCMC's Hyde Park
Campus. Through the Project, UCMC seeks to facilitate access to integrated, multi-specialty
ambulatory care, to reduce wait times for appointments, and to minimize travel distances for
existing patients who currently commute from south suburban locations.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

As a major national academic medical center, UCMC essentially has two market areas.
First, it serves much of the South Side of the City of Chicago, as well as South Suburbs. In
addition, for its highly specialized tertiary and quaternary services, as well as primary care essential
to the coordinated delivery of specialty medicine, UCMC serves much of the Chicago metropolitan
area, the state and the Midwest, and even includes international patients. UCMC secks to provide
greater access to its patients who come from surrounding areas, including suburbs south of
UCMC's main campus in Hyde Park, by bringing these services closer to the patient.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and
appropriate for the project.

Over the past twenty-five (25) years, the delivery of health care has shifted to an even greater
emphasis on the ambulatory setting. In fact, at UCMC, outpatient care, as a percentage of total
patient care, exceeds inpatient care, and has more than doubled from 20% to 51% during this time
period. Changes in technology, the standards of care, reimbursement methodologies, the
expectations of health care consumers and, more recently, the public health emergency, all account
for this shift. As a result, robust outpatient centers no longer need be adjacent to acute, inpatient
hospitals, but can be located closer to the patients that they serve. In fact, patients demand this
accessibility.

A. Orland Park MOB is operating at_capacity. UCMC has maximized throushput in the
existing configuration. which is now insufficient for timely patient care,

¢ From October 2018 to September 2021, monthly clinic visits at the Orland Park MOB
have increased by 80%.

¢ During this same period, the average time from making an appointment to coming in
for the clinic visit for new patients has increased 20%.

ATTACHMENT 12
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B. Patients of the Orland Park MOB currently must travel to other locations for PET scans,

which are frequently ordered with MRI and CT already available on-site.

¢ Not only is this a dissatisfier for patients, it leads to a disjointed delivery of care.

C. There is a persistent disparity in cancer screening and mortality for minorities in Chicago,

as well as effective management of chronic disease. with a higher concentration on the
south and west sides of Chicago.

o The primary health care priorities identified by UCMC’s 2019 Community Health
Needs Assessment (CHNA) are preventing and managing chronic diseases (asthma and
diabetes) and reducing health inequities .

e These issues mirror some of the concerns found in the 2016 CHNA, which also
identified cancer, asthma and diabetes as health priorities for the Medical Center’s
South Side service area.

This Project will help to address these issues by increasing access to multi-specialty ambulatory
medical care for more patients as the nation's healthcare system continues to shift to an outpatient
delivery model.

4, Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation

UCMC undertakes ongoing internal utilization studies and the source of this information
includes those reports and other information reported to EMS, IDFPR and IDPH. UCMC also
relied upon Sg2 data its own records, and UCMC’s 2016 and 2019 CHNAs.

S. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues or
problems.

The Project is a direct response to increased demand for ambulatory care. The Project will
address incremental demand for exam rooms, physicians, and diagnostic imaging in Planning Area
A-04. Having an expanded array of specialists and subspecialists together in an integrated facility
is convenient for patients with complex, chronic illness and better for patient care. The expansion
into the 4™ floor by completing shelled space will create necessary additional capacity. Patients
of the Orland Park MOB who need PET scans, perhaps in conjunction with other imaging or a
biopsy, can now obtain all of these services on site, in comfortable, familiar surroundings and
ready access to established clinicians. UCMC will increase access and enhance clinical excellence
by offering the benefits of an academic medical center setting, diagnostic imaging advanced
technology, all of which have been found to have an effective and material impact on inequality
and health disparities.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes
that relate to achieving the stated goals as appropriate.

UCMC’s prevailing objective is to increase access to comprehensive high-quality
outpatient care, with a full line of diagnostic imaging services for the safety and convenience of
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UCMC’s patients, alongside the ancillary diagnostic and treatment modalities required for their
medical care. Specifically, the Project will expand the Orland Park MOB to meet the increased
demand for ambulatory care because of incremental changes in clinical practice, as well as a
normative shift from the current public health emergency, and will streamline the delivery of
medical care to patients in the ambulatory care setting. By expanding its satellite ambulatory
facility and increasing the availability of cancer screening in closer proximity to current and future
patients, UCMC will help to mitigate disparities including for cancer screening and management
of chronic illness.

These goals can be achieved within the timeframe for Project completion.

ATTACHMENT 12
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Section III, Alternatives
Attachment 13

Alternatives

l.

Project of Greater or Lesser Scope and Cost

Because UCMC seeks to maximize care delivery within the footprint of its existing medical
office footprint and this is the final shell space area in the building, it did not consider a project
of greater scope with an additional location or undertaking construction at the Orland Park site.
A Project of lesser scope, without the addition of the PET scanner, was considered. The cost
savings would have been Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000.00). This was not pursued
because patient volume is already such that it will make sufficient use of the PET scans within
the required timeframe. More importantly, the combination of PET-MRI and PET-CT is a
valuable diagnostic tool for providers and an important convenience to patients, especially with
the trend of moving away from hospital-centric care. It was determined that a Project without
a PET scanner was not adequate for the expected growth in demand especially after adding an
additional MRI and exam rooms to meet capacity needs.

Joint Venture with Other Providers

A joint venture with other parties was not considered for this Project but was successfully
pursued with Project 19-013. That joint venture is with Solis, which specializes in breast health
and is known for providing women’s imaging in dedicated suites that are welcoming and
comforting to women. UCMC benefited by quickly bringing this high service level expertise
to its patients, while Solis gained a strong and highly respected partner for its first centers in
Illinois. The additional services proposed in this project will complement the Mammography
Services already offered, and will add to the spectrum of cancer screening services available
at the Orland Park MOB.

Utilize Other Available Health Resources

While continuing with the present arrangement is a $0 cost option, there are many drawbacks,
including no room to accommodate additional demand, longer wait time for appointments, and
more limited ability to bring cancer and other diagnostic screening to the community.

Proposed Alternative

The proposed Project is the alternative selected. UCMC has chosen to make a substantial
commitment to serving the needs of patients in Planning Area A-04 by completing the medical
facility it opened in this growing area. UCMC anticipates that the proposed expansion of the
facility will be well utilized as evidenced by the high demand for its existing resources. UCMC
believes that having a tightly integrated multi-disciplinary team of clinical staff centrally
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located in the community is the best alternative and will maximize the availability to high
quality patient care for which there is strong demand.

Alternative

Cost

Pros

Cons

Project of Greater
Scope

N/A

Capacity for growth

Higher cost
Greater business
risk

Need for space
beyond existing
building footprint

Project of Lesser Scope

$15,530,768

Lower cost
Less programmatic
risk

Less convenient for
patients needing
combined PET-CT
or PET-MRI exams

Joint Venture

N/A

Shared risk / losses
Gain experience of
partner

Challenge to
manage

More complicated
application

Utilize Existing
Facilities

$0

Less cost to UCMC

Longer wait times
for clinic
appointments and
ancillary services
Remaining square
footage in the
Orland Park MOB
continues to go
unused

Proposed Project

$18,530,768

Patient-centric co-
location of specialty
and ancillary services
Convenience for
patients needing
imaging

Ideal layout and
modalities for imaging
Efficiently and
effectively utilize the
remaining square
footage in the Orland
Park MOB to increase
needed capacity

Temporary
disruption to current
services during
construction

WIsWnT
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Section IV, Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

Attachment 14

Project Scope, Utilization and Unfinished/Shell Space

The amount of proposed physical space is necessary and not excessive.

SIZE OF PROJECT

DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET

BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?
Ambulatory Care (20 exam 800 DGSF/Exam x
rooms and 3 office-based 12451 DGSF | 53'- 18,400 DGSF it e Yes
procedure rooms)
MRI (1) 1,624 DGSF 1,800 DGSF/Unit 176 DGSF Yes
PET Scan (1} 1,674 DGSF 1,800 DGSF/Unit 124 DGSF Yes

As summarized in the table above, there are state space standards for Ambulatory Care and
Diagnostic Imaging. During the initial planning phases of the Orland Park MOB. the University
of Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC”) forecast a clear and growing need for general and specialty
outpatient medicine and promised to return to the Review Board for approval to build out the 4%
floor. The need for such space is demonstrated by actual utilization, and for which we project
continued growth. The Project is within each of these state standards.

The proposed Orland Park project will complete construction of the remaining shelled space areas
of the original building. When the Orland Park CAC was first built, the first three floors were
finished, and the 4™ floor was constructed as shelled space for future expansion. In 2019 the
Review Board approved a permit to complete a portion of the shelled space on the 4™ floor for the
Solis/lUCM JV for Mammography, and the common areas needed including, reception, exit
corridors, electrical, and storage space.

The proposed new space on the 4™ floor will include a suite of exam rooms for multispecialty
services, including the women’s and heart and vascular services, as well as other specialties, and
will relocate current equipment for stress echo testing and vascular testing. Space will also be
created for minor procedures including GI endoscopy and colonoscopy, pain treatment, and other
office based procedures that do not require higher levels of facilities like those at an ASC. A blood
draw area will also be on the 4™ floor to support the ambulatory care and testing. The remaining
space will be built out as general office and support space.

Imaging services on the 2™ floor will be expanded to include a PET scanner and a 2" MRI
scanner. To make room for the additional imaging services, our heart and vascular services will
be relocated to new space on the 4 floor, including current equipment used for stress echo tests.

Existing clinical services at the facility include Radiation Oncology and Infusion Therapy to treat
cancer patients, a full range of imaging services and devices, and exam rooms to support specialty
services such as Orthopedics, Medical Oncology, Cardiology, Gastroenterology, Women's Health,
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and Surgical Consulting, which could include such disciplines as General, Vascular, Colorectal,
Urology, and ENT.

Space Standards for Specific Clinical Areas.

A. Ambulatory Care.

The Project would create 18 exam rooms (17 net new exam rooms and 1 relocated exam room)
and 3 office-based procedure rooms on the 4™ floor, and relocate 2 exam rooms in renovated space
on the 2™ floor. The ambulatory care space includes the outpatient clinic, minor procedure suite,
cardiology testing area, and blood draw area on level 4, plus renovated space on level 3 and level
2. The state standard for ambulatory care is 800 DGSF per exam room which, for the proposed
20 exam rooms and 3 minor procedure rooms, yields a total of 18,400 DGSF allowable square feet
compared to the Project's proposed 12,451 DGSF. Thus, the Project meets this state standard.

B. Diagnostic Imaging.

The Project would add one (1) MRI, and (1) PET scanner to the Diagnostic Imaging Suite on the
second floor. The Orland Park MOB would then have two (2) MRIs, one (1) CT scanner, (1) PET
scanner within this self-contained second floor suite. On Level 3 in the Orthopaedic Suite, there
are (3) existing radiographic devices to remain.

The modernized area on Level 2 for the new MRI and PET scanner is 3,298 DGSF. The MRI
space totals 1,624 DGSF compared to the 1,800 DGSF allowed by state standard. The PET space
totals 1,674 DGSF compared to the 1,800 DGSF allowed by state standard. Thus the Project meets
these state standards.

The reviewable space described above total 15,984 BGSF including Ambulatory Care and
Diagnostic Imaging.

The non-reviewable spaces include non-clinical support spaces, offices, building support and
public waiting and circulation areas. This totals 7,116 BGSF for a total project of 23,100 BGSF.

A table summarizing the space program is attached.
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Orland Park Expansion
Space Program

Reviewable Room Type Quantity NSF DGSF BGSF

Outpatient Clinic Level 4 Exam 18 2,078 2,140
Minor Procedure 1 147 151
Soiled Holding ] 88 91
Clean Supplies 2 196 202
Team Station 3 690 711
Equipment Alcove 3 98 101
Patient Toilet 4 241 248
Staff Toilet 1 53 55
Linen Alcove 1 34 35
Work Room 2 205 211
Circulation 1,801 1,855
Total 5,631 5,800 5,887

Minor Procedure Suite Level 4 Minor Procedure 2 578 595
Prep/Recovery 6 653 673
Patient Changing 2 68 70
Patient Toilet 2 129 133
WC/Equipment Storage 1 168 173
Team Station 1 333 343
Meds./Nourishment 1 93 96
Equipment Alcove 1 14 14
Equip/Clean Supply 1 214 220
Office 1 100 103
Staff Lockers 1 93 96
Staff Toilet 2 117 121
Soiled Holding 1 94 97
Scope Storage 1 91 %94
Sterilization Room 1 153 158
Decontamination 1 211 217
Work Alcove 1 26 27
Equip. Alcove 1 14 14
Circulation 1,189 1,225
Total 4,338 4,468 4,535
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Stress Echo Testing
Cardiology Testing Level 4 {Relocated) 1 191 197

Vascular Testing

(Relocated) 1 206 212

Mobile Cardiac Imaging 1 167 172

Work Room 1 122 126

Crash Cart Alcove | 9 9

Work Alcove 1 17 18

Circulation 356 367

Total 1,068 1,100 1,117
Blood Draw Level 4 Blood Draw Stations 4 208 214

POC Testing 1 33 34

Work Area 1 113 116

Circulation 107 110

Total 461 475 482
Level 3 Renovation Blood Draw Stations 2 139 143

Work Area 1 39 40

Total 178 183 186
Diagnostic Imaging Level 2 MRI 1 391 403

MRI Control Room 1 155 160

MRI Equipment Room 1 169 174

PETCT 1 478 492

PET CT Control Room 1 142 146

PET CT Equipmernt Room 1 146 150

Injection Room 4 490 505

Patient Toilet 1 52 54

Patient Changing Room 2 105 108

Check-in Station 1 121 125

Storage Room 1 176 181

Office 1 121 125

Vestibule 1 36 37

Circulation 619 638

Total 3,201 3,297 3,346
Level 2 Renovation Team Station 1 230 237

Exam Room (Relocated) 2 182 187

Total 412 424 431
Total Reviewable: 15,984
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Non-Reviewable Room Type Quantity NSF DGSF BGSF
Public General Waiting 1 1118 1,152
Level 4 Toilet 1 50 52
Exit Corridor Upgrade 1 1351 1,392
Total 2,519 2,595 2,633
Neon-Clinical Staff Support Reception 1 358 369
Level 4 Staff Lockers 1 164 169
Staff Toilet 3 170 175
Lactation 1 66 68
Staff Lounge 1 340 350
Conference 1 250 258
Supplies 1 122 126
Total 1,470 1,514 1,537
Building Support Electrical Closet 1 91 94
Level 4 Med Gas Tank Room 1 83 85
Chemo Waste 1 147 151
Linen Storage 1 204 210
Trash 1 110 113
Circulation 10
Total 654 664
Administrative Open Work Room 1 1704 1,755
Level 2 & 4 Private Office 4 358 369
Shared Office 1 121 125
Total 2,183 2,248 2,282
Total Non-Clinical Reviewable (BGSF): 1,116
Grand Total (BGSF): 23,100
ATTACHMENT 14
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Section IV, Project Services Utilization
Attachment 15

Appendix B, Project Services Utilization

1110.120 ¢) Project Size Utilization — For areas for which there are utilization standards as
shown in Appendix B

Imaging - MRI
- | Historical Projected State Meet
Utilization | Dept./Service Utilization | Utilization | ' Standard | Standard? | Units

0-2,500
procedures/

FY18 Imaging (MRI) 1,788 year Yes 1

FY19 1,961 0-2,500 Yes 1

FY20 2,920 0-2,500 Yes 1

FY21 3,771 0-2,500 Yes 1

FY22 4,321 | 0-2,500 Yes 1
2,500-

FY23 4,753 | 5,000 Yes 2
2,500-

FY24 5,185 | 5,000 Yes 2

* Estimate based on first two months of FY22 being pro-rated to an annual rate

** Estimate based on MRI procedure growth of 20% from F'Y21 rate which is proportional to the
estimated increased provider capacity for exams, divided into a 10% increase in FY23 and an
additional 10% increase in FY24

One (1) additional MRI is requested for the Diagnostic Imaging Suite. The MRI currently supports
a number of specialties offered at Orland Park, and since FY20, has been running over the state
standard for machines. In the first two months of FY22, the MRI has been running at a rate of
4,321 procedures per year. At the conclusion of this project, the capacity for provider visits in the
building will increase by 20% above current levels. A conservative estimate for the increase in
MRI procedures is growth of MRI procedures proportional to provider capacity for visits. This
scale up of growth is expected to happen over two years of operation, and results in meeting the
state standard of 5,000 procedures over two machines. Finally, 5,185 exams are expected for
FY2024 for the two (2) MRI scanners, which surpasses the state standard of 2,500 exams per
machine.
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Imaging — PET
Historical Projected State Meet
Utilization | Dept./Service Utilization | Utilization | Standard | Standard? | Units

FY18 PET N/A 0
FY19 N/A 0
FY20 N/A 0
FY21 N/A 0
FY22 N/A 0

0-3,600

visits/
FY23 450 year Yes 1
FY24 600 0-3,600 Yes 1

A positron emission tomography (PET) scanner is requested for the Diagnostic Imaging Suite. A
PET scanner detects early signs of cancer, heart disease and brain disorders.

A PET scan is an imaging test that can help reveal the metabolic or biochemical function of your
tissues and organs. The PET scan uses a radioactive drug (tracer) to show both normal and
abnormal metabolic activity. A PET scan can often detect diseases before the disease shows up on
other imaging tests, such as computerized tomography (CT) and magnetic resonance imaging
(MRI).

The PET images are typically combined with CT or MRIand are called PET-CT or PET-
MRI scans to enhance diagnostic precision. Many types of solid tumors can be detected by PET-
CT and PET-MRI including brain, breast, cervical, colorectal esophageal, lung, pancreatic,
prostate cancers. PET scans can also show if decreased areas of blood circulation in the heart that
may indicate a need for certain heart procedures, such as coronary artery bypass surgery, and can
help visualize the presence of seizures and Alzheimer’s. For this reason, the PET scanner will
complement and enhance the existing capability of the Diagnostic Suite and further reduce the
need for patients to travel to the hospital for additional testing,

Projections for utilization are based on our experience at other University of Chicago Medical
Center ambulatory clinics. Based on the clinics that are currently at the Orland Park MOB, and
those that will be added as part of the Project, we project 600 visits per year in the second year of
operation, and growing to more than 1,000 visits per year in future years.

Using Sg2 Market Forecast, a 3™ party forecasting tool commonly used by hospitals across the
country to estimate demand for specific services in a geographic market, the demand for PET scans
in the A-04 planning area are projected to grow 12% between 2021 and 2029.

Customarily in CON reviews, there is a “rounding up” convention. Because there will be just one

PET scanner, the projected 600 annual scans in the second year of operation meets the standard
set by the Review Board.
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Section V, Clinical Service Areas Other Than Categories of Service
Attachment 30

Clinical Services Other Than Categories of Service

# Existing # Proposed
Service Key Rooms  Key Rooms

Imaging
MRI
PET

Clinic Exam Rooms

Minor Procedure Rooms
Mobile Cardiac Imaging Room
Stress Echo Testing Room
Vascular Testing Room

2N OO =
_n_n_nug_l.n

1. Indicate Changes by Service.

The Medical Center opened its Orland Park medical office building (“Orland Park MOB”)
in December 2016, bringing specialized medicine to a community setting for patients seeking care
closer to home. In our original application to the Review Board, we proposed shell space on the
fourth floor of the MOB with a projection for robust growth in demand in Planning Area A-04.

The proposed Project is to build out the remainder of this shell space on the fourth floor,
to reconfigure existing space on the second and third floors of the Orland Park medical office
building, and to expand diagnostic imaging (the “Project”).

Specifically, UCMC proposes to complete the build out of the fourth floor of the Orland
Park MOB with 18 multi-specialty exams rooms (17 new net exam rooms and 1 relocated room)
and 1 minor procedure room in an outpatient clinic, a minor procedure suite with two minor
procedure rooms equipped for GI endoscopy, colonoscopy? and other similar office-based
procedures, dedicated space for cardiac and vascular testing, and a blood draw area. Additionally,
UCMC proposes to expand diagnostic imaging with one (1) additional MRI and one (1) PET scan
in the existing diagnostic imaging suite on the second floor. Additional small renovated spaces on
the second and third floor, including 2 renovated exam rooms and a relocated blood draw area are
also part of the clinical space changes.

Based on current and planned provider FTEs, the new space on the 4™ floor will result in
an approximately 20% increase in clinical capacity exams in the building. The Project is
expected to be complete at the end of the first quarter of calendar year 2023 .
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2. Necessary Expansion

The main thrust of this Project is an expansion of existing outpatient services in order
to accommodate current and growing demand for coordinated, efficient and high
quality ambulatory care. The Project includes a material expansion in Diagnostic
Imaging Services, including a PET scan and MRI that will join an existing MRI, CT,
ultrasound, mammography, radiographic, and fluoroscopic.

3. Major Medical Equipment

There is no major medical equipment in this Project.

4. Utilization (services with utilization standards)

Imaging - MRI
. ~ Historical Projected State Meet
Utilization | Dept./Service | Utilization Utilization | Standard | Standard? | Units

0-2,500
procedures/

FY18 Imaging (MRI) 1,788 year Yes 1

FY19 1,961 0-2,500 Yes 1

FY20 2,920 0-2,500 Yes 1

FY21 3,771 0-2,500 Yes 1

FY22 4.321* | 0-2,500 Yes 1
2,500~

FY23 4,753*%* | 5,000 Yes 2
2,500-

FY24 5,185%* | 5.000 Yes 2

* Estimate based on first two months of FY22 being pro-rated to an annual rate
** Estimate based on MRI procedure growth of 20% from FY21 rate which is proportional to the estimated increased
provider capacity for exams, divided into a 10% increase in FY23 and an additional 10% increase in FY24

One MRI in a Diagnostic Imaging Suite (Project #14-023) has already been approved.

The use of the MRI has been steady and growing, with the single MRI in use justifying twice the
number of machines. To determine workload and how many devices were needed, UCMC used
the ratio of outpatient imaging exams to outpatient visits currently performed at the Orland Park
MOB. The ratio was applied to forecast outpatient demand for a second MRI. Clinic expansion
from the Project is expected to result in 20% more outpatient visits, and MRI volumes are
estimated proportionally. UCMC expects that in the second year of operation, 2024, the proposed
machines will experience 5,185 exams combined, meeting the state standard of 2,500 exams per
machine.
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Imaging — PET
o] [t Historical Projected State Meset
Utilization | Dept./Service Utilization | Utilization | Standard | Standard? | Units

FY18 PET N/A 0
FY19 N/A 0
FY20 N/A 0
FY21 N/A 0
FY22 N/A 0

0-3,600

visits/
FY23 450 year Yes 1
FY24 600 0-3,600 Yes 1

There will be one (1) PET scanner in the proposed Project. Projections are based on estimates of
PETs ordered by similar clinics at other University of Chicago Medical Center locations. With
the planned outpatient clinic programming at the Orland Park MOB, we expect to have 600 visits
per year in the second year of operation, and continued growth to greater than 1,000 visits per year
in future years.

Using Sg2 Market Forecast, a 3" party forecasting tool commonly used by hospitals across the
country to estimate demand for specific services in a geographic market, the demand for PET scans
in the A-04 planning area are projected to grow 12% between 2021 and 2029.

Customarily in CON reviews, there is a “rounding up” convention. Because there will be just one
PET scanner, the projected 600 annual scans in the second year of operation meets the standard
set by the Applicants.

5. Utilization (services without utilization standards)

Cardiac Testing Rooms

Vascular, Stress Echo and other cardiac testing will be in included in the proposed Project
to address demand for testing ancillary to, or resulting from, specialty visits. In addition to
providing dedicated space for vascular and stress echo testing relocated from the third floor, this
suite will provide space for mobile cardiac imaging that may be provided in the testing space in
the future. Demand for imaging in the outpatient context has grown significantly over the past
decade as more chronically and acutely ill patients have been managed in the community setting,
and UCMC seeks to make imaging more accessible and convenient, and thereby enhance patient
follow-up. There is no state standard for utilization for cardiac imaging.

Exam Rooms and Minor Procedure Rooms

17 net new and 3 relocated exam rooms will be included in the proposed Project, resulting
in 18 on the 4™ floor, and 2 on the 2™ floor. From October 2020 to September 2021, clinic exam
visits at the Orland Park MOB have increased 80%, and wait time for new clinic appointments
increased 20%, demonstrating the need for additional exam room space.
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Three minor procedure rooms will also be included in the project, with two in an office-
based procedure suite on the 4" floor, and one in the outpatient clinic suite on the 4" floor. These
rooms will be used for GI endoscopy, colonoscopy® and other similar office-based procedures, in
support of the multi-specialty clinics offered at Orland Park MOB.

Sg2 Market Forecast forecasts that in the A-04 Planning Area, minor procedures delivered
at physician office and outpatient clinics — excluding ASC and hospital based ORs — will grow
from more than 555,000 procedures per year to almost 599,000 per year from 2021 to 2029. That
is an 8% increase in 8 years. Adding the minor procedure rooms to the Orland Park MOB are
consistent with this growing need.
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Section VI, Availability of Funds
Attachment 33

Because UCMC has a bond rating of A- or better from Fitch’s or Standard and Poor’s rating
agencies, or A3 or better from Moody’s, this Section is not applicable. A copy of UCMC’s bond
ratings letters are included in Attachment 34.
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Attachment 34
Financial Viability Waiver

UCMC’s most recent bond ratings from Fitch Ratings (AA-), Standard & Poor’s (AA-) and
Moody’s (Al) are attached.

ATTACHMENT 34

3F140930.7

67



#21-033

b) 7 World Trade Center
MO ODY S 250 Greenwich Street
INVESTORS SERVICE New York 10007

www.moodys.com

March 31, 2020

Ms. Ann McColgan

Vice President, Chief Treasury Officer
The University of Chicago Medical Center
150 Harvester Drive, Suite 300

Burr Ridge, IL 60527

Dear Ms, McColgan:

We wish to inform you that on December 3, 2019, Moody’s Investors Service downgraded UCMC’s long term
rating to Al from Aa3. At the same time, Moody's upgraded Ingalls Health System's (IL) rating to Al from
Baa2. The outlook for both UCMC and Ingalls Health System has been revised to stable from negative.

Credit ratings issued by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and its affiliates (“Moody’s”) are Moody’s current
opinions of the relative future credit risk of entities, credit commitments, or debt or debt-like securities and are not
statements of current or historical fact. Moody’s credit ratings address credit risk only and do not address any
other risk, including but not limited to: liquidity risk, market value risk, or price volatility.

This letter uses capitalized terms and rating symbols that are defined or referenced either in Moody’s Definitions
and Symbols Guide or MIS Code of Professional Conduct as of the date of this letter, both published on
www.moodys.com. The Credit Ratings will be publicly disseminated by Moody’s through normal print and
electronic media as well as in response to verbal requests to Moody’s Rating Desk. Moody’s related research and
analyses will also be published on www.moodys.com and may be further distributed as otherwise agreed in
writing with us.

Moody's Credit Ratings or any corresponding outlook, if assigned, will be subject to revision, suspension or
withdrawal, or may be placed on review, by Moody's at any time, without notice, in the sole discretion of
Moody’s. For the most current Credit Rating, please visit www.moodys.com.

Moody’s has not consented and will not consent to being named as an expert under applicable securities laws,
such as section 7 of the Securities Act of 1933. The assignment of a rating does not create a fiduciary relationship
between Moody’s and you or between Moody’s and other recipients of a Credit Rating. Moody’s Credit Ratings
are not and do not provide investment advice or recommendations to purchase, sell or hold particular securities.
Moody’s issues Credit Ratings with the expectation and understanding that each investor will make its own
evaluation of each security that is under consideration for purchase, sale or holding.

Moody’s adopts all necessary measures so that the information it uses in assigning a Credit Rating is of sufficient
quality and from sources Moody’s considers to be reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party
sources. However, Moody’s is not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently validate or verify
information received in the rating process. Moody’s expects and is relying upon you possessing all legal rights
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March 31, 2020 Ms, Ann McColgan
Vice President, Chief Treasury Officer
The University of Chicago Medical Center
150 Harvester Drive, Suite 300
Burr Ridge, IL 60527

and required consents to disclose the information to Moody's, and that such information is not subject to any
restrictions that would prevent use by Moody's for its ratings process. In assigning the Credit Ratings, Moody’s
has relied upon the truth, accuracy, and completeness of the information supplied by you or on your behalf to
Moody’s. Moody’s expects that you will, and is relying upon you to, on an ongoing basis, promptly provide
Moody’s with all information necessary in order for Moody’s to accurately and timely monitor the Credit Ratings,
including current financial and statistical information.

Under no circumstances shall Moody’s have any liability (whether in contract, tort or otherwise) to any person or
entity for any loss, injury or damage or cost caused by, resulting from, or relating to, in whole or in part, directly
or indirectly, any action or error (negligent or otherwise) on the part of, or other circumstance or contingency
within or outside the control of, Moody’s or any of its or its affiliates’ directors, officers, employees or agents in
connection with the Credit Ratings. ALL INFORMATION, INCLUDING THE CREDIT RATING, ANY
FEEDBACK OR OTHER COMMUNICATION RELATING THERETO IS PROVIDED "AS IS"
WITHOUT REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND. MOODY’S MAKES NO
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY R
TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR
PURPOSE OF ANY SUCH INFORMATION.

Any non-public information discussed with or revealed to you must be kept confidential and only disclosed either
(i) to your legal counsel acting in their capacity as such; (ii) to your other authorized agents acting in their
capacity as such with a need to know that have entered into non-disclosure agreements with Moody’s in the form
provided by Moody’s and (iii) as required by applicable law or regulation. You agree to cause your employees,
affiliates, agents and advisors to keep non-public information confidential.

If there is a conflict between the terms of this rating letter and any related Moody’s rating application, the terms of
the executed rating application will govern and supercede this rating letter.

Should you have any questions regarding the above, please do not hesitate to contact the analyst assigned to this
transaction, Diana Lee at 212-553-4747.

Sincerely,

Hoody ‘s Tnvestors Seroice Tne.

Mocdy’s Investors Service Inc.

ATTACHMENT

69

3



#21-033

318f2021 Fitch Affirms University of Chicago Medical Center’s (IL} IDR at "AA-"; Outlook Stable

FitchRatings

RATING ACTION COMMENTARY

Fitch Affirms University of Chicago
Maedical Center's (IL) IDR at 'AA-';
Outlook Stable

Thu 18 Mar, 2021 - 2.00 PMET

Fitch Ratings - Chicago - 18 Mar 2021: Fitch Ratings has affirmed University of Chicago Medical Center's (UCMC) 'AA-
" Issuer Default Rating (IDR) and the 'AA- rating on approximately $584 million of revenue bonds issued by the llinois
Finance Authority on behalf of the UCMC obligated group.

The Rating Qutlook remains Stable.

SECURITY

Debt payments are secured by a pledge of unrestricted receivables of the UCMC obligated group. The obligated group
includes the majority of UCMC activities, The obligated group was amended in June 2019 to include the majority of
Ingalls Health System operations (including Ingalls Memorial Hospital). Ingalls is now the core of UCMC's Community
Health and Hospital Division (CHHD). The University of Chicago (UChicago, IDR: AA+} is not obligated on UCMC
bonds.

(Unless otherwise noted, "UCMC" refers collectively to the flagship academic medical center (AMC)} medical center
campus located on the UChicago campus and CHHD.)

Feedback

ANALYTICAL CONCLUSION

The 'AA- rating is driven by UCMC's strong financial profile assessment in the context of the system's midrange
revenue defensibility and strong operating risk profile assessments. UCMC's operating margins continue to be
affected by the coronavirus pandemic. Fitch believes that the system's operating platform remains fundamentally
strong, in part because of the very tight alignment with UChicago and UCMC's broad reach of high-acuity services.
Fitch expects UCMC's capital-related ratios to remain strong in its forward-looking scenario analysis. These
characteristics are balanced by a high degree of competition in the Chicago area and continued challenges at CHHD.

ATTACHMENT 3
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3/18/2021 Fitch Affirms University of Chicago Medical Center's (IL) IDR at ‘AA-"; Outlook Stable

The outbreak of coronavirus created an uncertain and generally challenging environment for the entire healthcare
industry. While Fitch expects the not-for-profit healthcare sector to continue to face uncertainty and considerable
pressure in the coming months, with the rollout of coronavirus vaccines, the long-term outlook for the sector should
stabilize.

UCMC's Qutlook remains Stable, although capital-related ratios are on the lower end of the 'AA! financial profile when
subjected to a stress event in its forward-looking scenario analysis. If the coronavirus or any other operating
disruption affects UCMC disproportionally a downgrade could be warranted over the longer term.

KEY RATING DRIVERS
Revenue Defensibility: ‘bbb’

Broad Reach for High-Acuity Services in a Competitive Market

UCMC faces significant competition in the Chicago area, including from other prominent AMCs. The system has
considerable reach for high-acuity academic services. Moreover, UCMC is a component unit of the UChicago. The
service area quality of the broad Chicago area is generally stable, despite the ongoing pressures from the coronavirus
and related economic challenges.

Operating Risk: ‘a’

Operating Margins Pressured by Coronavirus, Long-Term Rebound Expected

UCMC's operating risk profile is considered reasonably strong, despite the pressures from the coronavirus pandemic.
Over the longer term, Fitch expects the system's operating EBITDA margin to remain broadly consistent with a strong
profile. Capital spending plans are manageable and remain flexible.

Financial Profile: 'aa’

Feedback

Strong Capital-Related Ratios in the Forward Look Despite the Pandemic

UCMC's financial profile remains strong, despite pressures from the coronavirus pandemic.

ASYMMETRIC ADDITIONAL RISK CONSIDERATIONS ATT ACHMENT 3

There are no asymmetric risk factors associated with UCMC's rating.
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3/18/2021 Fitch Affirms University of Chicago Medical Center's (IL) IDR at *AA-: Outlook Stable

RATING SENSITIVITIES

Factors that could, individually or collectively, lead to positive rating action/upgrade:
--Maintenance of adjusted operating EBITDA margin consistently above 9%;

--Considerable rebound in unrestricted liquidity levels leading to much stronger capital-related ratios, such as a cash-
to-adjusted debt ratio in excess of 200%.

Factors that could, individually or collectively, lead to negative rating action/downgrade:

--Greater and longer than expected compression in operating margins beyond what Fitch currently expects,
particularly if the operating EBITDA margin is expected to remain notably below 7% for an extended period, which
would lead to an operating risk profile more consistent with a midrange assessment;

--Weaker balance sheet metrics — either increased liabilities (e.g., defined benefit pension obligations) or lower
unrestricted liquidity -- leading to thinner capital-related ratios in the long term more consistent with an 'a’
assessment.

BEST/WORST CASE RATING SCENARIO

International scale credit ratings of Sovereigns, Public Finance and Infrastructure issuers have a best-case rating
upgrade scenario (defined as the 99th percentile of rating transitions, measured in a positive direction) of three
notches over a three-year rating horizon; and a worst-case rating downgrade scenario {defined as the 99th percentile
of rating transitions, measured in a negative direction) of three notches over three years, The complete span of best-
and worst-case scenario credit ratings for all rating categories ranges from 'AAA’ to 'D". Best- and worst-case scenario
credit ratings are based on historical performance. For more information about the methodology used to determine
sector-specific best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings, visit [https:/fwww.fitchratings.com/site/re/1011 1579].

CREDIT PROFILE

UCMC is a major AMC system, whose flagship location is on the campus of UChicago. In 2016, Ingalls joined UCMC,
and now constitutes the majority of UCMC's CHHD. While UChicago is not obligated on UCMC's honds, UCMC is a
component unit of the university and there is very tight alignment between the two organizations (UChicago would be
required to assume UCMC's debt only if the university terminated its affiliation agreement or lease with the medical
center). UCMC's total operating revenue measured more than $2.5 billion in audited fiscal 2020 (June 30 year-end),
which includes CHHD.

REVENUE DEFENSIBILITY

UCMC's payor mix is modest. Combined Medicaid and self-pay accounted for roughly 28% of gross revenue in fiscal
2020. As an AMC with trauma services and a sizeable children's hospital (Comer Children's Hospital), high exposure to
Medicaid is expected and is not reflective of the overall financial heaith of UCM. Both llinois and Indiana expanded
Medicaid under the Affordable Care Act (ACA).

https:IMww.fitchralings.conu‘researchlus-pubIic-finance!filch-afﬁrms-un'rversity-of-chlcago—med!cal-center-il-idr—at-aa-ouﬂ ATTACHMENT
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311812021 Fitch Affirms University of Chicago Medical Center's {IL) IDR at 'AA-" Outlook Stable

Despite facing considerable competition in the service area, Fitch considers UCMC's market position to be consistent
with a midrange assessment. The primary service area (PSA) includes the south Chicago metro area and extends well
into Northwest Indiana. The total service area (TSA) extends throughout the entirety of the Chicago metro area.

The TSA is very competitive, with no individual hospital capturing more than 4.8% market share (Northwestern
Memorial Hospital, flagship of AA+ rated Northwestern Memorial HealthCare). UCMC is the third largest hospital in
the TSA by market share, capturing 3.4% TSA share in fiscal 2020 (up steadily from 2.1% in calendar 2012, due to
growth strategies in recent years).

UCMC achieves the midrange market position due to the system's considerable reach for very high-acuity services
aided by the very tight relationship with UChicago. UCMC is among the industry national leaders for research-
oriented academic clinical services, including oncology. The university is the sole corporate member of UCMC and
appoints the entirety of the board. To illustrate the level of integration, the UChicago's Biological Sciences Division
(BSD), of which UCMC is a fundamental part, comprises roughly half of the university's budget. In addition to
governance overlap, there is considerable management integration between UCMC and the university; for example,
Dr. Kenneth Polonsky, the Executive Vice President of the BSD is also the President of the UChicago Medicine Heaith
System (of which UCMC is the majority component).

The service area economy is broadly stable, although like the metro region continues to be affected by the current
economic environment. Nevertheless, as a major metro area, Chicago benefits from a diversified economy. Population
trends in Cook County are stagnant to declining. Will County, immediately south of Cook, has experienced modest
population growth. The median household income level in Cook County is just above the national average, and well
above average in Will County. The unemployment rate in the Chicago-Naperville-Eigin MSA as of the December 2020
preliminary data was the national average (per the U.S, Bureau of Labor Statistics).

OPERATING RISK

Fitch expects UCMC's operating EBITDA margin in the long-term to remain consistent with a moderately strong
profile assessment, although recognizes that the coronavirus pandemic and related economic pressures will continue
to present headwinds to operating results. Prior to the outbreak, management was already engaged in a material
expense savings initiative and Fitch believes that UCMC's operating platform is fundamentally sound, and long-term
the adjusted operating EBITDA margin should remain in the 8% range.

Feedback

Prior to the coronavirus, UCMC's adjusted operating EBITDA margin averaged nearly 8% between fiscal 2015 and
fiscal 2019 (Fitch treats equity transfers to the university as an operating expense: while Fitch considers the roughly
$72 million transfer as an operating expense, this expense represents investments in UCMC's operating platform
supporting areas such as clinical research and physician integration.) UCMC's operating EBITDA margin compressed
to 5.9% in fiscal 2018, due in part to continued integration of the CHHD into the system, The margin rebounded to
adjusted 7.4% in fiscal 2019.

In fiscal 2020, UCMC's adjusted operating margin measured -0.8% and operating EBITDA margin 6.0%. Like virtually
all health systems in the U.S., UCMC faced considerable operating pressure from the coronavirus. Expenses increased
above budget as the system secured PPE, ventilators, and other needed equipment as well as incurring labor premium
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inresponse to the pandemic. Top-line revenue was affected considerably by the restrictions on elective procedures
that were put in place in late March and not lifted until early May.

Operating results in fiscal 2020 were balanced in part by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES)
Act and related stimulus funds. UCMC recognized $149 million in fiscal 2020, While the stimulus funds bolstered
margins considerably, they did not balance completely UCMC's revenue loss or added expenses.

The operating results in fiscal 2020 are notable given that prior to the pandemic UCMC faced a nurse labor stoppage
in September 2019 and the threat of a second stoppage in November, the combination of which cost the system
approximately $25 million.

Management implemented a number of actions in response to the coronavirus, including acquiring PPE (at a
premium), developing in-house testing, cutting capital spending, and securing a $100 million line of credit as additional
liquidity support. Also, management has a $360 million improvement plan (expense savings and revenue
enhancements) much of which was launched prior to the pandemic. The improvement plan includes one-time
temporary expense cuts related to the coronavirus {such as senior management wage freezes and suspension of
defined contribution pension matches}, as well as more fundamental long-term improvements such as continued
growth in cancer services, reduced lease expenses as more employees move to a work-from-home environment and a
variety of targets at CHHD (e.g., revenue cycle, improved labor productivity, and furiough of non-clinical staff), Also, as
part of UCMC's pandemic action plan, management notes that essentiaily all UCMC employees have been vaccinated.

Moving forward, over the long term, Fitch expects UCMC to generate an adjusted operating EBITDA margin in the 8%
range. Because of the receipt of CARES Act and related stimulus funds as well as management's ongoing expense
savings plans {which were initiated prior to the pandemic), UCMC's operating margins should be strongin fiscal 2021.
Through the first six-months of fiscal 2021, UCMC recorded an operating margin and operating EBITDA margin of
3.4% and 9.7%, respectively (treating the transfers to UChicago as an operating expense). The interim results include
approximately $27 million of CARES Act funds, roughly $18 million of which was used to fund employee compensation
to recognize the challenging work environment during the pandemic.

Most key volumes have rebounded to levels roughly 95% of trend prior to the pandemic, and management notes that
cancer and heart/vascular transplant volumes are ahead of pace. Like most health systems, ED volumes continue to
lag. Results in fiscal 2022 should temper as the top-line revenue boost from the stimulus funds fade, but Fitch expects
UCMC's operating EBITDA margin to be in the 8% range in the long term.

UCMC's capital expenditure requirements are manageable. The system has invested in property and plant in recent
years, as the capital spending ratio averaged approximately 1.3x over the last five years through fiscal 2020. This has
translated to a favorably low average age of plant of 9.0 years at FYE 2020 (AA median is 10.5 years). The legacy
UCMC deployed the Epic electronic medical record (EMR) system in 2016; Ingalls Hospital currently is on the Cerner
EMR, but management is converting the CHHD to Epic. Moving forward, management expects to invest in capitalata
pace consistent with cash flow generation.

Feedback

UCMC does not have new money debt plans in the near term. It is Fitch's opinion that the Chicago market is on a path
to further consolidation, even with the coronavirus pandemic. This may present UCMC with strategic decisions to
make in the future.
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FINANCIAL PROFILE

UCMC's financial profile remains strong, despite pressures from the coronavirus pandemic. Forward-looking capital-
related ratios are consistent with a 'aa’ financial profile even in a stress scenario, given UCMC's midrange revenue
defensibility and strong operating risk assessments.

At FYE 2020 {June 30 year-end), UCMC had just over $1 billion of total direct debt outstanding (inclusive of operating
leases, which are now captured on the balance sheet) and unrestricted cash and investments measured better than
$1.5 billion (excluding Medicare advance payment funds).

UCMC's debt equivalents are manageable. The system participates in UChicago's defined benefit {DB} pension plan.
The UChicago DB pension sits on the university's audit and ultimately is the responsibility of UChicago; per UChicago
and UCMC management, UCMC accounts for approximately 40% of the DB plan's contributions and expenses, and
therefore Fitch includes 40% of the plans projected benefit obligation (PBO) and 40% of the fair value of plan assets
when calculating UCMC's DB pension debt equivalent. Along with a small plan held directly by UCMC, the combined
DB pension plans were 76% funded at FYE 2020 compared to a PBO of just under $480 million.

Fitch only includes the portion of DB pensions funded below 80% in the caiculation of adjusted debt; consequently,
the debt equivalent of UCMC's DB pensions was less than $20 million at FYE 2020. As a result, UCMC's adjusted debt
{direct debt plus underfunded DB pension plan below 80% funded) is only marginally more than direct debt. Net
adjusted debt (adjusted debt minus unrestricted cash and investments) was favorably negative at FYE 2020, totally
approximately -$470 million.

UCMC's capital-related ratios should remain consistent with the lower-end of the 'AA’ rating category in Fitch's
forward-looking scenario analysis, including in a stress case. Based on fiscal 2020 results, net adjusted debt-to-
adjusted EBITDA was favorably negative, measuring -2.3x while cash-to-adjusted debt totaled approximately 1459%,
In the scenario analysis, net adjusted debt-to-adjusted EBITDA remains favorably negative in each year of the
forward-look, inciuding in the stress case. Cash-to-adjusted debt exceeds 120% in every year of the base case {and
approaches 160% by year five), and it exceeds 120% by year three of the stress case.

ASYMMETRIC ADDITIONAL RISK CONSIDERATIONS

There are no asymmetric risk factors assaciated with UCMC's rating.

UCMC's former President, Sharon O'Keefe, retired in 2020. Thomas Jackiewicz was appointed President of UCMC
and COO of the UChicago Medicine Health System in May 2020. Mr. Jackiewicz previously served as the CEO of Keck
Medicine at the University of Southern California.

Feedback

With more than $1.5 billion in unrestricted cash and investments at FYE 2020, UCMC's cash on hand measured nearly
230 days (excluding Medicare advances). Liquidity does not pose an asymmetric risk.

Debt Structure

UCMC's maximum annual debt service (MADS) is $59 million, inclusive of Ingalls debt. MADS coverage was 3.4x
based on fiscal 2020 results and does not pose an asymmetric risk. Just over 50% of debt is variable rate, a portion of
which is demand debt in the form of CP and variable rate demand bonds {VRDB). The VRDBSs are supported by LOCs
with five banks: JPMorgan Chase, PNC, Wells Fargo, Bank of America, and Sumitomo Bank. The LOCs have staggered
termination dates, ranging between May 2021 and June 2022. UCMC has three fixed payor interest rate swaps, with a
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total notional amount outstanding of approximately $363 million at FYE 2020. The combined net termination value of
the swaps was a liability to UCMC of nearly $194 million at FYE 2020.

In addition to the sources of information identified in Fitch's applicable criteria specified below, this action was
informed by information from Lumesis.

REFERENCES FOR SUBSTANTIALLY MATERIAL SOURCE CITED AS KEY DRIVER OF RATING

The principal sources of information used in the analysis are described in the Applicable Criteria.

ESG CONSIDERATIONS

Unless otherwise disclosed in this section, the highest level of ESG credit relevance is a score of '3' This means ESG
issues are credit-neutral or have only a minimal credit impact on the entity, either due to their nature or the wayin
which they are being managed by the entity. For more information on Fitch's ESG Relevance Scores, visit
www.fitchratings.com/esg
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U.S. Not-For-Profit Hospitals and Heaith Systems Rating Criteria (pub. 18 Nov 2020) (including rating assumption
sensitivity)

Public Sector, Revenue-Supported Entities Rating Criteria (pub. 23 Feb 2021) (including rating assumption sensitivity)
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model{s).
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COMPLIANCE, AND OTHER RELEVANT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ARE ALSO AVAILABLE FROM THE CODE
OF CONDUCT SECTION OF THIS SITE. DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELEVANT INTERESTS ARE
AVAILABLE AT HTTPS://WWW.FITCHRATINGS.COM/SITE/REGULATORY. FITCH MAY HAVE PROVIDED
ANOTHER PERMISSIBLE SERVICE TO THE RATED ENTITY OR ITS RELATED THIRD PARTIES. DETAILS OF THIS
SERVICE FOR WHICH THE LEAD ANALYST IS BASED IN AN ESMA- OR FCA-REGISTERED FITCH RATINGS
COMPANY (OR BRANCH OF SUCH A COMPANY) CAN BE FOUND ON THE ENTITY SUMMARY PAGE FOR THIS
ISSUER ON THE FITCH RATINGS WEBSITE.

READLESS

COPYRIGHT

Copyright © 2021 by Fitch Ratings, Inc,, Fitch Ratings Ltd. and its subsidiaries. 33 Whitehall Street, NY, NY 10004.

Telephone: 1-800-753-4824, (212) 908-0500. Fax: (212} 480-4435. Reproduction or retransmission in whole or in

part is prohibited except by permission. All rights reserved. In issuing and maintaining its ratings and in making other

reports (including forecast information), Fitch relies on factual information it receives from issuers and underwriters

and from other sources Fitch believes to be credible. Fitch conducts a reasonable investigation of the factual

information relied upon by it in accordance with its ratings methodology, and obtains reasonable verification of that

information from independent sources, to the extent such sources are available for a given security orin a given

jurisdiction. The manner of Fitch's factual investigation and the scope of the third-party verification it obtains will vary

depending on the nature of the rated security and its issuer, the requirements and practices in the jurisdiction in which

the rated security is offered and sold and/or the issuer is located, the availability and nature of relevant public

information, access to the management of the issuer and its advisers, the availability of pre-existing third-party

verifications such as audit reports, agreed-upon procedures letters, appraisals, actuarial reports, engineering reports,

legal opinions and other reports provided by third parties, the availability of independent and competent third- party

verification sources with respect to the particular security or in the particular jurisdiction of the issuer, and a variety of

other factors. Users of Fitch's ratings and reports should understand that neither an enhanced factual investigation

nor any third-party verification can ensure that all of the information Fitch relies on in connection with a ratingora

report will be accurate and complete. Uitimately, the issuer and its advisers are responsible for the accuracy of the

information they provide to Fitch and to the market in offering documents and other reports. In issuing its ratings and

its reports, Fitch must rely on the work of experts, including independent auditors with respect to financial statements

and attorneys with respect to legal and tax matters. Further, ratings and forecasts of financial and other information

are inherently forward-looking and embody assumptions and predictions about future events that by their nature

cannot be verified as facts. As a result, despite any verification of current facts, ratings and forecasts can be affected

by future events or conditions that were not anticipated at the time a rating or forecast was issued or affirmed.

The information in this report is provided "as is” without any representation or warranty of any kind, and Fitch does -—-
not represent or warrant that the report or any of its contents will meet any of the requirements of a recipient of the
report. A Fitch rating is an opinion as to the creditworthiness of a security. This opinion and reports made by Fitch are
based on established criteria and methodologies that Fitch is continuously evaluating and updating. Therefore, ratings
and reports are the collective work product of Fitch and no individual, or group of individuals, is solely responsible for
arating or areport. The rating does not address the risk of loss due to risks other than credit risk, unless such risk is
specifically mentioned. Fitch is not engaged in the offer or sale of any security. All Fitch reports have shared
authorship. Individuals identified in a Fitch report were involved in, but are not solely responsible for, the opinions
stated therein. The individuals are named for contact purposes only. A report providing a Fitch rating is neither a
prospectus nor a substitute for the information assembled, verified and presented to investors by the issuer and its
agents in connection with the sale of the securities. Ratings may be changed or withdrawn at any time for any reason
in the sole discretion of Fitch. Fitch does not provide investment advice of any sort. Ratings are not a recommendation
to buy, sell, or hold any security. Ratings do not comment on the adequacy of market price, the suitability of any
security for a particular investor, or the tax-exempt nature or taxability of payments made in respect to any security.
Fitch receives fees from issuers, insurers, guarantors, other obligors, and underwriters for rating securities. Such fees
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generaily vary from US$1,000 to US$750,000 (or the applicable currency equivalent) per issue. In certain cases, Fitch
will rate all or anumber of issues Issued by a particular issuer, or insured or guaranteed by a particular insurer or
guarantor, for a single annual fee. Such fees are expected to vary from US$10,000 to U$$1,500,000 (or the applicable
currency equivalent). The assignment, publication, or dissemination of a rating by Fitch shall not constitute a consent
by Fitch to use its name as an expert in connection with any registration statement filed under the United States
securities laws, the Financial Services and Markets Act of 2000 of the United Kingdom, or the securities laws of any
particular jurisdiction. Due to the relative efficiency of electronic publishing and distribution, Fitch research may be
available to electronic subscribers up to three days earlier than to print subscribers.

For Australia, New Zealand, Taiwan and South Korea only: Fitch Australia Pty Ltd holds an Australian financial services
license (AFS license no. 337123) which authorizes it to provide credit ratings to wholesale clients only. Credit ratings
information published by Fitch is not intended to be used by persons who are retail clients within the meaning of the
Corporations Act 2001

Fitch Ratings, Inc. is registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as a Nationally Recognized
Statistical Rating Organization (the "NRSRO"). While certain of the NRSRO's credit rating subsidiaries are listed on
Item 3 of Form NRSRO and as such are authorized to issue credit ratings on behalf of the NRSRO (see
https://www.fitchratings.com/site/regulatory), other credit rating subsidiaries are not listed on Form NRSRO (the
“non-NRSROs") and therefore credit ratings issued by those subsidiaries are not issued on behalf of the NRSRO.
However, non-NRSRO personnel may participate in determining credit ratings issued by or on behalf of the NRSRO.

READLESS

SOLICITATION STATUS

The ratings above were solicited and assigned or maintained at the request of the rated entity/issuer or a related third
party. Any exceptions follow below.

ENDORSEMENT POLICY

Fitch's international credit ratings produced outside the EU or the UK, as the case may be, are endorsed for use by
regulated entities within the EU or the UK, respectively, for regulatory purposes, pursuant to the terms of the EU CRA
Regulation or the UK Credit Rating Agencies (Amendment etc.) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019, as the case may be. Fitch's
approach to endorsement in the EU and the UK can be found on Fitch’s Regulatory Affairs page on Fitch's website. The
endorsement status of international credit ratings is provided within the entity summary page for each rated entity
and in the transaction detail pages for structured finance transactions on the Fitch website. These disclosures are
updated on a daily basis.

(1
|

USPublicFinance  Healthcare and Pharma  North America  United States
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October 21, 2021

The University of Chicago Medical Center
150 Harvester Drive, Suite 300

Burr Ridge, IL 60527

Attention: Ms. Ann M. McColgan, Treasurer

Re: Illinois Finance Authority, (University of Chicago Medical Center), Nlinois

Dear Ms. McColgan:

S&P Global Ratings hereby affirms its rating of "AA-" for the underlying rating (SPUR) on the above-listed
obligations and changed the outlook to stable from negative. A copy of the rationale supporting the rating and
outlook is enclosed.

This letter constitutes S&P Global Ratings' permission for you to disseminate the above-assigned ratings to
interested parties in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. However, permission for such
dissemination (other than to professional advisors bound by appropriate confidentiality arrangements or to allow
the Issuer to comply with its regulatory obligations) will become effective only after we have released the
ratings on standardandpoors.com. Any dissemination on any Website by you or your agents shall include the full
analysis for the rating, including any updates, where applicable, Any such dissemination shall not be done in a
manner that would serve as a substitute for any products and services containing S&P Global Ratings'
intellectual property for which a fee is charged.

To maintain the rating, S&P Global Ratings must receive all relevant financial and other information, including
notice of material changes to financial and other information provided to us and in relevant documents, as soon
as such information is available. Relevant financial and other information includes, but is not limited to,
information about direct bank loans and debt and debt-like instruments issued to, or entered into with, financial
institutions, insurance companies and/or other entities, whether or not disclosure of such information would be
required under S.E.C. Rule 15¢2-12. You understand that S&P Global Ratings relies on you and your agents
and advisors for the accuracy, timeliness and completeness of the information submitted in connection with the
rating and the continued flow of material information as part of the surveillance process. Please send all
information via electronic delivery to pubfin_statelocalgovi@spglobal.com. If SEC rule 17g-5 is applicable, you
may post such information on the appropriate website. For any information not available in electronic format or
posted on the applicable website,

Please send hard copies to:
S&P Global Ratings
Public Finance Department
35 Water Street
New York, NY 10041-0003

The rating is subject to the Terms and Conditions, if any, attached to the Engagement Letter applicable to the
rating. In the absence of such Engagement Letter and Terms and Conditions, the rating is subject to the attached
Terms and Conditions. The applicable Terms and Conditions are incorporated herein by reference.

S&P Global Ratings is pleased to have the opportunity to provide its rating opinion. For more information
please visit our website at www standardandpoors.com., If you have any questions, please contact us. Thank you
for choosing S&P Global Ratings.

Sincerely yours,

S&P Global Ratings
a division of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC

td
enclosure
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S&P Global
Ratings

S&P Global Ratings
Terms and Conditions Applicable To Public Finance Credit Ratings

General. The credit ratings and other views of S&P Global Ratings are statements of opinion and not statements
of fact. Credit ratings and other views of S&P Global Ratings are not recommendations to purchase, hold, or sell
any securities and do not comment on market price, marketability, investor preference or suitability of any
security. While S&P Global Ratings bases its credit ratings and other views on information provided by issuers
and their agents and advisors, and other information from sources it believes to be reliable, S&P Global Ratings
does not perform an audit, and undertakes no duty of due diligence or independent verification, of any
information it receives. Such information and S&P Global Ratings' opinions should not be relied upon in
making any investment decision. S&P Global Ratings does not act as a "fiduciary" or an investment advisor.
S&P Global Ratings neither recommends nor will recommend how an issuer can or should achieve a particular
credit rating outcome nor provides or will provide consulting, advisory, financial or structuring advice. Unless
otherwise indicated, the term "issuer" means both the issuer and the obligor if the obligor is not the issuer.

All Credit Rating Actions in S&P Global Ratings' Sole Discretion. S&P Global Ratings may assign, raise,

lower, suspend, place on CreditWatch, or withdraw a credit rating, and assign or revise an Qutlook, at any time,
in S&P Global Ratings' sole discretion. S&P Global Ratings may take any of the foregoing actions
notwithstanding any request for a confidential or private credit rating or a withdrawal of a credit rating, or
termination of a credit rating engagement. S&P Global Ratings will not convert a public credit rating to a
confidential or private credit rating, or a private credit rating to a confidential credit rating.

Publication. S&P Global Ratings reserves the right to use, publish, disseminate, or license others to use, publish
or disseminate a credit rating and any related analytical reports, including the rationale for the credit rating,
unless the issuer specifically requests in connection with the initial credit rating that the credit rating be assigned
and maintained on a confidential or private basis. If, however, a confidential or private credit rating or the
existence of a confidential or private credit rating subsequently becomes public through disclosure other than by
an act of S&P Global Ratings or its affiliates, S&P Global Ratings reserves the right to treat the credit rating as a
public credit rating, including, without limitation, publishing the credit rating and any related analytical reports.
Any analytical reports published by S&P Global Ratings are not issued by or on behalf of the issuer or at the
issuer's request. S&P Global Ratings reserves the right to use, publish, disseminate or license others to use,
publish or disseminate analytical reports with respect to public credit ratings that have been withdrawn,
regardless of the reason for such withdrawal. S&P Global Ratings may publish explanations of S&P Global
Ratings' credit ratings criteria from time to time and S&P Global Ratings may modify or refine its credit ratings
criteria at any time as S&P Global Ratings deems appropriate.

Reliance on Information. $&P Global Ratings relies on issuers and their agents and advisors for the accuracy
and completeness of the information submitted in connection with credit ratings and the surveillance of credit
ratings including, without limitation, information on material changes to information previously provided by
issuers, their agents or advisors. Credit ratings, and the maintenance of credit ratings, may be affected by S&P
Global Ratings' opinion of the information received from issuers, their agents or advisors.

Confidential Information. S&P Global Ratings has established policies and procedures to maintain the
confidentiality of certain non-public information received from issuers, their agents or advisors. For these
purposes, "Confidential Information” shall mean verbal or written information that the issuer or its agents or
advisors have provided to S&P Global Ratings and, in a specific and particularized manner, have marked or
otherwise indicated in writing (either prior to or promptly following such disclosure) that such information is
"Confidential."

S&P Global Ratings Not an Expert, Underwriter or Seller under Securities Laws. S&P Global Ratings has not

consented to and will not consent to being named an "expert" or any similar designation under any applicable
securities laws or other regulatory guidance, rules or recommendations, including without limitation, Section 7
of the U.8. Securities Act of 1933. S&P Global Ratings has not performed and will not perform the role or tasks
associated with an "underwriter" or "seller" under the United States federal securities laws or other regulatory
guidance, rules or recommendations in connection with a credit rating engagement.

Disclaimer of Liability. S&P Global Ratings does not and cannot guarantee the accuracy, completeness, or
timeliness of the information relied on in connection with a credit rating or the results obtained from the use of
such information. S&P GLOBAL RATINGS GIVES NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES,
INCLUDING. BUT NOT LIMITED TO. ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS

PF Ratings U.S. {4/28/16) PFage | 3
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FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE. S&P Global Ratings, its affiliates or third party providers, or any
of their officers, directors, shareholders, employees or agents shall not be liable to any person for any
inaccuracies, errors, or omissions, in each case regardless of cause, actions, damages (consequential, special,
indirect, incidental, punitive, compensatory, exemplary or otherwise), claims, liabilities, costs, expenses, legal
fees or losses (including, without limitation, lost income or lost profits and opportunity costs) in any way arising
out of or relating to a credit rating or the related analytic services even if advised of the possibility of such
damages or other amounts.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in any credit rating engagement, or a credit rating when issued, is
intended or should be construed as creating any rights on behalf of any third parties, including, without
limitation, any recipient of a credit rating. No person is intended as a third party beneficiary of any credit rating
engagement or of a credit rating when issued.

PF Ratings U.S&. (4/28/18] Page 1
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Attachment 35
Audited Financial Statements

UCMC’s financial statements for the years June 30, 2018, 2019 and 2020 are attached.

ATTACHMENT 35
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2020 and 2019
(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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KPMG LLP
Aon Center
Suite 5500
200 E. Randolph Street
Chicago, IL 60601-6436

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Trustees
The University of Chicago Medical Center:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The University of Chicago Medical
Center, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions, changes in net
assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Stafements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financtal statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of The University of Chicage Medical Center as of June 30, 2020 and 2019,
and the results of its consolidated operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions, changes in

its consolidated net assets and of its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG LLP 8 Delswaia Emited |.2biity partnaiship and 8 mamber lven ol
the XPMG p'abal nrganization of indepandent rmambar lirms rfliiaiad with
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ATTACHMENT 35

86



#21-033

kkids!

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements, in 2019, The University of Chicago Medical
Center adopted new accounting guidance for Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842).
Qur opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The 2020 supplementary information included in schedules 1 through 3 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
consclidated financial statements as a whole.

KPMe LP

Chicago, lllinois
November 4, 2020
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER

Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2020 and 2019

(In thousands)

Assets 2020 2019
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 538,725 174,122
Patient accounts receivable 333,676 399,130
Current portion of investments limited to use 58,500 19,292
Current portion of maipractice self-insurance receivable 14,508 15,266
Current portion of pledges receivable 1177 1,434
Prepaids, inventory, and other current assets 176,998 155,424
Total current assets 1,123,584 764,668
Investments limited to use, less current portion 1,227,624 1,243,928
Property, plant, and equipment, net 1,558,348 1,667,756
Pledges receivable, less current portion 1,521 1,438
Malpractice self-insurance receivable, less current portion 81,091 85,361
Other assets, net 108,664 54,891
Tolal assets 4,100,832 3,718,042
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 256,369 241,248
Current portion of long-term debt 20,430 18,098
Current portion of other long-term liabilities 11,766 725
Estimated third-party payor settlements and Medicare Advance 536,847 263,259
Current portion of malpractice self-insurance liability 24,441 15,266
Due to University of Chicago 37,649 30,769
Total current liabilities 887,502 569,365
Other liabilities:
Workers' compensation self-insurance liabilities, less current portion 9,441 6,396
Malpractice self-insurance liability, less current portion 135,029 128,462
Long-term debt, less current portion 966,406 087,858
Interest rate swap liability 193,907 136,186
Other long-term liabilities, less current portion 112,769 40,302
Total liabilities 2,305,054 1,868,569
Net assets:
Without donor restrictions 1,684,093 1,736,382
With donor restrictions 111,685 113,091
Total net assets 1,795,778 1,849,473
Total liabilities and net assets 4,100,832 3,718,042
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

{In thousands)

2020 2019
Operating revenues:
Patient service revenue $ 2,049,057 2,121,969
Other operating revenues and net assets released from
restrictions used for operating purposes 497,747 265,533
Total operating revenues 2,547,704 2,387,502
Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages, and benefits 1,064,665 992,398
Supplies and other 860,110 767,042
Physician services 301,453 283,142
Insurance 30,055 28,082
Interest 42,257 44 456
Medicaid provider tax 66,640 66,640
Depreciation and amortization 131,609 128,198
Total operating expenses 2,496,789 2,310,858
Operating revenue in excess of expenses 50,915 76,644
Nonoperating gains and losses:
Investment income, net 31,033 60,092
Change in fair value of nonhedged derivative instruments {2,318) (2,003)
Derivative ineffectiveness on hedged derivative instrumants (395) 1,190
Other, net (3,677) 7,706
Revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses 75,558 143,629
Other changes in net assets without donor restrictions:
Net asset transfers to University of Chicago (71,750) (71,750)
Change in accrued pension benefits other than net periodic
benefit costs (2,823) {14,787)
Effective portion of change in valuation of derivatives (53,268) (29,233)
Net assets released from restriction for capital purposes 5 462
Distributions and other, net {(11) (738)
{Decrease) increase in net assets without donor restrictions  § {52,289) 27,583
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

{In thousands)

20

2020 2019
Net assets without donor restrictions:
Revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses 5 75,558 143,629
Net asset transfers to University of Chicago, net {71,750) {(71,750)
Change in accrued pension benefits other than net periodic (2,823) (14,787)
benefit cost
Effective portion of change in valuation of derivatives (53,268) (29,233)
Net assets released from restrictions for capital purposes 5 462
Distributions and other, net {11) {738)
{Decrease) increase in net assets without donor restrictions {52,289) 27,583
Net assets with donor restrictions:
Contributions 5,671 4.443
Net assets released from restrictions used for operating purposes (8,549) (7,072)
Investment income 1.477 4714
Net assets released from restrictions for capital purposes (5) (462)
increase {decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets (1,406) 1,623
Change in net assets (53,695) 29,206
Net assets at beginning of year 1,849,473 1,820,267
Net assets at end of year $ 1,795,778 1,849,473
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

{In thousands} 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assels $ (53,695) 29,206
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assels to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Net change in unrealized gains and losses on investments 19,902 {14,057)
Net asset transfers to University of Chicago 71,750 71,750
Restricted contributions and investment return (7.148) {9,157}
Realized gains on investments (38.505) (31,705}
Net change in valuation of derivatives 57,721 31,774
Change in accrued pension benefits other than net period benefit cost and other 2,823 14,787
Loss on refinancing of long-term debt 2,347 —
Loss on disposal of assets 4,135 —
Net assets released from restrictions for operations 8,549 7.072
Payment of lease obligations (8,383) —
Depraciation and amortization 131,609 128,198
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Patient accounts receivable 65,454 (51,260)
Other assets {8,719) (43,412)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 12,013 {11,694)
Due to University of Chicago 6,880 (6,038)
Estimated settlements with third-party payors and Medicare Advance 273,588 49,075
Self-insurance liabilities 18,787 (303)
Other liabilities 27,642 {(9,846)
Net cash provided by operating activities 586,750 154,390
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment (117,654) (90,555)
Change in construction payables (3,108) 1,518
Purchases of investments (614,131) (437,136)
Sales of investments 609,830 428,963
Net cash used in investing activities {125,063) {97,210)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, including bond premium 128,360 —_
Additional repayment of long-term debt (120,640) —_
Payment of finance lease obligation (2,466) -
Payments on long-term obligations {29,187} (25,144)
Draws on revolving credit facility 100,000 —_
Paymenits on revolving credit facility (100,000) —_
Net asset transfers to University of Chicago, net {71,750) {71,750)
Net assets released from restriction for operations (8,549) (7,072)
Restricted contributions and investment retum 7,148 9,157
Net cash used in financing activities (97.084) (94,809)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 364,603 (37,629)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 174,122 211,751
End of year $ 538,726 174,122

Nen-cash transactions:
Other assets included for right-of-use assets — operating leases as a result of adopting
ASU No. 842, Leases 53,043

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2020 and 2019
(Dollars in thousands)

Organization and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements represent the accounts of The University of Chicago
Medical Center and its affiliates (the System). The University of Chicago Medical Center {(UCMC) is the
parent of an integrated nonprofit health care organization, partnering with the University of Chicago
Biological Sciences Division, the University of Chicago Pritzker School of Medicine, and the University of
Chicago Physicians Group to provide world-class medical care in an academic setting. UCMC operates the
Center for Care and Discovery, the Bernard Mitchell Hospital, the Chicago Lying-In Hospital, the University
of Chicago Comer Children's Hospital, the Duchossois Center for Advanced Medicine, the University of
Chicago Medicine Care Network, the UCM Community Health and Hospital Division, Inc. (CHHD}, and
various other outpatient clinics and treatment areas. In May 2018, UCMC opened its Level 1 Trauma
Center to serve the South Side of Chicago and surrounding community.

On June 28, 2019 UCMC amended its Obligated Group to include the following entities: UCMC (excludes
the University of Chicago Medicine Care Network, UCMC Title Holding Corporation and UCMC Title
Holding Corporation Il NFP), Ingalls Health System, ingalls Memorial Hospital, Ingalls Development
Foundation, and Ingalls Home Care as presented in the supplemental consolidating schedules. Entities of
UCMC that are included in the Non-Obligated Group are the University of Chicago Medicine Care Network,
University of Chicago Medicine Medical Group, UCMC Title Holding Corporation, and UCMC Title Holding
Corporation It NFP. Entities of CHHD that are included in the Non-Obligated Group are Ingalls Provider
Group, Ingalls Care Network, Medcentrix, Ingalls Health Ventures, Ingalls Casualty Insurance, and Ingails
Same Day Surgery. These are presented in the supplemental schedules as “Other Non-Obligated Group
Entities” for purposes on consolidation.

The University of Chicago (the University), as the sole corporate member of UCMC, elects UCMC's Board
of Trustees and approves its bylaws. The UCMC President reports to the University's Executive Vice
President for Medical Affairs. The relationship between UCMC and the University is defined in the Medical
Center bylaws, an affiliation agreement, an operating agreement, and several leases, See note 4 for
agreements and transactions with the University.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{a) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the System have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

{b} New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842).
ASU No. 2016-02 which requires entities to recognize all leased assets as assets on the consolidated
balance sheet with a corresponding liability. Entities are also required to present additional disclosures
as to the nature and extent of leasing activities. The System implemented the new standard effective
July 1, 2019. Presentation of the right-of-use (ROU) asset and lease liabilities within the consolidated
balance sheets as well as other factors impacting the recording of leases as dictated by ASU No. 2016-
02 is included in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2020 and 2019
{Dollars in thousands)

(c) COVID-19 Pandemic and CARES Act Funding

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization designated COVID-19 as a global pandemic.
Patient volumes and the related revenues for most of our services were significantly impacted in the
last two weeks of the third quarter of fiscal year 2020 and continued to be impacted in the fourth
quarter of 2020. Various pclicies were implemented by federal, state, and iocal governments in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic that have caused many people to remain at home and forced the
closure of or limitations on certain businesses, as well as suspended elective surgical procedures by
health care facilities. While some of these restrictions have been eased across the U.S. and most
states have lifted moratoriums on non-emergent procedures, some restrictions remain in place, and
some state and local governments are reimposing certain restrictions due to increasing rates of
COVID-19 cases. Patient volumes and revenues experienced gradual improvement beginning in the
latter part of April and continuing through the end of the quarter.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020, the System received approximately $200,643 in general
and targeted Provider Relief Fund distributions, as provided for under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security ("CARES") Act. Of this amount, $44,480 was received from the $50 billion general
distribution fund, and $156,163 was received from the targeted distributions from the CARES Act
Provider Relief Fund. Generally these distributions from the Provider Relief Fund are not subject to
repayment, provided the recipient is able to attest to and comply with the terms and conditions of the
funding, including demonstrating that the distributions received have been used for healthcare-related
expenses or lost revenue attributable to COVID-19. Such payments are accounted for as government
grants and are recognized on a systematic and rational basis as other income once there is reasonable
assurance that the applicable terms and conditions required to retain the funds will be met. Based on
an analysis of the compliance and reporting requirements of the Provider Relief Fund and the impact of
the pandemic on operating results through June 30, 2020, the System recognized $149,028, related to
these general distribution funds as part of ‘other operating revenue’ in the consolidated statement of
operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions. The unrecognized amount of general
distributions and targeted distributions are recorded as estimated third-party payor seftlements and
Medicare Advance in the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2020. The System will continue to
monitor compliance with the terms and conditions of the Provider Relief Fund and the impact of the
pandemic on our revenues and expenses. If the System is unable to attest to or comply with current or
future terms and conditions, the ability to retain some or all of the distributions received may be
impacted.

In addition, during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020, the System received $214,500 of accelerated
Medicare payments under the Medicare Advanced Payment Program {APP). APP payments allow
eligible healthcare facilities to request up to six months of advance Medicare payments for acute care
hospitals or up to three months of advance Medicare payments for other healthcare providers. After
120 days of receipt, claims for services provided to Medicare beneficiaries will be applied against the
advance payment balance. Any unapplied advance payment amounts must be paid in full within one
year from receipt of the advance payments for acute care hospitals and within 120 days for other
healthcare providers. As of June 30, 2020, the System has recorded the APP payments as estimated
third-party payor settlements and Medicare advance on the consolidated balance sheet.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2020 and 2019
{Dollars in thousands)

On September 19, 2020 and again on October 22, 2020, the Department of Health and Human
Services provided Post-Payment Notice of Reporting Requirements for providers that received funding
under the CARES Act. The provisions within this notice provide new guidance on healthcare related
expenses attributable to COVID-19 and “lost revenue.” The guidance is considered a Type !l
subsequent event and are therefore not reflected as of June 30, 2020. The System is in the process of
considering the future impact of this new guidance.

On September 30, 2020, federal legislation extended the terms of APP payments such that any claims
for services provided to Medicare beneficiaries will be applied against the advance payment balance
beginning 365 days after receipt.

The CARES Act also provides for a deferral of payments of the employer portion of social security
payroll tax incurred during the pandemic, allowing half of such payroll taxes to be deferred until
December 2021 and the remaining half until December 2022. The System has deferred payroll taxes
and recorded the deferral under the caption of accrued expenses on the consolidated balance sheet.
Additionally, the CARES Act provides for a payroll tax credit designed to encourage retention of
employees during the pandemic. The System is evaluating its eligibility and related data for
consideration of the employee retention credit.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Community Benefits

The System's policy is to treat patients in immediate need of medical services without regard to their
ability to pay for such services, including patients transferred from other hospitals under the provisions
of the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act. UCMC also accepts patients through the
Perinatal and Pediatric Trauma Networks without regard to their ability to pay for services.

The System developed a Financial Assistance Policy (the Policy) under which patients are offered
discounts of up to 100% of charges on a sliding scale. The Policy is based both on income as a
percentage of the Federal Poverty Level guidelines and the charges for services rendered. The Policy
also contains provisions that are responsive to those patients subject to catastrophic healthcare
expenses. Since the System does not pursue collection of these amounts, they are not reported as
patient service revenue. The estimated cost of providing care under this Policy, along with the
unreimbursed cost of government sponsored indigent healthcare programs, unreimbursed cost to
support education, clinical research, and other community programs for the years ended June 30, 2020
and 2019, are reported in note 6.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2020 and 2019
{Dollars in thousands)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the price that the System would receive upon selling an asset or pay to settle a
liability in an orderly transaction among market participants.

The System uses a framework for measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy that categorizes and
prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value. This hierarchy is broken down into
three levels based on inputs that market participants would use in valuing the financial instruments
based on market data obtained from sources independent of the System. Inputs refer broadly to the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset, including assumptions about risk.
Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that refiect the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the asset developed based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting
entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset
developed based on the best information available. The three tier hierarchy of inputs is summarized in
the three broad levels as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted market prices in active markets for identical investments

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices for similar investments in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar investments in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted prices
that are observable, including model-based valuation techniques

Level 3 - Valuation techniques that use significant inputs that are unobservable because they trade
infrequently or not at all.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include U.S. Treasury notes, commercial paper, and corporate notes with original
maturities of three months or less, excluding investments whose use is limited. Cash equivalents held
by investment managers are treated as investing activity in the statement of cash flows.

Inventory

The System values inventories at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out method.

Investments

Investments are classified as trading securities. As such, investment income or loss (including realized
or changes in unrealized gains and losses on investments, interest, and dividends) is included in
excess of revenue and gains over expenses and losses unless the income is restricted by donor or law.

10 {Continued)
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2020 and 2019
(Dollars in thousands)

Investments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements at estimated fair value. If an
investment is held directly by an entity and an active market with quoted prices exists, the market price
of an identical security Is used as reported fair value. Reported fair values for shares in mutual funds
are based on share prices reported by the funds as of the last business day of the fiscal year. The
System's interests in alternative investment funds, such as private debt, private equity, real estate,
natural resources, and absolute return, are generally reported at the net asset value (NAV) reported by
the fund managers, which is used as a practical expedient to estimate the fair value, unless it is
probable that all or a portfon of the investment will be sold for an amount different from NAV. As of
June 30, 2020 and 20189, the System had no plans to sell investments at amounts different from NAV.

A significant portion of the System'’s investments are part of the University's Total Return Investment
Pool (TRIP). The System accounts for its investments in TRIP on the fair value method based on its
share of the underlying securities and, accordingly, records the investment activity as if the System
owned the investments directly using the fair value option election. The University does not engage
directly in unhedged speculative investments; however, the Board of the University has authorized the
use of derivative investments to adjust market exposure within asset class ranges.

A summary of the inputs used in valuing the System's investments as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 is
included in note 7.

Investments Limited as to Use

Investments limited as to use primarily include assets held by trustees under debt and other
agreements and designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees (the Board) for future capital
improvements and other specific purposes, over which the Board retains control and may at its
discretion subsequently use for other purposes. Investments limited as to use also include investments
held under swap collateral posting requirements, investments under the workers’ compensation
self-insurance trust funds, and investments whose use is restricted by donors. Investments limited as to
use are reported as net assets without donor restrictions. Investments whose use is restricted by
donors are reported as net assets with donor restrictions.

Derivative Instruments

The System accounts for derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, which requires that all derivative instruments
be recorded as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet at their respective fair
values.

For hedging relationships, the System formally documents the hedging relationship and its risk
management objective and strategy for understanding the hedge, the hedging instrument, the nature of
the risk being hedged, how the hedging investment’s effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be
assessed, and a description of the method for measuring ineffectiveness. This process includes linking
all derivatives that are presented as cash flow hedges to specific assets and liabilities in the
consolidated batance sheet.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2020 and 2019
(Dollars in thousands)

() Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are reported on the basis of cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives,
which generally range from three to eighty years. Interest costs incurred during the period of
construction of capital assets are capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets.

Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions by donors that specify how the assets are to be used
and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as
restricted contributions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must
be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived
assets are placed in service.

The System periodically assesses the recoverability of long-lived assets (including property, plant, and
equipment) when indications of potential impairment based on estimated, undiscounted future cash
flows exist. Management considers factors, such as current results, trends, and future prospects, in
addition to other economic factors, in determining whether there is an impairment of the asset. There
were no impairments of long-lived assets during 2020 or 2019.

{m) Net Assets

Net assets are classified into two classes of net assets: without donor restrictions and with donor
resfrictions. Descriptions of the two net asset categories and the types of transactions affecting each
category follows:

Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. ltems that
affect this net asset category principally consist of fees for service and related expenses associated
with the core activities of the System: patient care and provision of healthcare services. In addition to
these exchange transactions, changes in this category of net assets include investment returns on
“funds functioning as endowment” funds, actuarial adjustments to self-insurance liabilities, changes in
post retirement benefit obligations, and other types of philanthropic support. The philanthropic support
includes gifts without restriction, board designated funds functioning as endowment and restricted gifts
whose donor-imposed restrictions were met during the fiscal year, as well as previously restricted gifts
and grants for buildings and equipment that have been placed in service.

With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that will be met either by
actions of the System or the passage of time. Iltems that affect this net asset category are gifts for
which donor-imposed restrictions have not been met in the year of receipt, including gifts and grants for
buildings and equipment not yet placed in service; endowment, annuity, and life income gifts; pledges
and investment returns on “true” endowment funds, and endowments where the principal may be
expended upon the passage of a stated period of time (term endowments). Expirations of restrictions
on net assets with donor restrictions, including reclassification of restricted gifts and grants for buildings
and equipment when the associated long-lived asset is placed in service, are reported as net assets
released from restrictions.

Also included in net assets with donor restrictions are net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions
to be maintained permanently by the System, including gifts and pledges wherein donors stipulate that
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2020 and 2019
{Dollars in thousands)

the principalicorpus of the gift be held in perpetuity and that only the income be made available for
program operations. Other permanently restricted items in this net asset category include annuity and
life income gifts for which the ultimate purpose of the proceeds is permanently restricted.

The description of amounts classified as donor restricted net assets (endowments only) as of June 30,
2020 and 2019 is as follows:

Time Time
restricted restricted 2020
Perpetual by donor by law Total
Restricted for pediatric healthcare $ 4,023 —_ 17.093 21,116
Restricted for adult healthcare 4,061 - 56,337 60,398
Restricted for educational and
scientific programs 9,186 — 2,589 11,785
$ 17,280 — 76,019 93,299
Time Time
restricted restricted 2019
Perpetual by donor by law Total
Restricted for pediatric healthcare $ 4,058 — 17,673 21,73
Restricted for adult healthcare 4117 — 57,255 61,372
Restricted for educationai and
scientific programs 9,323 — 2,862 12,185
$ 17,498 — 77.790 95,288

The endowment component of net assets without donor restrictions comprises of amounts designated
by the Board to function as endowment, which amounted to $911,642 and $923,571 included within
investments limited to use as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Without Donor Raestrictions

All activities of the System deemed by management to be ongoing, major, and central to the provision
of healthcare services are reported as operating revenue and expenses.

The consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions includes
revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions
that are excluded from revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses include net asset transfers
to the University, contributions of long-lived assets released from restrictions (including assets acquired
using contributions, which by donor restriction were to be used for acquisition of System assets), net
assets released from restriction for capital purchases, the effective portion of changes in the valuation
of derivatives, change in accrued pension benefits other than net periodic benefit costs, and other, net.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2020 and 2019
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(o) Patient Service Revenue, Accounts Receivable, Charity Care, and Third Party Settlements
{i) Patlient Service Revenues

Gross charges are retail charges and generally do not reflect what the System is ultimately paid
and, therefore, are not displayed in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets without donor restrictions. The System is typically paid amounts that are negotiated with
insurance companies or are set by the government. Gross charges are used to calculate Medicare
outlier payments and to determine certain elements of payment under managed care contracts
{such as stop-loss payments). Because Medicare requires that gross charges be the same for all
patients (regardless of payer category), gross charges are what is charged to all patients prior to
the application of discounts and allowances.

The System recognizes revenue in the period in which it satisfies the performance obligations
under contracts by transferring the services to its customers. The performance obligations for
patient contracts are generally completed when the patients are discharged, which generally
occurs within days or weeks of the end of the reporting period. In accordance with ASC Topic 606,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the System does not adjust the promised amount of
consideration from patients and third-party payors for the effects of a significant financing
component due to the expectation that the period between the time the service is provided to a
patient and the time that the patient or a third-party payor pays for that service will be one year or
less. Revenues are recognized in the amounts to which it expects to be entitled, which are the
transaction prices allocated to the distinct services.

The System has agreements with governmental and other third-party payors that provide for
payments to the System at amounts different from established charges. Payment arrangements for
major third-party payors may be based on prospectively determined rates, reimbursed cost,
discounted charges, per diem payments, or other methods. The transaction price is determined
based on gross charges for services provided, reduced by explicit price concessions provided to
third-party payers, discounts provided to uninsured patients in accordance with the Financial
Assistance Program, and implicit price concessions provided primarily to uninsured patients. The
estimates of explicit price concessions and discounts are based on contractual agreements,
discount policies, and historical experience. The estimates of implicit price concessions are based
on historical collection experience with these classes of patients using the portfolio approach.

(i)} Charity Care

The System provides charity care to patients who meet the criteria for charity care as published in
their Financial Assistance Policy. Patients who qualify are provided care without charge or at
amounts less than established rates. System policy is not to pursue collection of amounts
determined to qualify as charity care; therefore, they do not report these amounts in patient service
revenues. Patient advocates from the System screen patients in the hospital to determine whether
those patients meet eligibility requirements for financial assistance programs. They also expedite
the process of applying for government programs.
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{iii)  Third Party Settlements

Revenues under the traditional fee-for-service Medicare and Medicaid programs are based
primarily on prospective payment systems. Retrospectively determined cost-based revenues under
these programs, which were more prevalent in earlier periods, and certain other payments, such as
Indirect Medical Education, Direct Graduate Medical Education, disproportionate share hospital,
and bad debt expense reimbursement, which are based on the hospitals’ cost reports, are
estimated using historical trends and current factors. Cost report settiements under these programs
are subject to audit by Medicare and Medicaid auditors and administrative and judicial review, and
it can take several years until final settlement of such matters is determined and completely
resolved. Because the laws, regulations, instructions, and rule interpretations governing Medicare
and Medicaid reimbursement are complex and change frequently, the estimates recorded could
change by material amounts.

The System has an estimation process for recording Medicare patient service revenue and
estimated cost report settlements. As a result, the System record accruals to reflect the expected
final settlements on our cost reports. For filed cost reports, the System records the accrual based
on those cost reports and subsequent activity and record a valuation allowance against those cost
reports based on historical settlement trends. The accrual for periods for which a cost report is yet
to be filed is recorded based on estimates of what are expected to report on the filed cost reports,
and a corresponding valuation allowance is recorded as previously described. Cost reports
generally must be filed within five months after the end of the annual cost reporting period. After the
cost report is filed, the accrual and corresponding valuation allowance may need to be adjusted.

Settlements with third-party payers for retroactive revenue adjustments due to audits, reviews, or
investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the
estimated transaction price for providing patient care using the most likely outcome method. These
settlements are estimated based on the terms of the payment agreement with the payer,
correspondence from the payor and historical settlement activity, including an assessment to
ensure thatit is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is subsequently
resolved. Estimated settiements are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known (that
is, new information becomes available), or as years are settled or are no longer subject to such
audits, reviews, and investigations. Adjustments from the finalization of prior years' cost reports
and other third-party seftiement estimates resulted in an increase in patient service revenues of
$9,152 and $190, for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

{p) Hospital Assessment Program/Medicaid Provider Tax

In December 2008, the State of lllinois, after receiving approval by the federal government,
implemented a hospital assessment program for the period from July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2013,
The program was extended in July 2012 to December 31, 2014 and again in June 2014 to June 30,
2018. In June 2018, the State of lllinois approved SB 1773, which was signed into lllinois Public Law
100-581. The law redesigned the original program as well as the ACA program described below. Under
the program, most hospitals in the State of lllinois will provide funding to the state government, which is
subsequently matched by the federal government vielding increased Medicaid reimbursement.
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In March 2010, the federal government passed the ACA, which expanded Medicaid coverage

to millions of low-income Americans and made improvements to both the Medicaid and the Children’s
Health Insurance Program. Beginning in 2016, coverage for newly eligible adults was expanded to
include adults covered by an authorized Medicaid managed care organization, which would be funded
by the federal government. Both changes were part of the original assessment program described
above and were collapsed into the hospital assessment redesign effective July 1, 2018 through
December 31, 2022.

In 2020, reimbursement under the assessment programs resulted in a net increase of $72,489 in
operating income, which includes $139,129 in Medicaid payments included in patient service revenue
offset by $66,640 in Medicaid provider tax expense. In 2019, reimbursement under the assessment
programs resulted in a net increase of $65,962 in operating income, which includes $132,602 in
Medicaid payments included in patient service revenue offset by $66,640 in Medicaid provider tax
expense.

Other Revenue

Other operating revenue includes revenue from nonpatient care services, clinical space rental revenue,
contributions both unrestricted in nature and those released from restriction to support operating
activities, related grant income, premium and capitation revenues and other miscellaneous income.

Premium and capitation revenues are received and recognized as revenue ratably over the period for
which the enrolled member is entitled to healthcare services. The timing of the System’s performance
may differ from the timing of the payment received, which may result in the recognition of a contract
asset or a contract liability. The System has no material contract assets or liabilities at June 30, 2020
relating to prernium and capitation revenue.

Revenue from grants is recognized in accordance with ASC Subtopic 958-605, Not-for-profit entities —
Revenue recognition, as other operating revenue, when the conditions of the contributions are
substantially met.

Revenue from non-grant sources is generally recognized at point of service for these transactions in
accordance with ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

Income Taxes

The System applies ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements. ASC Topic 740 prescribes a more likely
than not recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken. Under ASC Topic 740, tax positions are
evaluated for recognition, derecognition, and measurement using consistent criteria and provide more
information about the uncertainty in income tax assets and liabilities. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019,
the Systern does not have an asset or liability recorded for unrecognized tax positions.

UCMC and CHHD Obligated Groups are comprised of subsidiaries that are not-for-profit corporations
as described in Section 501(c)3) of the internal Revenue Code (the Code) and therefore exempt from
federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. UCMC and CHHD
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Non-Obligated Groups consist of several not-for-profit and taxable entities, including University of
Chicago Medicine Care Network, LLC; Ingalls Captive Insurance, Ltd; Medcentrix, Inc.; Ingalls Same
Day Surgery; and Ingalls Provider Group (IPG}, which are taxable entities under applicable sections of
the Code.

Deferred income taxes on the taxable entities of the Non-Obligated Groups are recognized for the tax
consequences of “temporary differences” by applying enacted statutory tax rates applicable to future
years to differences between the consolidated financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases
of existing assets and liabilities. As of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, the UCMC and CHHD
nonobligated groups have deferred tax assets primarily relating to net operating losses (NOL) of
$16,431 and $17,162, respectively; however, it has a full valuation allowance as management believes
that it was not more likely than not that the results of future operations would generate sufficient taxable
income to realize the NOL.

Reclassifications

Certain 2019 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2020 consclidated financial statement
presentation.

Subsequent Events

In connection with the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and in accordance with
ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Events, the System evaluated events and transactions through
November 4, 2020, the date the consolidated financial statements were issued, noting no subsequent
events requiring recording or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements or related notes to the
consolidated financial statements other than the items noted within the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Financial Assets and Liquidity Resources

As of June 30, financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure,
such as operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on debt, and capital construction costs not
financed with debt, were as follows:

Financial assets: 2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents $ 538,725 174,122
Patient accounts receivable 333,676 389,130

Total financial assets available within one year 872,401 573,252

Liquidity resources:

Bank lines of credit 200,000 100,000
Total financial assets and liquidity rescurces
available within one year $ 1,072,401 673,252

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses % 256,369 241,248
Estimated third-party payor settlements 536,847 263,259
Current portion of long-term debt 20,430 18,098
Other current liabilities 11,766 725

Total current liabilities $ 825,412 523,330

The System's cash flows have seasonal variations during the year attributable to patient service
reimbursement from the State of lllinois, payments from patients and insurance. As discussed in note
10(d), to manage liquidity, the System maintains lines of credit with financial institutions to potentially draw
funds as needed during the year to manage cash flows. As of June 30, 2020, amounts outstanding under
lines of credit amounted to $0. In addition, as of June 30, 2020, the System has $911,642 in funds
functioning as endowment and $209,450 of CHHD investments, alt available for general expenditure upon
Board approval, of which $682,595 is liquid within 12 months. As of June 30, 2019, the System had
$923,571 in funds functioning as endowment and $213,383 of CHHD investments, all availabie for general
expenditure upon Board approval, of which $761,284 was liquid within 12 months.

Agreements and Transactions with the University

The affiliation agreement with the University provides, among other things, that all members of the medical
staff will have academic appointments in the University. The affiliation agreement has an initial term of

40 years ending October 1, 2026 unless sooner terminated by mutual consent or as a result of a continuing
breach of a material obligation therein or in the operating agreement. The affiliation agreement
automatically renews for additional successive 10-year terms following expiration of the initial term, unless
either party provides the other with at least two years’ prior written notice of its election not to renew.
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The operating agreement, as amended, provides, among other things, that the University provides UCMC
the right to use and operate certain facilities. The operating agreement is coterminous with the affiliation
agreement.

The lease agreements provide, among other things, that UCMC will lease from the University certain of the
healthcare facilities and tand that UCMC operates and occupies. The lease agreements are coterminous
with the affiliation agreement.

UCMC purchases various services from the University, including certain employee benefits, utilities,
security, telecommunications, and insurance. In addition, certain UCMC accounting records are maintained
by the University. During the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the University charged UCMC $32,392
and $31,036, respectively, for utilities, security, telecommunications, insurance, and overhead.

The University's Division of Biological Sciences provides physician services to UCMC. In 2020 and 2019,
UCMC recorded $271,868 and $259,650, respectively, in expense related to these services.

UCMC'’s Board of Trustees adopted a plan of support under which it would provide annual net asset
transfers to the University for support of academic programs in biology and medicine. All commitments
under this plan are subject to the approval of UCMC’s Board of Trustees and do not represent legally
binding commitments until that approval. Unpaid portions of commitments approved by the UCMC Board of
Trustees are reflected as current liabilities. UCMC recorded net asset transfers of $71,750 In both 2020
and 2019 for this support.

Patient Service Revenue and Patient Receivables

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for reimbursement at amounts different
from their established rates. A summary of the reimbursement methodologies with major third-party payors
is as follows:

{a) Medicare

The System is paid for various services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries under
prospectively determined rates. These rates vary according to patient classification systems that are
based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. The prospectively determined rates are not subject to
retroactive adjustment. The System’s classification of patients under the prospective payment systems
and the appropriateness of the patients' admissions are subject to validation reviews.

Other services rendered to Medicare beneficiaries are reimbursed based on a combination of
prospectively determined rates and cost reimbursement methodologies. For the cost reimbursement,
the System is reimbursed at a tentative rate with final settlement determined after submission of annual
cost reports by the System and audits by the Medicare fiscal intermediary. UCMC's Medicare
reimbursement reports through June 30, 2014 have been audited by the Medicare fiscal intermediary.
CHHD's Medicare reimbursement reports through September 30, 2014 have been audited by the
Medicare fiscal intermediary.
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(b) Medicaid

{c)

(d)

The System is paid for inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries under
prospectively determined rates per discharge. For inpatient acute care services, payment rates vary
according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors.
Medicaid outpatient services are reimbursed based on fee schedules. Medicaid reimbursement
methodologies may be subject to periodic adjustment, as well as to changes in existing payment levels
and rates, based on the amount of funding available to the State of lllinois Medicaid program and any
such changes could have a significant effect on the System’s revenue.

Bilue Cross

The System also participates as a provider of healthcare services under reimbursement agreements
with Blue Cross under its indemnity program. The provisions of the agreements stipulate that services
will be reimbursed at a tentative reimbursement rate and that final reimbursement for these services is
determined after the submission of an annual cost report by the System and a review by Blue Cross.
UCMC’s and CHHD's Blue Cross reimbursement reports for 2019 and prior years have been reviewed
by Blue Cross.

Other

The System has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers,
health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. The basis for payment under
these agreements is negotiated by the System and includes prospectively determined rates per
discharge, discounts from established charges, and prospectively determined per diem rates.

Patient service revenue recognized in the period from these major payor sources are as follows:

2020 2019
Medicare $ 610,312 587,322
Medicaid 467,352 463,259
Managed care 962,261 1,054,753
Patients and other 10,033 6,635
Patient senice revenue $ 2,049,958 2,121,969

Patient service revenue recognized in the period by type of service is as follows:

2020 2019
Inpatient $ 1,117,235 1,108,813
Outpatient/Ambulatory care 912,195 987,717
Physician senvices 20,527 25,439
3 2,049,857 2,121,969
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The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

2020 2019
Medicare 23.5 % 19.0 %
Medicaid 31.8 35.1
Managed care 42.0 44.6
Patients and other 2.7 1.3
100.0 % 100.0 %

{6) Community Benefits

The following is a summary of the System’s unreimbursed cost of providing care, as defined under its
Financial Assistance Policy, along with the unreimbursed cost of government-sponsored indigent

healthcare programs, unreimbursed cost to support education, clinical research, and other community
programs for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Uncompensated care:

Medicaid sponsored indigent heatthcare $ 140,705 70,991
Medicare sponsored indigent healthcare — cost report 163,249 162,160
Medicare sponscred indigent healthcare — physician services 43,786 21,751
Total uncompensated care 347,740 254,902
Charity care 47,033 33,266
394,773 288,168

Unreimbursed education and research:
Education {unaudited) 62,066 59,528
Research (unaudited) 48,000 48,000
Total unreimbursed education and research _ 110,066 107,528
Total community benefits $ 504,839 395,696

The System determines the costs associated with providing charity care by aggregating the applicable
direct and indirect costs, including salaries, wages and benefits, supplies, and other operating expenses, to
determine a cost-to-charge ratio. The cost to charge ratio is applied to the charity care gross charges to
calculate the charity care amount reported above. The System has not amended its financial assistance
policies in 2020,
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(7) investments Limited as to Use
The composition of investments limited as to use is as follows at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020
Separately .
invested TRIP Other Total 2019
Investments carried at fair value:
Cash equivalents $ 157,738 39,241 200 197,179 12,587
Global public equities 27,899 338,192 -—_ 366,091 396,369
Private debt —_ 50,082 - 50,082 48 412
Private equity:
LS. venture capital 238 73,468 - 73,706 68,637
U.S. corporate finance — 40,391 — 40,391 37,173
International — 87,384 -_ 87,384 66,522
Real assets:
Real estate — 56,175 - 56,175 59,443
Natural resources —_— 51,808 —_ 51,808 63,373
Absolute return:
Equity oriented —_ 71,163 —_ 71,163 60,733
Global macro/relative value — 31,161 - 31,161 48,038
Multistrategy =5 60,177 — 60,177 65,510
Credit oriented —_ 39,622 — 39,622 52,344
Protection criented —_ 19,072 —_ 19,072 18,402
Fixed income:
U.S. Treasuries, including TIPS — 57,011 -_— 57,011 58,529
Other fixed income 4 — — 4 163,168
Other:
Beneficial interests in trust — —_ 9,085 9,085 9,303
Funds in trust — — 76,013 76,013 34,677
Total investments $ 185,879 1,014,947 85,298 1,286,124 1 |263|22°

Investments classified as other consist of construction and debt proceeds to pay interest, donor restricted
investments in beneficial interests in trusts, workers’ compensation, self-insurance, and trustee-held funds.
Investments limited as to use are classified as current assets to the extent that they are available to meet
current liabilities. Investments are presented in the consolidated financial statements as follows:

2020 2018
Current portion of investments limited to use $ 58,500 19,292
Investments limited to use, less current portion 1,227,624 1,243,928
Total investments imited to use $ 1,286,124 1,263,220
22 {Continued)
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A summary of investments limited as to use for the years ended June 30 is as follows:

2020
UCMC CHHD Total 2019
Investments fimited as to use:
By the board for capital
improvements/restrictions
by donors $ 160,913 34,250 195,163 267,802
Funds held by custedian/trustee
under indenture agreements 145 = 145 185
Funds held by trustee for
seff-insurance 6,166 14,603 20,769 20,742
Collateral for interest rate swap 53,160 1,840 55,100 13,750
TRIP investments 830,662 184,285 1,014,847 960,741
Total investments
fimited to use $ 1,051,046 235,078 1,286,124 1,263,220

The composition of investment income, net is as follows for the years ended June 30:

2020
UCMC CHHD Total 2019
Interest and dividend income, net 3 10,250 2,180 12,430 14,330
Realized gains on sales
of securities, net 32,887 5618 38,505 31,705
Change in unrealized gains
and losses on securities, net {19,354) {548) {19,902} 14,057
$ 23,783 7.250 31,033 60,092

Outside of TRIP, UCMC also invests in private equity limited partnerships. As of June 30, 2020, UCMC has
commitments of $1,681 remaining to fund private equity limited partnerships.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The overall investment objective of the System is to invest its assets in a prudent manner that will achieve
a long-term rate of return sufficient to fund a portion of its annual operating activities and increase
investment value after inflation. The System diversifies its investments among various asset classes
incorporating multiple strategies and external investment managers, including the University Investment
Office. Major investment decisions for investments held in TRIP and managed by the University are
authorized by the University Board of Trustee’s investment Committee, which oversees the University's
investment program in accordance with established guidelines.
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The carrying amount reported in the consolidated statements of financial position for the following
approximates fair value because of the short maturities of these instruments: cash and cash equivalents,
patient accounts receivabie, accounts payable and accrued expenses, and estimated payables under
third-party reimbursement programs. Cash equivalent investments include cash equivalents and
fixed-income investments, with maturities of less than three months, which are valued based on quoted
market prices in active markets. The majority of these investments are held in U.S. money market
accounts. Global public equity investments consist of separate accounts, commingled funds, and limited
partnerships. Securities held in separate accounts and daily traded commingled funds are generally valued
based on quoted market prices in active markets. Commingled funds with monthly liquidity are valued
based on independently determined NAV. Limited partnership interests in equity-oriented funds are valued
based upon NAV provided by external fund managers.

Investments in private debt, private equity, real estate, and natural resources are in the form of limited
partnership interests, which typically invest in private securities for which there is no readily determinable
market value. In these cases, market value is determined by external managers based on a combination of
discounted cash flow analysis, industry comparables, and outside appraisals. Where private equity, real
estate, and natural resources managers hold publicly traded securities, these securities are generally
valued based on market prices. The value of the limited parinership interests is held at the manager's
reported NAV, unless information becomes available indicating the reported NAV may require adjustment,
The methods used by managers to assess the NAV of these external investments vary by asset class. The
University’s Investment Office monitors the valuation methodologies and practices of managers on behalf
of the System.

The absolute return portfolio comprises investments of limited partnership interests in hedge funds and
drawdown private equity style partnerships whose managers have the authority to invest in various asset
classes at their discretion, including the ability to invest long and short. The majority of the underlying
holdings are marketable securities. The remainder of the underlying holdings is held in marketable
securities that trade infrequently or in private investments, which are valued by the manager on the basis of
an appraised value, discounted cash flow, industry comparables, or some other method. Most hedge funds
that hold illiquid investments designate them in special side pockets, which are subject to special
restrictions on redemption.

24
ATTACHMENT 35

109



#21-033

THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2020 and 2019
{Dollars in thousands)

Fixed-income investments consist of directly held actively traded treasuries, separately managed accounts,
commingled funds, and bond mutual funds that hold securities, the majority of which have maturities
greater than one year. These are valued based on quoted market prices in active markets.

Beneficial interests in trusts represent restricted investments that are assets held by third-party trustees for
beneficial interests in perpetual trusts, comprising equities, fixed-income securities, and money market
funds.

Funds in trust investments consist primarily of project construction funds and workers’ compensation trust
funds. Funds in trust comprise 1% cash and cash equivalents, 95% fixed income investments, and 4%
equity investments at June 30, 2020 and comprised 1% cash and cash equivalents, 99% fixed income
investments and 0% equity investments at June 30, 2019.

The System believes that the reported amount of its investments is a reasonable estimate of fair value as
of June 30, 2020 and 2019. Because of the inherent uncertainties of valuation, these estimated fair values
may differ significantly from values that would have been used had a ready market existed. Assets and
liabilities recorded at fair value as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Quoted Significant
prices in other Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs 2020
Assats {Laevel 1) (Level 2) {Level 3) Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 538,725 — — 538,725
Investments:
Cash equivalents 197,179 —_ —_ 197,179
Glebal public equities 97,864 —_ —_ 97,864
Real assefs:
Real estate 10,270 — — 10,270
Fixed income:
U.S. Treasuries,
including TIPS 57,011 —_ —_ 57,011
Other fixed income 4 — — 4
Restricted investments —_ -— 9,085 9,085
Funds in trust 61,411 14,603 — 76,014
Investments measured at NAV — — —_ 838,697
Total investments at
fair value 962,464 14,603 9,085 1,824,849
25
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Quoted Significant
prices in other Significant
active observable unobservable
markets Inputs Inputs 2020
Asseots (Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3) Total
Other assets 8,343 —_ _ 8,343
Total assets at
fair value 870,807 14,603 9,085 1,833,192
Liabilities
Interest rate swap payable — 193,871 — 193,871
Total liabilities at
fair value — 193,871 — 193,871
Quoted Significant
prices in other Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs 2019
Assets (Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) Total
Cash and cash equivalents 174,122 — —_ 174,122
Investments:
Cash equivalents 12,587 - — 12,587
Global public equities 166,427 —_ —_ 166,427
Private equity- U.S.
Venture Capital 5,302 —- —_— 5,302
Real assets:
Real estate 16,196 — —— 16,196
Natural resources 9,660 —_ — 9,660
Absolute retum:
Global macro/relative value 8,826 — -_ 8,826
Fixed income:
U.S. Treasuries,
including MPS 58,529 — - 58,529
Other fixed income 163,168 — — 163,168
Restricted investments —_ —_ 9,303 9,303
Funds in trust 18,438 16,239 — 34,677
investments measured at NAV — —_ —_ 778,535
Total investments at
fair value 633,255 16,239 9,303 1,437,332
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Quoted Significant
prices in other Significant
active observable unohservabie
markets inputs inputs 2019
Assets {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) Total
Other assets $ 7,385 — — 7,385
Total assets at
fair value $ 640,650 16,239 9,303 1,444 727
Liabllities
Interest rate swap payable H — 136,186 — 136,186
Total liabilities at
fair value $ — 136,186 — 136,186

' Certain investments that are measured at fair value using the NAV per share (or its equivalent)
practical expedient have not been categorized in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts
presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts
presented in the consolidated balance sheets.

During 2020, there were no transfers between investment Levels 1 and 2 or between Levels 2 and 3. The
interest rate swap arrangement has inputs, which can generally be corroborated by market data and is,
therefore classified within Level 2.

The following table presents activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 for assets measured at fair value
using unobservable inputs classified in Level 3:

Level 3
rollforward
Beginning fair value $ 9,303
Change in unrealized gains and losses, net (218)
Ending fair value $ 9,085

In addition, investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is reasonably
possible that changes in the values of the System’s investments could occur in the next term and that such
changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements. The
methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable
value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the System believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or
assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could resuit in a different estimate
of fair value at the reporting date.
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The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the System'’s long-lived
partnership investments include a combination of cost, discounted cash flow analysis, industry
comparables, and outside appraisals. Significant changes in any inputs used by investment managers in
determining NAVs in isofation would result in a significant changes in fair value measurement.

The System has made investments in various long-lived partnerships and, in other cases, has entered into
contractual agreements that may limit its ability to initiate redemptions due to notice periods, lockups, and
gates. Details on typical redemption terms by asset class and type of investment are provided below:

Cash

Global public equities:
Commingled funds

Partnerships

Separate accounts

Private debt:
Drawdown partnerships
Partnerships

Mutual bond and equity
funds

Real estate funds

Funds of funds

Remaining Redemption restrictions
life Redemption terms and terms
N/A Daily None
NA Daily to triennial with notice Lock-up provisions for up to 3 years;
periods of 2 to 180 days some investments have a portion
of capital held in side pockets
with no redemptions pemnitted
MNA Maonthly to biennial with notice Lock-up provisions for up to 4 years;
pericds of 7 to 80 days some investments have a portion
of capital held in side pockets
with no redemptions pemmitted
N/A Daily with notice periods of Lock-up provisions ranging for up to
1107 days 1 year
11to 11 years Redemptions not permitted N/A
N/A Redemptions not permitted Capital held in side pockets with no
redemptions permitted
N/A Daily to monthly with notice None
periods of 1 to 30 days
N/A Quarterly with notice periods None
of 45 to 90 days
N/A Monthly to quartery with notice None

periads of 15 to 185 days
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Private equity:
Drawdown partnerships
Separate accounts
Partnerships

Real estate:
Drawdown partnerships
Separate accounts

Matural resources:
Drawdown partnerships
Commingled funds

Absolute retum:
Commingled funds

Drawdown partnerships
Partnerships

Fixed income:
Commingled funds

Separate accounts

Funds in trust

Endowments
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Remalning Redemption restrictions
life Redemption terms and terms
1to 21 years Redemptions not pemnitted N/A
N/A Daily with notice period of 1 day None
N/A Semiannual with notice period A portion of capital is held in side
of 80 days pockets with no redemptions
permitted
1to 16 years Redemptions not pemitted N/A,
N/A, Daily with notice period of 5 days  None
1to 17 years Redemptions not pemitted N/A
N/A Daily with notice period of 1 day None
N/A Daily to triennial with notice Lock-up provisions for up to three years;
periods of 1 to 122 days some investments have a portion
of capital held in side pockets
with no redemptions pemmitted
110 4 years Redemptions not pemitted N/A
1Y Quarterly to triennial with Lock-up provisions for up to five years;
notice periods of 45 to some investments have a portion
180 days of capital held in side pockets
with no redemptions pemmnitted
N/A Weekly to monthly with notice Nene
periods of 5 to 10 days
N/A Daily to monthly with notice None
periods of 1 to 30 days
N/A Daily None

The System's endowment consists of individual donor-restricted endowment funds and board-designated
endowment funds for a variety of purposes plus the following where the assets have been designated for
endowment: pledges receivable, split interest agreements, and other net assets. The endowment includes
both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as
endowments. The net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board
of Trustees to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions.
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Ilinois is governed by the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). The Board of
Trustees of UCMC has interpreted UPMIFA as sustaining the preservation of the original gift as of the gift
date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stiputations to the contrary. As a result
of this interpretation, the System classifies as net assets with donor restrictions (a) the original value of gifts
donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent
endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of
the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.

The System has beneficial interests in trusts. The System has recorded its share of the principal of the
trusts as net assets with donor restrictions. Distributions from the trusts are recorded within net assets
without restrictions if unrestricted; otherwise, they are classified as net assets with donor restrictions until
appropriated for expenditure. In some instances, the historical costs basis of the funds is not available as
the System received the shares in 1929. The fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted
endowment funds may fall below the amount of the original donation as a result of unfavorable market
conditions. There were no such deficiencies at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The System has the following donor-restricted endowment activities during the years ended June 30, 2020
and 2019 delineated by net asset class:

2020 _
Without donor With donor
restrictions restrictions Total
Changes in the fair value of endowment investments:
Investment return:
Endowment yield (interest and dividends) 3 10,250 676 10,926
Net appreciation (realized and unrealized)
on investments 13,533 802 14,335
Investment return, net of payout 23,783 1,478 25,261
Endowment payout {48,014) (3.883) {51,897)
Net investment return (24,231) (2,405) {26,636)
Other changes in endowment investments:
Gifts and pledge payments received in cash 8,302 10 8,312
Cther changes 4,000 4,000
Total other changes in endowment
investments 12,302 10 12,312
Net change in endowment investments (11,929) (2,395) {14,324)
30
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2020
Without donor With donor
restrictions restrictions Total
Endowment investments at;
Beginning of year $ 923,571 95,684 1,019,265
End of year 911,642 93,299 1,004,841
Investments by type of fund:
Donor-resfricted “true” endowment:
Historical gift value $ = 17,280 17,280
Appreciation == 76,019 76,019
Board-designated “funds functioning as endowment" 911,642 — 911,642
Total — As above $ 911,642 93,299 1,004,941
2019
Without donor With donor
restrictions restrictions Total
Changes in the fair value of endowment investments:
Investment return;
Endowment yield (interest and dividends) $ 12,282 935 13,217
Net appreciation (realized and unrealized)
on investments 35,953 3,779 39,732
Investment retum, net of payout 48,235 4714 52,949
Endowment payout (41.314) (3,900 (45,214)
Net investment retum 6,921 814 7,736
Other changes in endowment investments:
Gifts and pledge payments received in cash 89,042 13 89,055
QOther changes 3,001 — 3.001
Total other changes in endowment
investments 92,043 13 92,056
Net change in endowment investments 98,964 827 99,791
3N
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2019
Without donor With donor
restrictions restrictions Total
Endowment investments at:
Beginning of year $ 824,607 94,887 919,474
End of year $ 923,571 95,694 1,019,265
Investments by type of fund:
Donor-restricted "true” endowment:
Historical gift value $ - 17,487 17,487
Appreciation — 78,207 78,207
Board-designated “funds functioning as endowment" 923,571 — 923,571
Total — As above $ 923,571 95,694 1,019,265

Investment and Spending Policies

The System has adopted endowment investment and spending policies that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the
purchasing power of endowment assets. The System expects its endowment funds to provide an average
rate of return of approximately 6% annually. To achieve its long-term rate of return objectives, the System
relies on a total return strategy in which investment retums are achieved through both capital appreciation
(realized and unrealized gains) and current yield (interest and dividends). Actual retumns in any given year
may vary from this amount.

For endowments invested in TRIP, the Board of Trustees of the System has adopted the University's
method to be used to appropriate endowment funds for expenditure, including following the University's
payout formula. The University utilizes the total return concept in allocating endowment income. In
accordance with the University's total return objective, between 4.5% and 5.5% of a 12-quarter moving
average of the fair value of endowment investments, lagged by one year, is available each year for
expenditure in the form of endowment payout. The exact payout percentage, which is set each year by the
Board of Trustees with the objective of a 5% average payout over time, was 5.5% for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019. If endowment income received is not sufficient to support the total return
objective, the balance is provided from capital gains. If income received is in excess of the objective, the
balance is reinvested in the endowment.

For endowments invested apart from TRIP, the System calculates a payout of 4% annually on a rolling

24-month average market value. In establishing this policy, the Board considered the expected long term

rate of return on its endowment.
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(9) Property, Plant, and Equipment

(10)

The components of property, plant, and equipment as of June 30 are as follows:

2020 2019

Land and land rights $ 55,610 55,610
Buildings and improvements 1,914,984 1,847,108
Equipment 763,017 717,720
Construction in progress 21,759 30,237
2,745,370 2,650,675

Less accumulated depreciation {1,187,022) (1,082,919)
Total property, plant, and equipment, net $ 1,558,348 1,567,756

The cost of buildings that are jointly used by the University and the System is allocated based on the lease
provisions. In addition, land and land rights include $17,200 and $18,900 for 2020 and 2019, respectively,
which represents the unamortized portion of initial lease payments made to the University.

A clinic in the Streeterville area of Chicago is under construction. Spending for this clinic during fiscal year
2020 was $13,900 with a total budget of $17,400. Capitalized interest costs in 2020 and 2019 were
approximately $500 and $400, respectively, Construction in progress consists of various routine capital
improvements and renovation projects. As of June 30, 2020, the System had total contractual commitments
associated with ongoing capital projects of approximately $18,800.

Long-Term Debt

The long-term debt of both UCMC and CHHD is issued pursuant to the second Amended and Restated
Master Trust Indenture (MTI) dated as of June 1, 2019, as subsequently amended and supplemented. The
Obligated Group Members are UCMC, CHHD, Ingalls Memorial Hospital, Ingalls Home Care, and Ingalis
Development Foundation. Each series of bonds is collateralized by the unrestricted receivables of the
obligated Group Members and subject to certain restrictions under the MTI.

Effective June 28, 2019, the CHHD Obligated Group was combined with the UCMC Obligated Group, and
became subject to the second Amended and Restated Master Trust Indenture (MTi) dated as of June 1,
2019, as subsequently amended and supplemented.
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Long-term debt at June 30, 2020 and 2019 consists of the following:

Fiscal year
maturity Interest rate 2020 2019
UCMC:
Fixed rate:
Wincis Finance Authority;
Series 2008A and 20098, 2009B partially iegally
defeased in 2017 2027 50% § 71,970 83,575
Series 2009D1 and 2009D2 (Syntheticatly fixed rate) 2044 39 70,000 70,000
Series 2009E1 and 2009E2 {Synthetically fived rate) 2044 39 70,000 70,000
Series 2010A and 2010B (Synthefically fixed rate) 2045 39 92,500 92,500
Series 2011A and 2011B (Synthetically fixed rale) 2045 39 92,500 92,500
Series 2012A 2037 47 - 60,495
Series 2015A 2030 5.0 21,895 21,895
Series 2016A 2027 50 22,830 22,830
Series 20168 2042 50 164,490 164,490
Teachers Insurance and Anenity Association of America (TIAA)
Series 2M7A 2047 44 30,000 30,000
New York Life taxable private placement:
Series 2019E 2037 27 63,645 -
Unamortized premium 18,073 24118
Total fixed rate 717,903 732,404
Variable rate;
Series 2013A 2050 1.6(2020)/3.0(2019) 68,403 69,801
llinois Educationa! Facilities Authority {IEFA} 2038 1.4(2020)1.6(201%) 62,590 66,029
Total variable rate 130,993 135,830
Unamortized debt issuance costs (4,891) (6,030}
Less current portion of long-term debi {16,625) {15,208)
Total UCMC long-term portion of debt, less current
portion $ 870 846,996
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Fiscal year
maturity Interest rate 2020 2019
UCMC Title Holding Corporation:
Fixed rate:
Brownfield Revitalization 40 - Promissory note A 2024 1.5% § 4,850 4,850
Urban Development Fund XLV1 - Promissory note A 2024 15 4,850 4 850
Urban Development Fund LI - Promissory note A 2024 18 6,500 6,500
Citi NMTC - QLICI 2032 1.2 3476 3,476
Citi NMTC - QLICI 2032 12 1,620 1,620
URP QLICI - Loan A 2047 1.0 7,334 134
URP QLIC| - Loan B 2047 1.0 2,666 2,666
SCORE QLICI - Loan A 2047 10 4178 4176
SCORE QLICI - Loan B 2047 10 1,704 1,704
CNI QLICI - Loan A 2047 1.0 3,455 3,455
CNI QLICI - Loan B 2047 10 1,645 1,545
Total UCMC Title Holding Corporation debt $ 42,176 42,176
Less current portion of long-term debt (275) -
Total UCMC Title Holding Corporation debt, excluding current portion $ 41,901 42,176
Community Health and Hospital Division;
Fixed Rate; Series 2013 2043 3.5-5.0% § - 60,145
Fixed Rate: Series 2017 2034 46 36,305 38,300
Fixed rale: Series 2019 2043 27 64,715 -
Unamortized debt issuance costs {365) 313
Total debt and unamortized premiums {discount) 100,655 101,576
Less current portion of long-term debt (3,530) (2,890)
Total CHHD debt, excluding current partion $ 97,125 98,686
Total notes and bonds payable $ 986,836 1,005,956
Less current portion (20,430) (18,098)
Long-term debt, exchuding current portion $__ 966,406 987 858
ATTACHMENT 35
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Scheduled annual repayments, excluding costs, premiums, or discounts, for the next five years and
thereafter are as follows at June 30;

Year ending June 30:

2021 $ 20,430
2022 22 675
2023 23,068
2024 23,003
2025 25,519
Thereafter 859,324

$ 874,019

Letters of Credit

Under its various credit agreements, UCMC is subject to certain financial covenants, including
maintaining a minimum debt service coverage ratio; maintaining minimum levels of days’ cash on hand;
maintaining debt to capitalization at certain levels; limitations on selling, leasing, or otherwise,

disposing of UCMC property; and certain other nonfinancial covenants.

Payment on each of the variable rate demand revenue bonds is also collateralized by a letter of credit.
The letter of credit that supports the Series 2009D bonds expires in June 2022. The letter of credit that
supports the 2009E bonds expires in July 2021. The letters of credit that support the Series 2010A and
Series 2010B bonds expire in May 2021 and July 2021, respectively, and the letters of credit that
support the Series 2011A and Series 20118 bonds expire in May 2021. Payment of each of the IEFA
bonds is collateralized by a letter of credit maturing May 2022. The letters of credit are subject to
certain restrictions, which include financial ratio requirements. The most restrictive financial ratio is to
maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1:35:1.

Included in UCMC's debt is $62,590 of commercial paper revenue notes and $325,000 of variable rate
demand bonds. In the event that UCMC's remarketing agents are unable to remarket the bonds, the
trustee of the bonds will tender them under the letters of credit. Scheduled repayments under the
letters of credit are between zero and three years, beginning after a grace period of at least one year
from the event, and bear interest rates different from those associated with the original bond issue. Any
bonds tendered are still eligible to be remarketed. Bonds subsequently remarketed would be subject to
the original bond repayment schedules.

ATTACHMENT 35
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Scheduled principal repayments on long-term debt based on the variable rate demand debt being put
back to the System and a corresponding draw being made on the underlying credit facility, if available,
excluding costs, premiums, or discounts, are as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2021 $ 20,430
2022 191,057
2023 143,391
2024 121,889
2025 25,519
Thereafter 471,733

$ 974,019

Recent Financing Activity

In November 2019, the System issued fixed rate debt in the form of a private placement Note with New
York Life Insurance Company. The debt attributable to UCMC totaled $63,645 and was used to
advance refund UCMC's series 2012A bonds. The debt attributable to CHHD totaled $64,715 and was
used to advance refund CHHD's series 2013A bonds.

Subsequent Financing Activity

In August 2020, UCMC issued fixed rate bonds in the amount of $47,270. The Series 2020A bonds
were sold to JPMorgan Chase Bank. The purpose of the Series 2020A bonds was to provide for the
redemption of UCMC's Series 2009B bonds in full on August 15, 2020.

Lines of Credit

As of June 30, 2020, UCMC has a $200,000 of available lines of credit from commercial banks. As of
June 30, 2020 and 2019, no amount was outstanding under these lines. The lines of credit expire April
28, 2021 and September 21, 2021.

Interest Payments

The System paid interest, net of capitalized interest, of approximately $32,800 and $37,700 in 2020
and 2019, respectively.

UCMC Title Holding Corporation

During fiscal years 2017 and 2018, UCMC entered into New Market Tax Credit (NMTC) financing
agreements with various entities for the purposes of financing various projects at UCMC that would
benefit the surrounding community. The NMTC program was established in 2000 by the United States
Congress and is administered by the Department of Treasury to encourage private investment in
qualifying low-income communities. Pursuant to Section 45(D) of the Internal Revenue Code, UCMC's
NMTC structure consists of an NMTC investor (Investor) who provided qualified equity investments to a

37 (Continued)
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community development entity (CDE) who in turn provided debt financing to a separate not for profit tax
exempt entity, which is a qualified active low income community business (QALICB).

In August 2017, UCMC was a lender in the NMTC structure for the construction of a new emergency
department and aduit trauma center. Because UCMC has the power to appoint all board members of
UCMC Title Holding Corporation If NFP, the QALICB has been consolidated in the financial statements.
The Investor made qualifying equity investments into various CDE funds, including UCMC Trauma Center
NMTC Investment Fund, LLC (the CDE Funds), which in turn provided debt financing of $20,880 to UCMC
Title Holding Corporation to fund qualified construction costs and equipment, as required under the terms
of the agreement. Management anticipates that the NMTC structure will stay in effect through July 2025
when the NMTC tax compliance period expires. At that time, management believes the investor will
exercise its Put Option in the Put and Call Agreement, allowing UCMC to acquire a 100% equity interest in
the investment fund. If the Put Option is not exercised, UCMC has the right to call for the purchase of a
100% equity interest in the investment fund at a fair market value. In either case, once the option is
exercised, UCMC's lcan to the investment fund would be extinguished, the investment fund and the CDE
Funds would be dissolved, and the loans from the CDE Funds to UCMC Title Holding Corporation Il NFP
would be extinguished.

(11) Derivative Instruments

The System has interest rate related derivative instruments to manage its exposure on debt instruments.
By using derivative financial instruments to manage the risk of changes in interest rates, the System
exposes itself to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under
the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the
counterparty owes the System, which creates credit risk for the System. When the fair value of a derivative
contract is negative, the System owes the counterparty, and therefore, it does not possess credit risk;
however, the System is required to post collateral to the counterparty when certain thresholds as defined in
the derivative agreements are met. Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument
that results from a change in interest rates. The market risk associated with interest rate changes is
managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may
be undertaken. System management also mitigates risk through periodic reviews of their derivative
positions in the context of their total blended cost of capital.

The System is required to post collateral under the specific terms and conditions for the various interest
rate swap agreements as described below. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, $55,100 and $13,750 was held as
collateral, respectively, and was recorded in current portion of investments limited to use and included in
Note 7 as funds in trust for disclosure. Collateral postings are primarily driven by the value of the swap as
measured at the reset date. Collateral requirements increase if credit ratings were to be downgraded.

The fair value of each swap is the estimated amount UCMC would receive or pay to terminate the swap
agreement at the reporting date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness
of the swap counterparties. The fair value is included in interest rate swap liability on the consolidated
balance sheets, while the change in fair value is recorded in other changes in net assets without donor
restrictions for the effective portion of the change and in nonoperating gains and losses for the ineffective
portion of the change
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UCMC Interest Rate Swap Agreement

In August 2006, UCMC entered into a forward starting swap transaction against contemplated variable rate
borrowing for the Center for Care and Discovery. This is a cash flow hedge against interest on the variable
rate debt. The fair value of these swap agreements is the estimated amount that UCMC would have to pay
or receive to terminate the agreements as of the consolidated balance sheet date, taking into account
current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterparty. The swap values are
based on the London Interbank Rate (LIBOR). The inputs to the fair value estimate are considered Level 2
in the fair value hierarchy.

In July 2011, UCMC novated the original swap agreement to divide the original notional amount in two
equal parts between financial institutions. The fair value of the terminated portion of the hedge on the date
of the novation was recorded in net assets in the amount of $35,123 and is being amortized into interest
expense over the life of the related debt (approximately $1,300 of amortization in 2020 and 2019),
commencing on February 23, 2013, the date the Center for Care and Discovery was placed into service.
The new agreement is being accounted for as a hedge. The combined notional amount of the swap is
$325,000 with an effective start date of August 2011. Management has determined that the interest rate
swaps are effective and have qualified for hedge accounting. The fair value of the UCMC swap agreement
liabilities was $182,470 and $127,068 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and has been included in
other long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The net effective portion of the
change in fair value on the UCMC swap agreements of ${53,268) and ${29,233) in 2020 and 2019,
respectively, has been included in the change in net assets without donor restrictions in the accompanying
2020 and 2019 consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without donor restriction.
Management has recognized ineffectiveness of approximately $(395) in 2020 and an ineffectiveness of
$1,190 in 2019 in nonoperating gains and losses. This movement reflects the spread between tax-exempt
interest rates and LIBOR during the period. The effective portion of these swaps is included in other
changes in unrestricted net assets. The interest rate swaps terminate on February 1, 2044. Cash
settlement payments related to the swaps are recorded in interest expense.

On July 1, 2020 UCMC entered into a novation of the interest rate swap agreements for a five-year term.
The novation to the new parties is under like-kind terms and arrangements that do not require de-
designation of the heading relationship and related accounting.

The following summarizes the general terms of each of UCMC's swap agreements:

Associated Current
Effective date debt series Original term  notional amount UCMC pays  UCMC receives

August 8, 2011 2009 D/E, 2010

A/B, 2011 AB 325Years $ 162,500,000 3.89% 68% of LBOR
August 9, 2011 2009 D/E, 2010
AB, 2011 AB 32.5 Years 162,500,000 3.97% 68% of LIBOR
39 ATTACHMENT 35
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CHHD Swap Agreement

CHHD entered into an interest rate swap agreement on June 28, 2004 to lock in long-term fixed rates on
the Series 2004 variable-rate debt issuance, with a notional amount of $38,225 and a maturity date of
May 15, 2034. This agreement was amended on March 1, 2013. Under the amended agreement, the
notional amount and maturity did not change, and CHHD receives, on a monthly basis, 67% of one-month
LIBOR plus 47.5 basis points and makes payments on a monthly basis, an annualized fixed rate of 4.61%.
The swap is not designated as a hedging instrument, and therefore, the change in fair value of the 2004
interest rate swap agreement of $(2,318) and $(2,003} in 2020 and 2019, respectively, was recognized as
a component of nonoperating gains in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and
changes in net assets without donor restriction. The fair value of the Series 2004 interest rate swap
agreement liability of $11,436 and $9,118 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, is included as a
component of other long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The differential to
be paid or received under the Series 2004 interest rate swap agreement is recognized monthly and has
been included as a component of interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations and changes in net assets without donor restriction.

A summary of outstanding positions under the interest rate swap agreements for CHHD at June 30, 2020 is as
follows:

Notional
Series amount Maturity date Rate received Rate paid
2004 Interest rate swap
Agreement: $ 38,225 May 15, 2034 % of LIBOR Fixed 4.61%

40
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{12) Leases

ASC Topic 842, Leases, was adopted by the System effective July 1, 2019 using a modified
retrospective transition approach, without adjustment to the prior period comparative financial
information. ASC Topic 842 requires lessees to recognize leases on the consolidated balance sheet
and disclose key information about leasing arrangements. The new standard establishes an ROU
model that requires a lessee to recognize an ROU asset and lease liability on the consolidated balance
sheet for all leases with a term longer than 12 months. Leases are classified as finance or operating,
with classification affecting the pattern and classification of the expense recognition in the consolidated
statement of operations and changes in net assets without donor restriction. In adopting and applying
the standard, the System has elected to adopt the package of transition practical expedients and,
therefore, has not reassessed (1) whether existing or expired contracts contain a lease, (2) lease
classification for existing or expired leases, or (3) the accounting for initial direct costs that were
previously capitalized. The System did not elect the practical expedient to use hindsight for leases
existing at the adoption date. As of July 1, 2019, the System recorded ROU assets — operating leases
of $53,043 and a corresponding operating leasing liability of the same amount. ROU assets for
operating leases are recorded in other assets, net and the corresponding liability is recorded between
current portion of other long-term liabilities and other long-term liabilities, less current portion. ROU
assets for financing leases are presented as property, plant, and equipment (net) on the consolidated
balance sheet and the corresponding liability is presented between current portion of other long-term
liabilities and other long-term liabilities, net of current portion consistent with prior classification prior to
adoption of ASC Topic 842.

The System determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at contract inception. The System
recognizes an ROU asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date if the lease period
exceeds one year. Leases less than one year are expensed monthly as incurred.

For operating leases, the lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the unpaid lease
payments at the lease commencement date; it is subsequently measured at the present value of the
unpaid lease payments. For finance leases, the lease liability is initially measured in the same manner
and date as for operating leases and is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective-
interest method.

Key estimates and judgments include how the System determines (1) the discount rate it uses to
discount the unpaid lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments.

ASC Topic 842 requires a lessee to discount its unpaid lease payments using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, its incremental borrowing rate. ASC

Paragraph 842-20-30-3 provides a practical expedient for nonpublic business entities, which allows a
lessee to use a risk-free interest rate for a period comparable to the lease term. The System has
elected to use the risk-free rate, which is the rate of a U.S. Treasury security for a period comparable to
the lease term.

The lease term for all of the System's leases includes the non-cancellable period of the lease plus any
additional periods covered by either an option to extend (or not to terminate) the lease that the System
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is reasonably certain to exercise, or an option to extend (or not to terminate) the lease controlied by the
lessor.

The ROU asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred less any lease incentives received.

For operating leases, the ROU asset is subsequently measured throughout the lease term at the
carrying amount of the lease liability, plus initial direct costs, plus (minus) any prepaid (accrued) lease
payments, less the unamortized balance of lease incentives received. Lease expense for lease
payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

For finance leases, the ROU asset is subsequently amortized using the straight-line method from the
lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of its useful life or the end of the lease term unless
the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the System or the System is reasonably certain
to exercise an option to purchase the underlying asset. In those cases, the ROU asset is amortized
over the useful life of the underlying asset. Amortization of the ROU asset is recognized and presented
separately from interest expense on the lease liability.

Variable lease payments associated with the System’s leases are recognized when the event, activity,
or circumstance in the lease agreement on which those payments are assessed occurs. Variable lease
payments are presented as an operating expense within other expenses in the System’s consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets without donor restriction in the same line item as
expense arising from fixed lease payments (operating leases).

The System monitors for events or changes in circumstances that require a reassessment of one of its
leases.

The System has elected not to recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less. The System recognizes the lease payments associated with its
short-term leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable lease payments
associated with these leases are recognized and presented in the same manner as for all other leases.
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The components of lease cost for the year ended June 30, 2020 reported as part of other expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions, were as

follows:

2020
Operating lease expense $ 10,076
Finance lease expense:
Amortization of right of use assets 4,970
Interest on lease liabilities 1,191
Total finance lease expense 6,161
Total lease expense $ 16,237

Amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2020 were as follows:

Operating leases:

Right of use assets — operating leases $ 53,043
Accumulated amortization 3,038
Other assets, net 50,005
Current portion of other long-term liabilities 4,596
Other long-term liabilities, less current portion 45,409
Total operating lease liabilities $ 50,005

Finance leases:

Right of use assets — finance leases $ 38,347
Accumulated amortization 4,970
Property, plant, and equipment, net $ 33,377
Current portion of other long-term liabilities 7,521
Other long-term liabilities 29,466
Total finance lease liabilities $ 36,987
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Other information related to leases as of June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Supplemental cash flow information:

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:

Operating cash flow from operating leases
Financing cash flow from finance leases
ROU assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations:
Operating leases
Finance leases
Reductions to ROU assets resulting from reductions to lease obl
Operating leases
Finance leases
Woeighted average remaining lease term:
Operating leases
Finance leases
Weighted-average discount rate:
Operating leases
Finance leases

igations:

8,383
2,466

53,043
27,681

3,038
4,970

9.1 years
11.2 years

2.1%
3.3%

Amounts disclosed for ROU assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations include amounts added to
the carrying amount of ROU assets resulting from lease modifications and reassessments.

Maturities of lease liabilities under noncancelable leases as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Operating Finance

2021 $ 5,497 8,703
2022 5,414 3,666
2023 5,400 3,383
2024 4,793 2,987
2025 and thereafter 36,466 29,077
$ 57,570 47,826

Less amount representing interest 7,565 10,839

Present value of net minimum lease
payments $ 50,005 36,987
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Lease Information as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019;

The System leases office space and equipment under leases that are classified as operating leases.
Prior to the adoption of ASC Topic 842, future minimum lease payments required under operating
lease as of June 30, 2019 that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year:

Operating Capital

2020 $ 6,184 1,987
2021 6,569 1,547
2022 6,393 1,468
2023 6,171 1,319
2024 and thereafter 33,583 13,573
$ 58,900 19,894

Less amount representing interest 7,984

Present value of net minimum capital lease
payments $ 11,910

{13) Insurance
Professional and General Liability

The System maintains separate self-insurance programs for UCMC and CHHD. UCMC is included under
certain of the University's insurance programs. Since 1977, UCMC, in conjunction with the University, has
maintained a self-insurance program for its medical malpractice liability. This program is supplemented with
commercial excess insurance above the University's self-insurance retention, which for the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $5,000 per claim and unlimited in the aggregate. Claims in excess of $5,000
are subject to an additional self-insurance retention limited to $12,500 per claim and $22,500 in aggregate.
There are no assurances that the University will be able to renew existing policies or procure coverage on
similar terms in the future.

CHHD maintains a self-insurance program for professional and general liability. Coverage from commercial
insurance carriers is maintained for claims in excess of self-insured retentions at various levels by policy
year. CHHD established a trust fund with an independent trustee for the administration of assets funded
under the malpractice and general liability self-insurance program.

The System has engaged professional consultants for calculating an estimated liability for medical
malpractice self-insurance and is actuarially determined based upon estimated claim reserves and various
assumptlions, and represents the estimated present value of self-insurance claims that will be settled in the
future. It considers anticipated payout patterns, as well as interest to be eamed on available assets prior to
payment. The discount rate used to value the self-insurance liability is a rate commensurate with the
duration of anticipated payments.
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A comparison of the estimated liability for incurred malpractice claims (filed and not filed) and assets
available for claims for the combined University and UCMC self-insurance program as of June 30, 2020
and 2019 is presented below:

2020 2019
Actuarial present value of self-insurance liability for medical
malpractice $ 185,822 192,018
Total assets available for claims 259,113 260,084

If the present-value method were not used, the ultimate liability for medical malpractice self-insurance
claims would be approximately $20,347 higher at June 30, 2020. The interest rate assumed in determining
the present value was 2.5% and 3.5% for 2020 and 2019, respectively. UCMC has recorded its pro rata
share of the malpractice self-insurance liability in the amount of $83,620 and $86,408 at June 30, 2020 and
June 30, 2019, respectively, with an offsetting receivable from the malpractice trust to cover any related
claims. The malpractice self-insurance trust assets consist primarily of funds held in TRIP.

UCMC recognizes as malpractice expense its negotiated pro rata share of the actuarially determined
normal contribution, with gains and losses amortized over five years, with no retroactive adjustments, as
provided in the operating agreement. For fiscal year 2021, UCMC's expense is estimated to be
approximately $10,000 related to malpractice insurance.

On April 30, 2019, CHHD entered into a loss portfolio transfer for the Ingalls Memorial Hospital medical
malpractice program by obtaining an occurrence-based policy for claims through June 30, 2018 through a
payment of $47,311 to an unrelated insurance company. The loss portfolio transferred was structured
through Ingalls Casualty Insurance (the Captive) entity for purposes of additional insurance protection and
risk management. At June 30, 2020, there was no additional liability calculated by the programs actuaries
that would require additional reserves by CHHD or the Captive. Accruals for CHHD professional and
general liabilities are recorded on a discounted basis consistent with the University's insurance program.

Pension Plans
Active Plans

A majority of UCMC's personnel participate in the University's defined benefit and contribution pension
plans, which are considered multi-employer pension plans. Under the defined benefit portion of this plan,
benefits are based on years of service and the employee's compensation for the five highest paid
consecutive years within the last ten years of employment. UCMC and the University make annual
contributions to this portion of the plan at a rate necessary to maintain plan funding based on the guidelines
set forth by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, on an actuarially determined basis.
UCMC recognizes its share of net periodic pension cost as expense and any difference in the contribution
amount as a transfer of unrestricted net assets. The adjustment to net assets without donor restrictions was
$(2,823) and $(14,787) for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. UCMC expects to make contributions
not to exceed $2,200 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.
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Effective January 1, 2017, the 401(a) defined benefit pension plan was frozen for UCMC employees
participating in the plan and was replaced with an enhanced defined contribution plan. Under the defined
contribution portion of the plan, UCMC and plan participants make contributions that accrue to the benefit
of the participants at retirement. UCMC'’s contributions, which are based on a percentage of each covered
employee's salary, totaled approximately $24,900 and $23,800 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and

2019, respectively.

UCMC's expense related the multiemployer University’s defined benefit plans included in the University's
consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

Contribution of UCMC
Plan name EIN 2020 2019
University of Chicago Retirement Income
Plan for Employees 36-2177138-002 $ —_ —_
University of Chicago Pension Plan for
Staff Employees 36-2177139-003 — —
3 — —

The benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status for the University’s defined benefit plan
included in the University’s consolidated financial statements as of June 30 are shown below.

2020 2019
Projected benefit obligation $ 1,057,892 946,250
Fair value of plan assets 786,782 763,789
Deficit of plan assets over benefit obligation $ (271,110) (182,461)

The weighted average assumptions used in the accounting for the plan are shown below.

2020 2019
Discount rate 29 % 36 %
Expected return on plan assets 6.3 6.3
Rate of compensation increase 3.5 35
47
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The weighted average asset allocation for the plan is as follows:

2020 2019
Domestic equities 26 % 23 %
international equity 24 27
Fixed income 50 50
100 % 100 %

Domestic and intemational equities are presented as level 1 investments and fixed income securities are
presented as Level 2 investments within the fair value hierarchy.

The pension and other postretirement benefit obligation considers anticipated payout patterns as well as
investment returns on available assets prior to payment. The discount rate used to value the pension and
other postretirement benefit obligation is a risk-adjusted rate commensurate with the duration of anticipated
payments. These inputs to the fair value estimate are considered Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Expected future benefit payments excluding plan expenses are as follows:

Fiscal year:
2021 3 71,791
2022 56,657
2023 54,279
2024 52,983
2025 52,881
2026-2030 274,079

UCMC and CHHD also maintain additional defined contribution retirement plans for employees. The
System'’s pension expense under these distinct defined contribution retirement plans for UCMC was $8,000
and $7,600 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

CHHD expense under these distinct defined contribution retirement plans was $2,900 and $2,800 for the
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Curtailed and Frozen Plan

In June 2002, UCMC assumed sponsorship of the Louis A, Weiss Memorial Hospitat Pension Plan
(Employer Identification Number 36-3488183, Plan Number 003}, which covers empioyees of a former
affiliate. Participation and benefit accruals are frozen. All benefit accruals are fully vested.
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Components of net periodic pension cost and other amounts recognized in net assets without donor
restrictions include the following:

Years ended June 30
2020 2019

Net periodic pension cost:
Sendce cost 3 =

Net periodic pension cost $ - —

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized
in unrestricted net assets:
Interest cost $ 1,730 1,892

Expected retumn on plan assets {2.598) (2,677)
Amortization of unrecognized net actuarial loss 1,279 949

Total recognized in net periodic pension cost and
net assets without donor restrictions $ 411 164

The following table sets forth additional required pension disclosure information for this plan:

Years ended June 30

2020 2019
Changes in projected benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 51,246 46,955
Interest cost 1,730 1,892
Net actuarial loss 4,929 6,042
Benefits paid (3,494) (3.643)
54,411 51,246
Changes in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 45,121 45,017
Actual return on plan assets 3,837 2,247
Employer contribution 3,000 1,500
Benefits paid (3,494) (3,643)
48,464 45,121
Funded status at end of year $ {5,947) (6,125)
49
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Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets are included in other noncurrent liabilities,

Accumulated plan benefits equal projected plan benefits. Assumptions used in the accounting for the net
periodic pension cost were as follows:

2020 2019
Discount rate 26 % 3.5%
Expected return on plan assets 6.0 6.0
Rate of compensation increase NA N/A
Weighted average asset allocations for plan assets are as follows:

2020 2019
Cash — % 2%
Fixed income 90 66
Domestic equities — 21
Intemational equities 10 11
100 % 100 %

All plan assets are valued using Level 1 inputs in 2020 and 2019. The target asset allocation is 60%
equities and 40% fixed income. The expected return on plan assets is based on historical investment
returns for similar investment portfolios.

UCMC expects to make contributions of $5,800 to the plan in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Expected future benefit payments are as follows:

Fiscal year:
2021 $ 3,673
2022 3,789
2023 3,705
2024 3.621
2025 3,523
2026-2030 15,914
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{15) Functional Expenses
Total operating expenses by function are as follows for the years ended June 30:

2020
Healthcare Fund
services Admin raising Total
Salaries, wages, and benefits $ 970,553 92,033 2,079 1,064,665
Supplies and other 776,521 82,437 1,152 860,110
Physician services 290,999 10,454 —_ 301,453
Insurance 29,841 214 — 30,055
interest 39,490 2,767 - 42,257
Medicaid provider tax 66,640 - —_ 66,640
Depreciation and amortization 130,744 865 — 131,609
Total $ 2,304,788 188,770 3,231 2,496,789
2019
Healthcare Fund
services Admin raising Total
Salaries, wages, and benefits $ 887,053 103,448 1,897 992,398
Supplies and other 675,896 89,515 1,631 767,042
Physician senvices 271,828 11,314 — 283,142
Insurance 25,682 3,300 — 28,982
Interest 38,079 6,377 — 44 456
Medicaid provider tax 66,640 — -_ 66,640
Depreciation and amortization 112,468 15,730 — 128,198
Total $ 2,077,646 229,684 3,528 2,310,858

{16) Contingencies
{a) Litigation

The System is subject to various legal proceedings and claims that are incidental to its normal business
activities. In the opinion of the System, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will
not materially affect the consolidated operations or net assets of the System.
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{b) Regulatory Investigation and Other

The U.S. Department of Justice and other federal agencies routinely conduct regulatory investigations
and compliance audits of healthcare providers. The System is subject to these regulatory efforts.
Additionally, the laws and regulations governing the Medicare, Medicaid, and other government
healthcare programs are extremely complex and subject to interpretation, making compliance an
ongoing challenge for the System and other healthcare organizations. Recently, the federal
government has increased its enforcement activity, including audits and investigations related to billing
practices, clinical documentation, and related matters. The System maintains a system wide
compliance program and conducts audits and other activities to identify potential compliance issues,
including overpayments by governmental payors. Compliance reviews may result in liabilities to
government healthcare program, which could have an adverse impact on the System’s net patient
service revenue

{c) Tax Exemption for Sales Tax and Property Tax

Effective June 14, 2012, the governor of Illinois signed into law, Public Act 97-0688, which created new
standards for state sales tax and property tax exemptions in lllinois. The law establishes new standards
for the issuance of charitable exemptions, including requirements for a nonprofit hespital to certify
annually that in the prior year, it provided an amount of qualified services and activities to low-income
and underserved individuals with a value at least equal to the hospital's estimated property tax liability.
The System certified in 2020 and 2019 and has not recorded a liability for related property taxes based
upon management's current determination of qualified services provided.

52 ATTACHMENT 35

137



#21-033

5 abuy
"Woidal 20ipne juepusdopu Bukurdunion 8eg
——— - EE—— SEEa  SESSSE——— T S S——
ZEE00L'Y L0280 ({1 61716 IZETELY Gerson NTIC F] I loL'te TeTeRE 8 WIS [3U PUS SERRGRN II0L
SLLSeL T TTEer | Garew . (e B O = I T4 T TEELNT “warm Teeziemt (ry9p) Heess jeu mior
o = — = Sl [T H 1821 0L = SLOZLE BUOIHGEO. JOUOD \AY
CEOrRY | 17411 {siv'er) (e5'et) L2 Fioy] iges' gt 9T e L5TMT Gov'sy) SRTSLLL SUSRINESS soULP o
Opyep) qesse N
PSOS0T T [0 ¥ sl VD TR T 102090 cE8'G 7] §iTS52 95 826 L¥E'S SRR RO L
ERE Gagee) zr =173 st [T Lt} ¥ZLO) §E9Z eoaIt Uopiod JusLINS £13) "Sapgey uuat-Buo)
108°C61 - = L 208061 = - e -1 gt - L¥zeL Aymaey desms wie) Jei)
S0F' 956 = - 1081 0§26 = = = sZL'L6 - [T g Jueuns Bupnoxe 1gep werSua
820584 - TH'05 = W' = = = = §68°2 180'38 uofod JeuND £58) "ApQey S3LRITILY o8 eapidimy
1'e = s C in's = s = 'y 009'L uopiod WRLND S5 GMGEE SURINSULY USHRSUNILICD LHIOIA
205 09 {e9g'ear} o i gt 5.0'526 Eirstt 'S e 2203 154'08 S0ELTL SIRRGUN LN 0]
(¥ - = - BrLE = = = - 9Lt S8 j0 Ao S1 o) eng
o irsg'rstl gt s 6 LS {T1sc) zLs 1] gL ¥i¥'IE £ ARG &) ang
24004 = 6T = Fraytd L - o = 6oL 80O5'FL Kmaen sousmeurs eagow il Jo Uerpod BN
1 = ere o YL = <1 d 5108 = 0YO5E BURAPY BMIPIY pUE Susranes shsd Luwd-pag pRsuRI3
TR (orL'1h = %5l ne'l 3 = = — et safpiquy Luey-Buoy 1o jo LoRlod JusLAY
L4 & o (1H SSH'0Z - - = 0T8T - $20'91 1aep wisr-Buof o uogod yuaimg
696952 L= 43 )] L 96T 9/LINT = L1414 =< LTI (zor's) ¥l 961 $ Wedxe panRow pue simAed HuURGKY
ABERqEE WD
RIETY 19N PR ST
TR O0LT Gz e 116 T T M VAT Ieren TILT6Y ToLed “Teiet & nasm moy
yog'Rol orezt (3 (3313 SITNL Teec'Ize) 1 = [} oz s) LVIOY U 'NoER RGO
160°18 = = - 180°i8 = = - = £ 160°18 uopad JUBLRS S50 “HARAY e
126 - . = [F - = O e - 128" vopsod JURLIND Ses] ‘PKEANOe) 8eBperd
oT'ESSL O LS 20591 £00'1S') - (T8 0 ¥y 1} ¥S0'L oRLRECL U ‘Wawdmbe pus Yued ‘Ausdald
Y292 = L C HR'EITY ('e) eLe'sl WD ore'nh £e8'L \L'I66 usped WeIx 3] ¥EN 0] 5B PANUA "TUsIGTAY]
ris'ezL) (oie'cor) ez 088’1 0L0'Z2Z) erse) 6LT'sH o' L) LT 8L5'500°) HOWT 2 RIeL
968'921 [CTYY) ELVEr (213 €rrIch = It [ VSl 195 1 Teant RIS UL 2010 PUT ‘Ajussy “wpmdasd
0 (rze'zon) L1124 16’} j 4% -13 ZiL'se) R - LyeL 33 otY'1e SNEYYS woy eng
L — - - £V - - - - = F7IN} WqEAE0a1 9alpeyd Jo vag.od oD
BS'rL -_ o = 'L - s = = e 20571 Ay U 10 uenod weno
005'%s - 6182 - LeL'es - - £ b e SOE'es SN 0 PARUY HUSWIISAN jO UORIOD e LN
BLITEL - Fan £66 909'2CE = [ 144 £ 00T e YZL'L67 HAWARON UNOISE [
S2LeCS = oLy ss'e L98°L25 - = [ 73 £l 6LZ09 660'05¥ L4 AUBEARDS YIS pUs ysaD
[OTER NS
5 [ ] ) [T e T O] UofepUiod | pdtoH | ueitAg oy ety
PaIEpleTu0l aHHD amon dnoug oy umudopeasg powen ey reopen
dnoip dnoig peyebiqo sty vty saviky sunfuy obenyy
pewigqouon  pabiqo-ucy 1 Kymenun
o 0 "y

(spuwsnolg o LeRT)
0202 '05 bunr
UCREULIOJU) 19843 Sa1rem) DupspRoUCD

YANTD TWHTIN QOVHHD JO ALISHIAIND ML
L

ATTACHMENT 35

138



#21-033

¥g ollag
uede uppne Juspuedspu) Bukusdwoxe seg
Teez ey 3 e el LoD 3 08z L0 %] Teerr [57%) t SUOGILISE JOUDD U Keeta J0U Ul {#tierap] ssmeriy
[ (] TetF = € 3 - - T [} = U I00 PUS SUBLHGNO
£ - z - £ -_ - -— —_ - £ aes0dind pudes Jo) UCRIIEE WOI) DESES I KEISE BN
wezes) - - - (g92'es) = - - - - (a9t'e5% SN |9 LR A o WP [0 voniod sAgORyT
£2e'y) = - - lezed) = = - - (ezed) TR0 Yjeuaq Spenad 19U U] JNIC TRINAG uorued penrot U slueyD
sy = > (7 ¥H = = = - (05242} 1ou "abmopyc o ApmsBALY O LISIEURA 1STER 1N
= ORI JOUSE WO ETEE J0U L) SBURLYD HNDQ
RSS'SL ey wee'st) Lsz's £0L'88 2) [ 4} LAl {E54'72) £ ] T wowso] pur sasusdxa 1o (WHREIP) $500X8 | Sumdl pUB SURAY
YT g 1D == 3 = ®RS St 6L 5733 [T {89993]) susd Bupmssdouau 1N
[T T T = WED = et oozl M) ToTw Tt )
(s6€) - = - st - = - = {8t} padpay uo SApuALeT
e = = = {&s1e2 = — ez O S WUBLINGEN BAGEAISD PASDAULICY ) S04 J1B) U1 400y D
€EO'LE = L 1H] - wo'Le = s £28't [T ;2 7% <4 18U “BUOOU| ULISRAL|
— Jeu Y{seuncq) sumd Supeiedoucn
SL805 B Teer oL Tied Sr9LL [£3) ¥sL [G:3) (63473 (53] €00'00F WHRINIES O (JPURR]} SRR U BWIBASI DUREINAC
SLerT ero oLt Y9929 X STLITrE ‘ez XD GI5Z SZT9ZE €59 TR0 sesusde Sugeisdo mi0)
s = = e TS0 624 = or = D S0 SLFTIL VOREZLKRUE PUR UoQEPAideq
[k - e - L cdd - = L - wger X0 Ispyroad pRODSYY
1STTr {zal's} . 1] o'ty - - - wr'e o 960'%E ey
ssb'oe @eLL) T3] 8L [T-}+4 Len oz 9ZTol sray LEEEL sourINgy]
£5FLEC Lvee) SLI'GE sor BLE'E6Z {zeo's) oz 0z 90292 1% ] o6R'ZiL SEAIE UG
oL oRR iz9a'z) Fid¥ ) $52T ouL'avd {Los'L) 95'L (1134 SR58LL T oEL'REL 180 pus seyddng:
590°750°L lgsr'L! LLZE 2082 RE0'LZOL — Ll [} ZEV'PEL LST &r0'CLE [UAK U ‘selaw: ‘sHmEg
— assusize Jugawdo
L5 Tevoen) ezzer BSTLE DLLPOSZ T8 ZL) -7y BZT CEAton wLEL SIPGELE £huEAR) BULRISAS 0L
[Ty syl TR €565 B [F3TFLY) 5o 2 R WEl 662 vt UORSLISE LIOL PSS TOEsS (ou P Sousas) Sugeiedo JpQ
LS48Y0°T 9612} rd g4 sor'e 2£'$20T = Fi- 41 = vz & aLETRLt * sNUBABI BAIRE JUSRRY
..... N
el RO ] ] VS PROTUGY T ] D [ [ mquey
L ] QHHD oWN dnoap swoy Waudopmeg L ] e Lot |
dnoeny dnaxgy L ] ety by sy ) obeaya
uon o-UoN o Apmsenjur
b 00 LT
{spurmnoy o o)
0202 'DC MUNQ PAOUS BO)
SUODHIERY JOUSC) INSULNA RN 10N Ul s08uBy 2 pum 0K

EWnpREg

YIUNID TWHOIN OOVIHHD 0 ALISHIAND THL

ATTACHMENT 35

139



#21-033

55 ey
VLLSeLT €82 0L v Toes'se] 605699 L @yt 53 i £98JE2 Go vl [T
et s Tez5 Tz e 00T Ty (37 R 0F [ Toso'®) 50T
sl ) [ 1Y) it~ {eelLc} s (C14 062 (20522} lsar'e) 935°9)
(900"t} - 3 C {20v's} e 3 (r28) (sse} = zeet
7y = = = VL = - T = EX
] - = = ] =4} = - = - }
fiss'e) = — = hesm o = foriL't) - — (50w 2}
z ! - ! 95e = - (gee) - o
185 - = = (V159 - = 82 - - 182y
T3] 3 TZve 6t Ttz [ 7X ) [ T A0 T TeErvy (7]
[ (3] [ = £ 3 = L (3] =
£ - z - £ - = - = 5 £
el - - - wezes) - = - = le9z'cs
{eze') - = - - - = - (¥ ]
{os'es} - = = osL'10 - - - - tose'si}
#5554 89’y ipce'sL) L{T:- ) 208 3 4] [ 4 'L iesyzzy L0 2 'z 5
L) UOpRUWNS [T [T USTEPROTUTD Uy & UGERURG] | mieor | GedE | moen
PANPHOIUSY THHD 2W2N dnaig LT Y] susiopneg mpcwap L] Py
dnorp dnorg pamiyqo L] sy by skabut abeayn
pmdgqo-uoy pepdac-uon o Rtsseaqury
o oo LTS
tipumanow wy wepeq)

OZOZ (X SUNr pepUS Jee )
LSRAULOJUL B3ty 1N Uy Selumy s o WeUMIRE BUTRD RIS
MILNID TYHHGIN ODVIHD JO ALISHIAING THL
L]

“Hods! sopne joepusdapuy Buusdiuascs #e5

1uwk jo pus 1k (IOYSP) KBASE JON
Jeei g0 BupanBeq e Jpyep) gessy 8y
LU SUTUE. T TE ]
FUONHNSA FOUOR YIPh TSN JOU U) (OBRE0D) SERaIcU|

[
e Joj pasn a1 POsESII HSRSE 0N
10) PYSN BUOROLIR WAK POSTIIS] TVEsS 0N
ORRPUNG.S Y I3AIRHN 10U oy SBURYS

WORMALOS

PR I $8) JOUCE LI ESNE 1]
BUBRIHIEAI MIUOD WNOLIM HBESE 16U L {S888.300) SR8
U M0 PUE B0NqUING
sesodind oKD 0] UGBS WO} PIBMEI TR JoN
SOAGEALBD JO UORENRA U| STURYS JO woRied SARMNT
100 Jueueq

Apoped WU UNLY 1MAD GUELS UoBued PanLYIE W SSURYD
W OBRIND 30 AUSIRAN O MIBEURI] Jhita laN
BT8O0 pun » SHIOAE L) SUNE PUE Sriubaby

UL JOUOR MWL EESE I8N

ATTACHMENT 35

140



#21-033

THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)

ATTACHMENT 35
141



#21-033

THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER

Table of Contents

Page
Independent Auditors’ Report 1
Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets 3
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets without Donor
Restrictions 4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets 5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7
Supplemental Schedules
Consolidating Balance Sheet Information 49
Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
Information 50
Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets Information 51
ATTACHMENT 35

142



#21-033

KPMG LLP
Aon Center
Suite 5500
200 E. Randolph Street
Chicago, IL 60601-6436

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Trustees
The University of Chicago Medical Center:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The University of Chicago Medical
Center, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions, changes in net
assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financiai statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consoclidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also inciudes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of The University of Chicago Medical Center as of June 30, 2019 and 2018,

and the results of its consolidated operations, changes in its consolidated net assets and of its consolidated
cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG L1 P :5 a Delawire imited Labiily partasiesh p and the U.S. membar
tirm of the EPMG natwark of mdependent member firms aft izted wiih
EPMG International Cocperative (“KPMG Intcinetionsl ™), a Swiss antity.
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Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements, The University of Chicago Medical Center
adopted new accounting guidance for Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from
Contracts with Customer (Topic 608) and ASU No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-
profit Entities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.

Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The 2019 supplementary information included in schedules 1 through 3 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directiy to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole.

KPMe P

Chicago, lllinois
November 20, 2019
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2019 and 2018

{In thousands)

Assets 2019 2018
Current assets;

Cash and cash equivalents $ 174,122 211,751

Patient accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectibles
of $160,307 in 2018 399,130 347,870
Current portion of investments limited to use 19,292 8,872
Current portion of malpractice self-insurance receivable 15,266 17,491
Current portion of pledges receivable 1,434 1,052
Prepaids, inventory, and other current assets 155,424 111,563
Total current assets 764,668 698,599
Investments limited to use, less current portion 1,243,928 1,200,413
Property, plant, and equipment, net 1,567,756 1,602,751
Pledges receivable, less current portion 1,438 1,435
Malpractice self-insurance receivable, less current portion 85,361 86,319
Other assets, net 54,891 52,542
Total assets $ 3,718,042 3,642,059

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 241,248 251,424
Current portion of long-term debt 18,098 17,323
Current portion of other long-term liabilities 725 208
Estimated third-party payor settlements 263,259 214,184
Current portion of malpractice self-insurance liability 15,266 17,491
Due to University of Chicago 30,769 36,807
Total current liabilities 569,365 537,437
Other liabilities:
Workers' compensation self-insurance liabilities, less current portion 6,396 5,782
Malpraclice self-insurance liability, less current portion 128,462 127,154
Long-term debt, less current portion 987,858 1,011,129
Interest rate swap liability 136,186 104,412
Other long-term liabilities, less current portion 40,302 35,878
Total liabilities 1,868,569 1,821,792
Net assets:
Without donor restrictions 1,736,382 1,708,799
With donor restrictions 113,091 111,468
Total net assets 1,849,473 1,820,267
Total liabilities and net assets $ 3,718,042 3,642,059

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions
Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

{In thousands)

2019 2018
QOperating revenues:
Net patient service revenue $ 2,121,969 2,183,011
Provision for doubtful accounts — 182,894
Net patient service revenue after provision for doubtful
accounts 2,121,969 2,000,117
Other operating revenues and net assets released from
restrictions used for operating purposes 265,533 211,898
Total operating revenues 2,387,502 2,212,015
Operating expenses:;
Salaries, wages, and benefits 992,398 943,550
Supplies and other 767,042 679,490
Physician services 283,142 280,780
Insurance 28,982 46,690
Interest 44,456 43,924
Medicaid provider tax 66,640 59,773
Depreciation and amortization 128,198 125,032
Total operating expenses 2,310,858 2,179,239
Operating revenue in excess of expenses 76,644 32,776
Nonoperating gains and losses:
Investment income, net 60,092 65,503
Change in fair value of nonhedged derivative instruments {2,003) 2,356
Derivative ineffectiveness on hedged derivative instruments 1,190 (62)
Other, net 7,706 604
Revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses 143,629 101,177
Other changes in net assets without donor restrictions:
Net asset transfers to University of Chicago, net {71,750) (71,750)
Change in accrued pensien benefits other than net periodic
benefit costs {14,787) {7,853)
Effective portion of change in valuation of derivatives (29,233) 24,635
Net assets released from restriction for capital purposes 462 —
Distributions and other, net (738) (449)
Increase in net assets without donor restrictions $ 27,583 45,760
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
4
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(In thousands)

Net assets without donor restrictions:
Revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses
Net asset transfers to University of Chicago, net
Change in accrued pension benefits other than net periodic
benefit cost
Effective portion of change in valuation of derivatives
Net assets released from restrictions for capital purposes
Distributions and other, net

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions:
Contributions
Net assets released from restrictions used for operating purposes
Investment income
Net assets released from resfrictions for capital purposes

Increase in temporarily restricted net assets
Change in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2019 2018
143,629 101,177
(71.750) (71,750)
(14,787) (7.853)
(29,233) 24,635

462 -
(738) (449)
27,583 45,760
4,443 5,090
(7,072) (7,295)
4,714 5,767
(462) —
1,623 3,562
29,206 49,322
1,820,267 1,770,945
1,849,473 1,820,267
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets 3 29,206 49322
Adjusiments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Net change in unrealized gains and losses on investments {14,057) 544
Net asset transfers to University of Chicago 71,750 71,750
Restricted contributions and investment return {9,157) {10,857)
Realized gains on investments (31,705) {52,157)
Net change in valuation of derivatives 31,774 (25,038)
Change in accrued pension benefits other than net period benefit cost and other 14,787 7,853
Provision for deubtful accounts - 182,824
Net assets released from restrictions for operations 7,072 7.295
Depreciation and amortization 128,198 125,032
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Patient accounts receivable, nel (51,260) (98,594)
Other assets (43,412) (21,269)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses {11,694) 33,972
Due to University of Chicago {6,038) 8,082
Estimated settlements with third-party payors 49,075 36,003
Self-insurance liabilities (303) (8,229)
Other liabilities (9,846} (16,434)
Net cash provided by operating activities 154,390 290,099
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment {90,555) (100,325)
Change in construction payables 1.518 (5.143)
Purchases of investments (437,136} (451,471}
Sales of investments 428,963 517,379
Net cash used in investing activities (97.210) {39,560)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, including bond premium - 61,220
Payments on long-ferm obligations (25,144) {65,917}
Payments on revolving credit facility — (3,000}
Payments for bond issuance costs _ (349)
Net asset transfers to University of Chicago, net (71,750) (71,750)
Net assets released from restriction for operations {7.072) {7,295)
Restricled contributions and investment return 9,157 10,857
Net cash used in financing activilies (94,809) (76,234)
Net {decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents {37.629) 174,305
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 211,751 37,446
End of year $ 174,122 211,751
See accompanying notes to consdfidated financial statements.
]
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
{Dollars in thousands)

(1) Organization and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consofidated financial statements represent the accounts of The University of Chicago
Medical Center and its affiliates (the System). The University of Chicago Medical Center (UCMC) is the
parent of an integrated nonprofit health care organization, partnering with the University of Chicago
Biological Sciences Division, the University of Chicago Pritzker School of Medicine, and the University of
Chicago Physicians Group to provide world-class medical care in an academic setting. UCMC operates the
Center for Care and Discovery, the Bemard Mitchell Hospital, the Chicago Lying-In Hospital, the University
of Chicago Comer Children’s Hospital, the Duchossois Center for Advanced Medicine, the University of
Chicago Medicine Care Network, the UCM Community Health and Hospital Division, Inc. (CHHD), and
various other outpatient clinics and treatment areas. In May 2018, UCMC opened its Level 1 Trauma
Center to serve the South Side of Chicago and surrounding community.

On October 1, 2016, UCMC acquired Ingalls Health System (IHS) through an affiliation and member
substitution. As a result of this transaction, IHS became a wholly owned subsidiary of UCMC through the
newly created CHHD of UCMC.

On June 28, 2019 UCMC amended its Obligated Group to include the following entities: UCMC (excludes
the University of Chicago Medicine Care Network, UCMC Title Holding Corporation and UCMC Title
Holding Corporation Il NFP), Ingalls Health System, Ingalls Memorial Hospital, Ingalls Development
Foundation, and Ingalls Home Care as presented in the supplemental consolidating schedules. Entities of
UCMC that are included in the Non-Obligated Group are the University of Chicago Medicine Care Network,
University of Chicago Medicine Medical Group, UCMC Title Holding Corporation, and UCMC Title Holding
Corporation |l NFP. Entities of CHHD that are included in the Non-Obligated Group are Ingalls Provider
Group, Ingalls Care Network, Medcentrix, Ingalls Health Ventures, Ingalis Casualty Insurance, and Ingails
Same Day Surgery. These are presented in the supplemental schedules as “Other Non-Obligated Group
Entities” for purposes on consolidation.

The University of Chicago (the University), as the sole corporate member of UCMC, elects UCMC's Board
of Trustees and approves its bylaws. The UCMC President reports to the University's Executive Vice
President for Medical Affairs. The retationship between UCMC and the University is defined in the Medical
Center bylaws, an affiliation agreement, an operating agreement, and several leases. See note 4 for
agreements and transactions with the University.

{2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

{a) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Systern have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

7 {Continued)
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
{Dollars in thousands)

(b} New Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2016, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. ASU No. 2016-14
represents phase 1 of FASB’s not-for-profit financial reporting project, and results reduce the number of
net asset classes, require expense presentation by functional and natural classification, require
quantitative and qualitative information in liquidity, retain the option to present the cash flow statement
on a direct or indirect method, as well as include various other additional disclosure requirements. The
requirements of this statement were effective for the System for the year ending June 30, 2019. The
impact on financial statement presentation and disclosure includes previous classifications as
permanently and temporarily restricted net assets were combined and now presented as net assets
with donor restrictions in concurrence with the standard. Additional disclosures were modified to reflect
this classification change along with disclosure of liquidity of assets and current liabilities and to
disclose the operating expenses by function.

On July 1, 2018, the System adopted ASU No. 2014-09 following the modified retrospective method of
application for the adoption of the guidance to all contracts existing on July 1, 2018, resulting in no
impact to the System’s existing revenue streams. At the adoption of ASU No. 2014-09, the majority of
what was previously classified as the provision for bad debts {(which would have approximated
$201,012 for the year ended June 30, 2018) is now reflected as an implicit price concession (as
defined in ASU No. 2014-09) and, therefore, is included as a reduction to net patient service revenue in
the accompanying 2019 consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without
donor restriction. Such amounts were also reclassified in the 2019 consolidated statements of cash
flows to the change in patient accounts receivable. For changes in credit issues not assessed at the
date of service, the System will prospectively recognize those amounts as bad debt expense in
operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets without donor restriction. For periods prior to the adoption of ASU No. 2014-09, the provision for
bad debts has been presented consistent with previous presentation prior to adoption of the new ASU.

The System uses a portfolio approach to apply the new model to classes of payors with similar
characteristics and analyzes cash collection trends over an appropriate collection look-back period
depending on the payor. The System completed an initial assessment of the impact of the new
standard on various reimbursement programs that represent variable consideration and concluded that
accounting for these programs under the new standard is substantially consistent with the System's
historical accounting practices.

In February 2016, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. ASU No. 2016-02 requires entities to
recognize all leased assets as assets on the consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding liability.
Entities will also be required to present additional disclosures as to the nature and extent of leasing
activities. The System implemented the new standard effective July 1, 2019, which is expected to result
in the establishment of a right of use asset and lease liability of approximately $27,700 to $30,900 in
the consolidated balance sheet,
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
(Dollars in thousands)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabifities at the date
of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

{d) Community Benefits

(e)

The System’s policy is to treat patients in immediate need of medical services without regard to their
ability to pay for such services, including patients transferred from other hospitals under the provisions
of the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act. UCMC also accepts patients through the
Perinatal and Pediatric Trauma Networks without regard to their ability to pay for services.

The System developed a Financial Assistance Policy (the Policy) under which patients are offered
discounts of up to 100% of charges on a sliding scale. The Policy is based both on income as a
percentage of the Federal Poverty Level guidelines and the charges for services rendered. The Policy
also contains provisions that are responsive to those patients subject to catastrophic healthcare
expenses. Since the System does not pursue collection of these amounts, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue. The estimated cost of providing care under this Policy, along with the
unreimbursed cost of government sponsored indigent heaithcare programs, unreimbursed cost to
support education, clinical research, and other community programs for the years ended June 30, 2019
and 2018, are reported in note 6.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the price that the System would receive upon selling an asset or pay to settle a
liability in an orderly transaction among market participants.

The System uses a framework for measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy that categorizes and
prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value. This hierarchy is broken down into
three levels based on inputs that market participants would use in valuing the financial instruments
based on market data obtained from sources independent of the System. Inputs refer broadly to the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset, including assumptions about risk.
Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the asset developed based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting
entity’'s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset
developed based on the best information available. The three tier hierarchy of inputs is summarized in
the three broad levels as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted market prices in active markets for identical investments

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices for similar investments in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar investments in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted prices
that are observable, including model-based valuation techniques
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
(Dollars in thousands)

Level 3 - Valuation techniques that use significant inputs that are unobservable because they trade
infrequently or not at all

{) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include U.S. Treasury notes, commercial paper, and corporate notes with eoriginal
maturities of three months or less, excluding investments whose use is limited.

{g) inventory

The System values inventories at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out method.

(h) Investments

(0

Investments are classified as trading securities. As such, investment income or loss (including realized
or unrealized gains and losses on investments, interest, and dividends) is included in excess of
revenue and gains over expenses and losses unless the income is restricted by donor or law.

Investments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements at estimated fair value. If an
investment is held directly by an entity and an active market with quoted prices exists, the market price
of an identical security is used as reported fair value. Reported fair values for shares in mutual funds
are based on share prices reported by the funds as of the last business day of the fiscal year. The
System’s interests in alternative investment funds, such as private debt, private equity, real estate,
natural resources, and absolute return, are generally reported at the net asset value (NAV) reported by
the fund managers, which is used as a practical expedient to estimate the fair value, unless it is
probable that all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount different from NAV. As of
June 30, 2019 and 2018, the System had no plans to sell investments at amounts different from NAV.

A significant portion of the System’s investments are part of the University’s Total Return investment
Pool (TRIP). The System accounts for its investments in TRIP on the fair value method based on its
share of the underlying securities, and accordingly, records the investment activity as if the System
owned the investments directly using the fair value option election. The University does not engage
directly in unhedged speculative investments; however, the Board of the University has authorized the
use of derivative investments to adjust market exposure within asset class ranges.

A summary of the inputs used in valuing the System's investments as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 is
included in note 7.

Investments Limited as to Use

Investments limited as to use primarily include assets held by trustees under debt and other
agreements and designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees (the Board) for future capital
improvements and other specific purposes, over which the Board retains control and may at its
discretion subsequently use for other purposes. Investments limited as to use also include investments
held under swap collateral posting requirements, investments under the workers’ compensation
self-insurance trust funds, and investments whose use is restricted by donors. Investments limited as to
use are reported as net assets without donor restrictions. Investments whose use is restricted by
donors are reported as net assets with donor restrictions.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
(Dollars in thousands)

Derivative Instruments

The System accounts for derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with Accounting Standards
Cadification (ASC) Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, which requires that all derivative instruments
be recorded as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet at their respective fair values.

For hedging relationships, the System formally documents the hedging relationship and its risk
management objective and strategy for understanding the hedge, the hedging instrument, the nature of
the risk being hedged, how the hedging investment's effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be
assessed, and a description of the method for measuring ineffectiveness. This process includes linking
all derivatives that are presented as cash flow hedges to specific assets and liabilities in the balance
sheet.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are reported on the basis of cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment is calculated by use of the straight-line
method at rates intended to depreciate the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, which
generally range from three to eighty years. Interest costs incurred during the period of construction of
capital assets are capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets.

Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions by donors that specify how the assets are to be used
and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as
restricted contributions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must
be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived
assets are placed in service.

The System periodically assesses the recoverability of long-lived assets (including property, plant, and
equipment) when indications of potential impairment based on estimated, undiscounted future cash
flows exist. Management considers factors, such as current results, trends, and future prospects, in
addition to other economic factors, in determining whether there is an impairment of the asset.

Asset Retirement Obligation

The System recognizes a liability for the fair value of a legal obligation to perform asset retirement
activities in which the timing or method of setilement are conditional on a future event if the amount can
be reasonably estimated. Upon recognition of a liability, the asset retirement cost is recorded as an
increase in the carrying value of the related long-lived asset and then depreciated over the life of the
asset. The System’s asset retirement obligations arise primarily from regulations that specify how to
dispose of asbestos if facilities are demolished or undergo major renovations or repairs. The System’s
obligation to remove asbestos was estimated using site-specific surveys where available and a per
square foot estimate where surveys were unavailable.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
{Dollars in thousands)

(m) Other Assets and Liabilities

(n)

Goodwill and intangible assets principally relate to physician practice acquisitions. Intangible assets are
being amortized over a period, generally not to exceed five years. Intangible assets, net of
accumulated amortization, were $210 and $438 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, and are included within other assets, net in the consolidated balance sheets. The System
follows the provisions of ASC Subtopic 958-805, Not-for-Profit Entities — Business Combinations, which
requires goodwill to be reviewed for impairment at least annually using a two-step test. Goodwill at
June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $2,906 and $2,412, respectively, and is included in other assets, net
within the consolidated balance sheets. No goodwill impairment was recorded by the System in 2019
and 2018.

Net Assets

Net assets are classified into two classes of net assets: without donor restrictions and with donor
restrictions. Descriptions of the two net asset categories and the types of transactions affecting each
category follows:

Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. ltems that
affect this net asset category principally consist of fees for service and related expenses associated
with the core activities of the System: patient care and provision of healthcare services. In addition to
these exchange transactions, changes in this category of net assets include investment returns on
“funds functioning as endowment” funds, actuarial adjustments to self-insurance liabilities, changes in
post retirement benefit obligations, and other types of philanthropic support. The philanthropic support
includes gifts without restriction, board designated funds functioning as endowment and restricted gifts
whose donor-imposed restrictions were met during the fiscal year, as well as previously restricted gifts
and grants for buildings and equipment that have been placed in service.

With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that will be met either by
actions of the System or the passage of time. items that affect this net asset category are gifts for
which donor-imposed restrictions have not been metin the year of receipt, including gifts and grants for
buildings and equipment not yet placed in service; endowment, annuity, and life income gifts; pledges
and investment returns on “true” endowment funds, and endowments where the principal may be
expended upon the passage of a stated period of time (term endowments). Expirations of restrictions
on net assets with donor restrictions, including reclassification of restricted gifts and grants for buildings
and equipment when the associated long-lived asset is placed in service, are reported as net assets
released from restrictions.

Also included in net assets with donor restrictions are net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions
to be maintained permanently by the System, including gifts and pledges wherein donors stipulate that
the principal/corpus of the gift be held in perpetuity and that only the income be made available for
program operations. Other permanently restricted items in this net asset category include annuity and
life income gifts for which the ultimate purpose of the proceeds is permanently restricted.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
(Dollars in thousands)

The description of amounts classified as donor restricted net assets (endowments only) as of June 30,
2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Time Time
rastricted restricted 2019
Perpetual by donor by law Total
Restricted for pediatric healthcare $ 4,058 —_ 17,673 21,731
Restricted for adult healthcare 4,117 —_ 57,255 61,372
Reastricted for educational and
scientific programs 9,323 — 2,862 12,185
$ 17,498 — 77,790 95,288
Time Time
restricted restricted 2018
Perpetual by donor by law Total
Restricted for pediatric healthcare $ 3,951 — 17,478 21,429
Restricted for adult healthcare 4,320 —_ 57,114 61,434
Restricted for educational and
scientific programs 9,216 — 2,788 12,004
$ 17,487 — 77,380 94,867

The endowment component of net assets without donor restrictions comprises of amounts designated
by the Board to function as endowment, which amounted to $923,571 and $824,607 as of June 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

All activities of the System deemed by management to be ongoing, major, and central to the provision
of healthcare services are reported as operating revenue and expenses.

The consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions includes
revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions
that are excluded from revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses include net asset transfers
to the University, contributions of long-lived assets released from restrictions (including assets acquired
using contributions, which by donor restriction were to be used for acquisition of System assets), net
assets released from restriction for capital purchases, the effective portion of changes in the valuation
of derivatives, change in accrued pension benefits other than net periodic benefit costs, and other, net.

Patient Service Revenue, Accounts Receivable, Charity Care, and Third Party Settlements
(i) Patient Service Revenues

Gross charges are retail charges and generally do not reflect what a hospital is ultimately paid and,
therefore, are not displayed in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
(Dollars in thousands)

without donor restrictions. The system is typically paid amounts that are negotiated with insurance
companies or are set by the government. Gross charges are used to calculate Medicare outlier
payments and to determine certain elements of payment under managed care contracts (such as
stop-loss payments). Because Medicare requires that gross charges be the same for all patients
(regardiess of payer category), gross charges are what is charged to all patients prior to the
application of discounts and allowances.

The System recognizes net operating revenue in the period in which it satisfies the performance
obligations under contracts by transferring the services to its customers. The performance
obligations for patient contracts are generally completed when the patients are discharged, which
generally occurs within days or weeks of the end of the reporting period. As provided for under the
guidance, the System does not adjust the promised amount of consideration from patients and
third-party payors for the effects of a significant financing component due to the expectation that
the period between the time the service is provided to a patient and the time that the patient or a
third-party payor pays for that service will be one year or less. Net operating revenues are
recognized in the amounts to which it expects to be entitied, which are the transaction prices
allocated to the distinct services.

The System has agreements with governmental and other third-party payors that provide for
payments to the System at amounts different from established charges. Payment arrangements for
major third-party payors may be based on prospectively determined rates, reimbursed cost,
discounted charges, per diem payments, or other methods. The transaction price is determined
based on gross charges for services provided, reduced by explicit price concessions provided to
third-party payers, discounts provided to uninsured patients in accordance with the Financial
Assistance Program, and implicit price concessions provided primarily to uninsured patients. The
estimates of explicit price concessions and discounts are based on contractual agreements,
discount policies, and historical experience. The estimates of implicit price concessions are based
on historical collection experience with these classes of patients using the portfolio approach.

Premium and Capitation Revenue

Premium and capitation revenues are received and recognized as revenue ratably over the period
for which the enrolled member is entitled to healthcare services. The timing of the System’s
performance may differ from the timing of the payment received, which may result in the
recognition of a contract asset or a contract liability. The System has no material contract assets or
liabilities at June 30, 2019.
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(i)} Allowance for Bad Debts

(iv)

(v)

As a result of adopting ASU No. 2014-09 as described, The System continues to maintain an
allowance for bad debts related to performance obligations satisfied prior to July 1, 2018. The
System provided for an allowance against patient accounts receivable for amounts that could
become uncollectible. The System estimated this allowance based on the aging of accounts
receivable, historical collection experience by payor, and other relevant factors. These various
factors that can impact the collection, trends, such as changes in the economy, which in turn have
an impact on unemployment rates and the number of uninsured and underinsured patients, the
increased burden of copayments to be made by patients with insurance coverage and business
practices related to collection efforts. These factors continuously change and can have an impact
on collection trends the estimation process used by the System. The System recorded a provision
for bad debts in the period of services on the basis of past experience, which has historically
indicated that many patients are unresponsive or are otherwise unwilling to pay the portion of their
bill for which they are financially responsible. There were no revisions to the allowance for doubtful
accounts in 2019.

Charity Care

The System provides charity care to patients who meet the criteria for charity care as published in
their Financial Assistance Policy. Patients who qualify are provided care without charge or at
amounts less than established rates. System policy is not to pursue collection of amounts
determined to qualify as charity care; therefore, they do not report these amounts in net patient
revenues. Patient advocates from the System screen patients in the hospital to determine whether
those patients meet eligibility requirements for financial assistance programs. They also expedite
the process of applying for these government programs.

Third Party Settlements

Revenues under the traditional fee-for-service Medicare and Medicaid programs are based
primarily on prospective payment systems. Retrospectively determined cost-based revenues under
these programs, which were more prevalent in earlier periods, and certain other payments, such as
Indirect Medical Education, Direct Graduate Medical Education, disproportionate share hospital,
and bad debt expense reimbursement, which are based on the hospitals' cost reports, are
estimated using historical trends and current factors. Cost report settlements under these programs
are subject to audit by Medicare and Medicaid auditors and administrative and judicial review, and
it can take several years until final settlement of such matters is determined and completely
resolved. Because the laws, regulations, instructions, and rule interpretations governing Medicare
and Medicaid reimbursement are complex and change frequently, the estimates recorded could
change by material amounts.
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The System has an estimation process for recording Medicare net patient service revenue and
estimated cost report settlements. As a result, the System record accruals to reflect the expected
final settiements on our cost reports. For filed cost reports, the System records the accrual based
on those cost reports and subsequent activity, and record a valuation allowance against those cost
reports based on historical settlement trends. The accrual for periods for which a cost report is yet
to be filed is recorded based on estimates of what are expected to report on the filed cost reports,
and a corresponding valuation allowance is recorded as previously described. Cost reports
generally must be filed within five months after the end of the annual cost reporting period. After the
cost report is filed, the accrual and corresponding valuation allowance may need to be adjusted.

Settlements with third-party payers for retroactive revenue adjustments due to audits, reviews, or
investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the
estimated transaction price for providing patient care using the most likely outcome method. These
settlements are estimated based on the terms of the payment agreement with the payer,
cormrespondence from the payer and historical setttement activity, including an assessment to
ensure that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is subsequently
resolved. Estimated settlements are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known {that
is, new information becomes available), or as years are settled or are no longer subject to such
audits, reviews and investigations. Adjustments from the finalization of prior years' cost reports and
other third-party settlement estimates resulted in an increase in net patient service revenues of
$190 and $3,508, for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

(q) Hospital Assessment Program/Medicaid Provider Tax

In December 2008, the State of lllinois, after receiving approval by the federal government,
implemented a hospital assessment program for the period from July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2013.
The program was extended in July 2012 to December 31, 2014 and again in June 2014 to June 30,
2018. In June 2018, the State of lllinois approved SB 1773, which was signed into Blinois Public Law
100-581. The law redesigned the original program as well as the ACA program described below. Under
the program, most hospitals in the State of lllincis will provide funding to the state government, which is
subsequently matched by the federal government yielding increased Medicaid reimbursement.

In March 2010, the federal government passed the ACA, which expanded Medicaid coverage

to millions of low-income Americans and made improvements to both the Medicaid and the Children's
Health Insurance Program. Beginning in 2016, coverage for newly eligible adults was expanded to
include adults covered by an authorized Medicaid managed care organization, which would be funded
by the federal government. Both changes were part of the original assessment program described
above and were collapsed into the hospital assessment redesign effective July 1, 2018.

In 2019, reimbursement under the assessment programs resulted in a net increase of $65,962 in
operating income, which includes $132,602 in Medicaid payments included in net patient service
revenue offset by $66,640 in Medicaid provider tax expense. In 2018, reimbursement under the
assessment programs resulted in a net increase of $64,065 in operating income, which includes
$123,838 in Medicaid payments included in net patient service revenue offset by $59,773 in Medicaid
provider tax expense.
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Income Taxes

The System applies ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in a company's consolidated financial statements. ASC Topic 740 prescribes
a more likely than not recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken. Under ASC Topic 740,
tax positions are evaluated for recognition, derecognition, and measurement using consistent criteria
and provide more information about the uncertainty in income tax assets and liabilities. As of June 30,
2019 and 2018, the System does not have an asset or liability recorded for unrecognized tax positions.

UCMC and a substantial number of its subsidiaries are not-for-profit corporations as described in
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. The University of Chicago Medicine Care
Network, LLC and several entities within CHHD, including Ingalls Captive Insurance, Ltd (IC1),
Medcentrix, Inc. (MCX), and Ingalls Provider Group (IPG) are taxable entities under applicable sections
of the Code.

Deferred income taxes on taxable entities are recognized for the tax consequences of “temporary
differences” by applying enacted statutory tax rates applicable to future years to differences between
the consolidated financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets and
liabilities. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, ICI has net deferred tax assets primarily relating to net
operating losses (NOL} of $244 and $398, respectively, which are included within prepaids, inventory,
and other current assets in the consolidated balance sheet. A net valuation allowance of $1,129 and
$1,521 against the gross IC| deferred tax asset of $1,373 and $1,919, respectively, were considered
necessary, as management believed that it was not more likely than not that the results of future
operations would generate sufficient taxable income to realize a portion of the deferred tax assets. IPG
has an NOL of $88 and $153 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively; however, it has a full valuation
allowance as future realization of the NOL is not likely. As of June 30, 2018 and 2018, MCX has an
NOL of $17,074 and $15,206, respectively; however, it has a full valuation allowance as future
realization of the NOL is not likely. Income tax expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
were $153 and $43, respectively, and are related to ICI. This amount is recorded within supplies and
other on the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions.

Reclassifications

Certain 2018 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2019 consolidated financial statement
presentation. As a result of the adoption of ASU No. 2016-14, the way the System reports classes of
net assets changed from the previously required three classes to two. As of June 30, 2018, temporarily
restricted net assets of $93,981 and permanently restricted net assets of $17,487 have been combined
for presentation as net assets with donor restrictions for 2019.
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() Subsequent Events

In connection with the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and in accordance with
ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Events, the System evaluated events and transactions through November
20, 2019, the date the consolidated financial statements were issued noting no subsequent events
requiring recording or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements or related notes to the
consolidated financial statements other than the item noted in note 16(c).

{3) Financial Assets and Liquidity Resources

As of June 30, 2019 financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general
expenditure, such as operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on debt, and capital construction
costs not financed with debt, were as follows:

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 3 174,122
Patient accounts receivable 399,130
Total financial assets awailable within one year 573,252
Liquidity resources:
Bank lines of credit 50,000
Total financial assets and liquidity resources
available within one year $ 623,252
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 241,248
Estimated third-party payor settlements 263,259
Current portion of long-term debt 18,098
Other current liabilities 46,760
Total current liabilities $ 569,365

The System’s cash flows have seasonal variations during the year attributable to patient service
reimbursement from the State of lllinois, payments from patients and insurance. As discussed in note
10(d), to manage liquidity, the System maintains a line of credit with a financial institution to potentially
draw funds as needed during the year to manage cash flows. As of June 30, 2019, amounts outstanding
under the line of credit facility amounted to $0. In addition, as of June 30, 2019, the System has $923,571
in funds functioning as endowment and $213,383 of CHHD investments, all available for general
expenditure upon Board approval, of which $761,284 is liquid within 12 months.
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(4) Agreements and Transactions with the University

()

The affiliation agreement with the University provides, among other things, that all members of the medical
staff will have academic appointments in the University. The affiliation agreement has an initial term of

40 years ending October 1, 2026 unless sooner terminated by mutual consent or as a result of a continuing
breach of a material obligation therein or in the operating agreement. The affiliation agreement
automatically renews for additional successive 10-year terms following expiration of the initial term, unless
either party provides the other with at least two years’ prior written notice of its election not to renew.

The operating agreement, as amended, provides, among other things, that the University gives UCMC the
right to use and operate certain facilities. The operating agreement is coterminous with the affiliation
agreement.

The Lease Agreements provide, among other things, that UCMC will lease from the University certain of
the healthcare facilities and land that UCMC operates and occupies. The lease agreements are
coterminous with the affiliation agreement.

UCMC purchases various services from the University, including certain employee benefits, utilities,
security, telecommunications, and insurance. In addition, certain UCMC accounting records are maintained
by the University. During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the University charged UCMC $31,036
and $28,708, respectively, for utilities, security, telecommunications, insurance, and overhead.

The University's Division of Biological Sciences provides physician services to UCMC. In 2019 and 2018,
UCMC recorded $259,650 and $252,587, respectively, in expense related to these services.

UCMC’s Board of Trustees adopted a plan of support under which it would provide annual net asset
transfers to the University for support of academic programs in biclogy and medicine. All commitments
under this plan are subject to the approval of UCMC'’s Board of Trustees and do not represent legally
binding commitments until that approval. Unpaid portions of commitments approved by the UCMC Board of
Trustees are reflected as current liabilities. UCMC recorded net asset transfers of $71,750 in 2019 and

2018 for this support.

Net Patient Service Revenue and Patient Receivables

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for reimbursement at amounts different
from their established rates. A summary of the reimbursement methodologies with major third-party payors
is as follows:

(a) Medicare

The System is paid for various services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries under
prospectively determined rates. These rates vary according to patient classification systems that are
based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. The prospectively determined rates are not subject to
retroactive adjustment. The System’s classification of patients under the prospective payment systems
and the appropriateness of the patients’ admissions are subject to validation reviews.
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Other services rendered to Medicare beneficiaries are reimbursed based on a combination of
prospectively determined rates and cost reimbursement methodologies. For the cost reimbursement,
the System is reimbursed at a tentative rate with final settiement determined after submission of annual
cost reports by the System and audits by the Medicare fiscal intermediary. UCMC’s Medicare
reimbursement reports through June 30, 2013 have been audited by the Medicare fiscal intermediary.
CHHD’s Medicare reimbursement reports through September 30, 2013 have been audited by the
Medicare fiscal intermediary.

(b) Medicaid

(c)

(d)

The System is paid for inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries under
prospectively determined rates per discharge. For inpatient acute care services, payment rates vary
according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors.
Medicaid outpatient services are reimbursed based on fee schedules. Medicaid reimbursement
methodologies may be subject to periodic adjustment, as well as to changes in existing payment levels
and rates, based on the amount of funding available to the State of lllinois Medicaid program and any
such changes could have a significant effect on the System's revenue.

Blue Cross

The System also participates as a provider of healthcare services under reimbursement agreements
with Blue Cross under its indemnity program. The provisions of the agreements stipulate that services
will be reimbursed at a tentative reimbursement rate and that final reimbursement for these services is
determined after the submission of an annual cost report by the System and a review by Blue Cross.
UCMC’s and CHHD’s Blue Cross reimbursement reports for 2018 and prior years have been reviewed
by Blue Cross.

Other

The System has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers,
health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. The basis for payment under
these agreements is negotiated by the System and includes prospectively determined rates per
discharge, discounts from established charges, and prospectively determined per diem rates.

Net patient service revenue recognized in the period from these major payor sources are as follows:

2019 2018
Medicare $ 597,322 532,943
Medicaid 463,259 360,813
Managed care 1,054,753 1,094,905
Patients and other 6,635 11,456
Net patient senice revenue after provision for
doubtful accounts $ 2,121,969 2,000,117
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The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018
Medicare 19.0 % 18.2 %
Medicaid 35.1 28.5
Managed care 446 50.5
Patients and other 1.3 2.8
100.0 % 100.0 %

A summary of the System’s utilization percentages based upon gross patient service revenue is as follows:

2019 2018

Medicare 392 % 39.0 %
Medicaid 25.1 23.1
Managed care 33.4 354
Patients and other 2.3 2.5

100.0 % 100.0 %
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{6) Community Benefits

The following is a summary of the System's unreimbursed cost of providing care, as defined under its
Financial Assistance Policy, along with the unreimbursed cost of government sponsored indigent
healthcare programs, unreimbursed cost to support education, clinical research, and other community

programs for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Uncompensated care;
Medicaid sponsored indigent healthcare $ 70,991 100,417
Medicare sponsored indigent healthcare — cost report 162,160 150,818
Medicare sponsored indigent healthcare — physician senvices 21,751 2,703
Total uncompensated care 254,902 253,938
Charity care 33,266 26,967
288,168 280,905
Unreimbursed education and research:
Education (unaudited) 59,528 70,983
Research (unaudited) 48,000 48,000
Total unreimbursed education and research 107,528 118,983
Total community benefits $ 395,696 399,888

The System determines the costs associated with providing charity care by aggregating the applicable
direct and indirect costs, including salaries, wages and benefits, supplies, and other operating expenses, to
determine a cost-to-charge ratio. The cost to charge ratio is applied to the charity care gross charges to
calculate the charity care amount reported above. The System has not amended its financial assistance

policies in 2019,
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{7) Investments Limited as to Use
The composition of investments limited as to use is as follows at June 30 2019 and 2018:

_ 2019
Separately
invested TRIP Other Total 2018
Investments carried at fair value:
Cash equivalents $ 2,292 9,922 373 12,587 12,928
Global public equities 86,866 309,503 — 396,369 346,269
Private debt — 48,412 — 48,412 41,107
Private equity.
U.S. venture capital 5,795 62,842 - 68,637 54,507
U.S. corporate finance - 37,173 - 37173 31,321
International 5 66,517 - 66,522 54,328
Real assets:
Real estate — 59,443 — 59,443 55,485
Natural resources —_ 63,373 — 63,373 67,378
Absolute return:
Equity oriented —_ 60,733 - 60,733 90,477
Global macro/relative value —_— 48,038 - 48,038 52,934
Multistrategy — 65,510 —_ 65,510 67,111
Credit oriented —_ 52,344 —_ 52,344 50,245
Protection oriented _ 18,402 - 18,402 16,816
Fixed income:
U.S. Treasuries, including TIPS — 58,529 —_ 58,529 55,883
Other fixed income 162,450 718 163,168 164,949
Other:
Beneficial interests in trust — —_ 9,303 9,303 9,316
Funds in trust — — 34677 34,677 38,231
Total investments $ 257,408 960,741 45,071 1,263,220 1,209,285

Investments classified as other consist of construction and debt proceeds to pay interest, donor restricted
investments in beneficial interests in trusts, workers' compensation, self-insurance, and trustee-held funds.
Investments limited as to use are classified as current assets to the extent they are available to meet
current liabilities. Investments are presented in the consuolidated financial statements as follows:

2019 2018
Current portion of investments limited to use $ 19,292 8,872
Investments limited to use, less current portion 1,243,928 1,200,413
Total investments limited to use $ 1,263,220 1,209,285
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A summary of investments limited as to use for the years ended June 30 is as follows:

2019
ucmc CHHD Total 2018
investments limited as to use:
By the board for capital
improvements/restrictions
by donors $ 222972 44,830 267,802 295,835
Funds held by custodian/trustee
under indeniure agreements 185 — 185 164
Funds held by trustee for
seif-insurance 4,503 16,239 20,742 32,413
Collateral for interest rate swap 13,750 —_ 13,750 —_
TRIP investments 782,884 177,857 960,741 880,873
Total investments
limited to use $ 1,024,294 238,926 1,263,220 1,209,285
The composition of investment income, net is as follows for the years ended June 30:
2019
UCMC CHHD Total 2018
Interest and dividend income, net $ 12,282 2,048 14,330 13,890
Realized gains on sales
of securities, net 25,884 5,821 31,705 52,157
Change in unrealized gains
and losses on securities, net 10,068 3,988 14,057 {544)
$ 48,235 11,857 60,092 65,503

Investment income, net within the System’s restricted investments was $4,714 and $5,767 for the year

ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Outside of TRIP, UCMC also invests in private equity limited partnerships. As of June 30, 2019, UCMC has

commitments of $1,700 remaining to fund private equity limited partnerships.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The overall investment objective of the System is to invest its assets in a prudent manner that will achieve
a long-term rate of return sufficient to fund a portion of its annual operating activities and increase
investment value after inflation. The System diversifies its investments among various asset classes
incorporating multiple strategies and external investment managers, including the University Investment
Office. Major investment decisions for investments held in TRIP and managed by the University are
authorized by the University Board of Trustee's Investment Committee, which oversees the University's
investment program in accordance with established guidelines.

The carrying amount reported in the consolidated statements of financial position for the following
approximates fair value because of the short maturities of these instruments: cash and cash equivalents,
patient accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses, and estimated payables under
third-party reimbursement programs. Cash equivalent investments include cash equivalents and
fixed-income investments, with maturities of less than one year, which are valued based on quoted market
prices in active markets. The majority of these investments are held in U.S. money market accounts. Global
public equity investments consist of separate accounts, commingled funds with liquidity ranging from daily
to monthly, and limited partnerships. Securities held in separate accounts and daily traded commingled
funds are generally valued based on quoted market prices in active markets, Commingled funds with
monthly liquidity are valued based on independently determined NAV. Limited partnership interests in
equity-oriented funds are valued based upon NAV provided by external fund managers.

Investments in private debt, private equity, real estate, and natural resources are in the form of limited
partnership interests, which typically invest in private securities for which there is no readily determinable
market value. In these cases, market value is determined by external managers based on a combination of
discounted cash flow analysis, industry comparables, and outside appraisals. Where private equity, real
estate, and natural resources managers hold publicly traded securities, these securities are generally
valued based on market prices. The value of the limited partnership interests is held at the manager's
reported NAV, unless information becomes availabie indicating the reported NAV may require adjustment.
The methods used by managers to assess the NAV of these external investments vary by asset class. The
University's Investment Office monitors the valuation methodologies and practices of managers on behalf
of the System.

The absolute return portfolic comprises investments of limited partnership interests in hedge funds and
drawdown private equity style partnerships whose managers have the authority to invest in various asset
classes at their discretion, including the ability to invest long and short. The majority of the underlying
holdings are marketable securities. The remainder of the underlying holdings is held in marketable
securities that trade infrequently or in private investments, which are valued by the manager on the basis of
an appraised value, discounted cash flow, industry comparables, or some other method. Most hedge funds
that hold illiquid investments designate them in special side pockets, which are subject to special
restrictions on redemption.

Fixed-income investments consist of directly held actively traded treasuries, separately managed accounts,
commingled funds, and bond mutual funds that hold securities, the majority of which have maturities
greater than one year. These are valued based on quoted market prices in active markets.
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Beneficial interests in trusts represent restricted investments that are assets held by third-party trustees for
beneficial interests in perpetual trusts, comprising equities, fixed-income securities, and money market
funds.

Funds in trust investments consist primarily of project construction funds and workers' compensation trust
funds. Funds in trust comprise 1% cash and cash equivalents, 99% fixed income investments and 0%
equity investments at June 30, 2019 and comprised 4% cash and cash equivalents, 88% fixed income
investments, and 8% equity investments at June 30, 2018.
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The System believes that the reported amount of its investments is a reasonable estimate of fair value as
of June 30, 2019 and 2018. Because of the inherent uncertainties of valuation, these estimated fair values
may differ significantly from values that would have been used had a ready market existed. Assets and

liabilities recorded at fair value as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Quoted Significant
prices in other Significant
active observable unobservable 2019
markets inputs inputs Total
Assets {Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) fair value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 174,122 — —_— 174,122
Inwstments:
Cash equivalents 12,587 —_ — 12,587
Global public equities 166,427 _ -— 166,427
Private equity = U.S.
Venture Capital 5,302 — —_ 5,302
Real assets:
Real estate 16,196 — —_ 16,196
Natural resources 9,660 —_ — 9,660
Absolute retum:
Global macro/relative value 8,836 — — 8,836
Fixed income:
L.S. Treasuries,
including TIPS 58,529 _ —_ 58,529
Other fixed income 163,168 — — 163,168
Restricted investments - — 9,303 9,303
Funds in trust 18,438 16,239 —_ 34,677
Investments measured at net
asset alue’ — — — 778,535
Total investments at
fair value 633,265 16,239 9,303 1,437,342
Other assets 7,385 — —_ 7,385
Total assets at
fair value 3 640,650 16,239 9,303 1.44-4,7£I_
Liabilities
Interest rate swap payable $ — 136,186 — 136,186
Total liabilities at
fair value $ — 136,186 — 136,186
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Quoted Significant
pricesin other Significant
active observable unobservable 2018
markets inputs Inputs Total
Assets {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) fair value
Cash and cash equivalents 211,751 —_ — 211,751
Investments:
Cash equivalents 12,928 — -_ 12,928
Global public equities 173,926 13,549 - 187,475
Private equity — U.S.
Venture Capital 5,613 —_ —_ 5,613
Real assets:
Real estate 14,533 —_ — 14,533
Natural resources 9,326 — — 9,326
Absolute retum:
Glohal macro/relative value 9,239 2,997 - 12,236
Fixed income:
U.S. Treasuries,
including TIPS 55,883 —_ — 55,883
Other fixed income 164,949 == — 164,949
Restricted investments — — 9,316 9,316
Funds in trust 7,632 30,599 — 38,231
Investments measured at net
asset value' — - — 698,795
Total investments at
fair value 665,780 47,145 9,316 1,421,036
Other assets 6,590 — — 6,500
Total assets at
fair value 672,370 47,145 9,316 1,427,626
Liabiliies
Interest rate swap payable — 104,414 — 104,414
Total liabilities at
fair value — 104,414 — 104,414

Certain investments that are measured at fair value using the NAV per share (or its equivalent)

practical expedient have not been categorized in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts
presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts

presented in the balance sheets.
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During 2019, there were no transfers between investment Levels 1 and 2 or between Levels 2 and 3. The
interest rate swap arrangement has inputs, which can generally be corroborated by market data and is,
therefore classified within Level 2.

The following table presents activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 for assets measured at fair value
using unobservable inputs classified in Level 3;

Level 3
rolliforward
Beginning fair value $ 9,316
Change in unrealized gains and losses, net (13)
Ending fair value $ 9,303

In addition, investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is reasonably
possible that changes in the values of the System’s investments could occur in the next term and that such
changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements. The
methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable
value or reflective of future fair vatues. Furthermore, while the System believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or
assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different estimate
of fair value at the reporting date.

The significant uncbservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the System'’s long-lived
partnership investments include a combination of cost, discounted cash flow analysis, industry
comparables, and outside appraisals. Significant changes in any inputs used by investment managers in
determining NAVs in isolation would result in a significant changes in fair value measurement.
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The System has made investments in various long-lived partnerships and, in other cases, has entered into
contractual agreements that may limit its ability to initiate redemptions due to notice periods, lockups, and
gates. Details on typical redemption terms by asset class and type of investment are provided below:

Cash

Global public equities:
Commingled funds

Partnerships

Separate accounts

Private debt:
Drawdown partnerships
Partnerships

Mutual bond and equity
funds

Real estate funds

Funds of funds

Private equity:
Drawdown partnerships
Separate accounts
Partnerships

Real estate:
Drawdown partnerships
Separate accounts

Natural resources:
Drawdown partnerships
Commingled funds

Remaining Redemption restrictions
life Redemption terms and terms
N/A Daily None
N/A Daily to triennial with notice Lock-up provisions for up to 3 years;
pericds of 2 to 180 days some investments have a portion
of capital held in side pockets
with no redemptions pemnitted
N/A Monthly to biennial with notice Lock-up provisions for up to 4 years;
periods of 7 to 90 days some investments have a portion
of capital held in side pockets
with no redemptions permitted
N/A Daily with notice periods of Lock-up provisions ranging for up to
1 to 7 days 1 year
1 to 11 years Redemptions not permitted N/A
N/A Redemptions not pemmitted Capital held in side pockets with no
redemptions permitted
N/A Daily to monthly with notice None
periods of 1 to 30 days
N/A Quarterly with notice periods None
of 45 1o 90 days
N/A Monthly to quarterly with notice None
periods of 15 to 185 days
Remaining Redemption restrictions
life Redemption terms and terms
1 to 21 years Redemptions not pemitted N/A
N/A Daily with notice period of 1 day None
N/A Semiannual with notice period A portion of capital ts held in side
of 90 days pockets with no redemptions
permitted
1to 168 years Redemptions not permitted N/A
N/A Daily with notice period of 5days  None
1 to 17 years Redemptions not permitted N/A
N/A Daily with notice period of 1 day None
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Remaining Redemption restrictions
life Redemption terms and terms
Absolute return;
Commingled funds N/A Daily to triennial with notice Lock-up provisions for up to 3 years;
periods of 1 to 122 days some investments have a portion

of capital held in side pockets
with no redemptions permitted

Drawdown partnerships 110 4 years Redemptions not pemitted N/A
Partnerships N7A Quarterly to triennial with Lock-up provisions for up to 5 years;
notice periods of 45 to some investments have a portion
180 days of capital held in side pockets
with no redemptions penmitted
Fixed income:
Commingled funds N/A Weekly to monthly with notice Mone
pericds of 5 to 10 days
Separate accounts N/A Daily to monthly with notice None
periods of 1 to 30 days
Funds in trust NA Daily None

{8) Endowments

The System’s endowment consists of individual donor-restricted endowment funds and board-designated
endowment funds for a variety of purposes plus the following where the assets have been designated for
endowment: pledges receivable, split interest agreements, and other net assets. The endowment includes
both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as
endowments. The net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board
of Trustees to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions.

Ilinois is governed by the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). The Board of
Trustees of UCMC has interpreted UPMIFA as sustaining the preservation of the original gift as of the gift
date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result
of this interpretation, the System classifies as net assets with donor restrictions (a) the original value of gifts
donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent
endowment, and (¢) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of
the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.

The System has beneficial interests in trusts. The System has recorded its share of the principal of the
trusts as net assets with donor restrictions. Distributions from the trusts are recorded within net assets
without restrictions if unrestricted; otherwise, they are classified as net assets with donor restrictions until
appropriated for expenditure. In some instances the historical costs basis of the funds is not available as
the System received the shares in 1929. The fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted
endowment funds may fall below the amount of the original donation as a result of unfavorable market
conditions. There were no such deficiencies at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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The System has the following donor-restricted endowment activities during the years ended June 30, 2019

and 2018 delineated by net asset class:

2019
Without donor With donor
restrictions restrictions Total
Changes in the fair value of endowment investments:
Investment retum;
Endowment yield (interest and dividends) $ 12,282 935 13,217
Net appreciation (realized and unrealized)
on imestments 35,953 3,779 39,732
Investment retum, net of payout 48,235 4,714 52,949
Endowment payout {41,314) (3,900) {45,214)
Net investment retum 6,921 814 7,735
Other changes in endowment investments:
Gifts and pledge payments received in cash 89,042 13 89,055
Other changes 3,001 — 3,001
Total other changes in endowment
investments 92,043 13 92,056
Net change in endowment investments 98,964 827 99,791
Endowment imlvestments at:
Beginning of year 824,607 94,867 919,474
End of year $ 923,571 95,694 1,019,265
Inestments by type of fund:
Doenor-restricted “true”™ endowment:
Historical gift value $ - 17,487 17,487
Appreciation == 78,207 78,207
Board-designated “funds functioning as endowment" 923,571 — 923,571
Total - As abowe $ 923,571 95,604 1,018,265
az2 {Continued)
ATTACHMENT 35

174



#21-033

THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
(Dollars in thousands)

2018
Without donor With donor
restrictions restrictions Total
Changes in the fair value of endowment investments:
Investment retum;
Endowment yield (interest and dividends) $ 10,748 719 11,467
Net appreciation (realized and unrealized)
on imestments 37,964 5,081 43,045
Imvastment return, net of payout 48,712 5,800 54,512
Endowment payout (41,431) {4,819 (46,250)
Net investment retumn 7,281 981 8,262
Other changes in endowment investments:
Gifts and pledge payments received in cash - 1,234 1,234
Other changes 3,333 — 3,333
Total other changes in endowment
investments 3,333 1,234 4,567
Net change in endowment investments 10,614 2,215 12,828
Endowment investments at:
Beginning of year 813,993 92,652 906,645
End of year $ 824,607 94,867 819,474
Investments by type of fund:
Donor-restricted “true” endowment:
Historical gift value $ - 17,487 17,487
Appreciation S 77,380 77,380
Board-designated “funds functioning as endowment" 824,607 — 824,607
Total — As abowe 3 824,607 94 867 919,474

investment and Spending Policies

The System has adopted endowment investment and spending policies that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the
purchasing power of endowment assets. The System expects its endowment funds to provide an average
rate of return of approximately 6% annually. To achieve its long-term rate of return objectives, the System
relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation
(realized and unrealized gains) and current yield (interest and dividends). Actual returns in any given year
may vary from this amount.
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For endowments invested in TRIP, the Board of Trustees of the System has adopted the University's
method to be used to appropriate endowment funds for expenditure, including following the University’s
payout formula. The University utilizes the total return concept in allocating endowment income. In
accordance with the University’s total return objective, between 4.5% and 5.5% of a 12-quarter moving
average of the fair value of endowment investments, lagged by one year, is available each year for
expenditure in the form of endowment payout. The exact payout percentage, which is set each year by the
Board of Trustees with the objective of a 5% average payout over time, was 5.5% for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018. If endowment income received is not sufficient to support the total return
objective, the balance is provided from capital gains. If income received is in excess of the objective, the
balance is reinvested in the endowment.

For endowments invested apart from TRIP, the System calculates a payout of 4% annually on a rolling
24-month average market value. In establishing this policy, the Board considered the expected long term
rate of return on its endowment.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

The components of property, plant, and equipment as of June 30 are as follows:

2019 2018
Land and land rights $ 55,610 55,587
Buildings and improvements 1,847,108 1,824,214
Equipment 717,720 686,998
Construction in progress 30,237 33,295

2,650,675 2,600,094
Less accumulated depreciation (1.082,919) (997,343)

Total property, plant, and equipment, net $ 1,667,756 1,602,751

The System's net property, plant, and equipment cost includes $7,800 and $8,300 at June 30, 2019 and
2018 representing assets under capital leases with the University. The cost of buildings that are jointly used
by the University and the System is allocated based on the lease provisions. In addition, land and land
rights include $18,900 and $20,700 for 2019 and 2018, respectively, which represents the unamortized
portion of initial lease payments made to the University.

A clinic in the Streeterville area of Chicago is under construction. Spending for this clinic during fiscal year
2019 was $3,800 with a total budget of $17,100. Capitalized interest costs in 2019 and 2018 were
approximately $400 and $1,100, respectively. Construction in progress consists of various routine capital
improvements and renovation projects. As of June 30, 2019, the System had total contractual commitments
associated with ongoing capital projects of approximately $18,000.
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{10} Long-Term Debt

The long-term debt of both UCMC and CHHD is issued pursuant to the second Amended and Restated
Master Trust Indenture (MTI} dated as of June 1, 2019, as subsequently amended and supplemented. The
Obligated Group Members are UCMC, CHHD, Ingalls Memorial Hospital, Ingalls Home Care, and Ingalis
Development Foundation. Each series of bonds is collateralized by the unrestricted receivables of the
obligated Group Members and subject to certain restrictions under the MTI.

Effective June 28, 2019, the CHHD Obligated Group was combined with the UCMC Obligated Group, and
became subject to the second Amended and Restated Master Trust Indenture (MTi) dated as of June 1,
2019, as subsequently amended and supplemented.

Long-term debt at June 30, 2019 and 2018 consists of the following:

Fiscal year
maturity Intorest rate 2019 2018
University of Chicage Medical Center:
Fixed rate:
|linois Finance Authority:
Series 2009A and 20058, 20098 parfialy legally
defeased in 2017 2027 50% $ 83,575 94,630
Series 200901 and 200902 (Synthetically fixed rate} 2044 39 70,000 70,000
Series 2009E1 and 2009E2 (Synthetically fixed rate) 2044 39 70,000 70,000
Series 2010A and 20108 (Synthefically fixed rate) 2045 39 92,500 92,500
Series 2011A and 2011B (Synthetically fixed rate} 2045 39 92,500 92,500
Series 2012A 2037 47 60,495 62,595
Series 2015A 2029 5.0 21,895 21,895
Series 2016A 2027 5.0 22,830 22,830
Series 20168 2042 5.0 164,490 164,490
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America (TIAA)
Series 20174 2047 44 30,000 30,000
Unamortized premium 24,18 26,265
Total fived rate 732,404 747,705
Variable rate:
Series 2013A 2020 30 69,801 ,159
Itinois Educational Facilities Authority (IEFA} 2038 1.6 66,029 69,353
Total variable rate 135,830 140,512
Unamortized debt issuance costs {6,030 {6,630
Less current portion of long-term debt (15,208) (14,513)
Total UCMC long-term portion of debt, less current
portion $  846,9% 867,074
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Fiscal year
maturity Interest rate 2019 2018
UCMC Tile Holding Corporation:
Fixed rate:
Brownfield Revitalization 40 - Promissory note A 2024 1.5% § 4,850 4,850
Urban Development Fund XLWI - Promissory note A 2024 1.5 4,850 4,850
Urban Development Fund LI - Promissory note A 2024 1.8 6,500 6,500
Citi NMTC - CQLICI 2032 1.2 3476 3476
Citi NMTC - QLICI 2032 1.2 1,620 1,620
URP QLICY - Loan A 2047 1.0 7334 734
URP QLIC! - Loan B 2047 1.0 2,666 2,666
SCORE QLICI - Loan A 2047 1.0 4176 4,176
SCORE QLICI - Loan B 2047 1.0 1,704 1,704
CNl QLICI - Loan A 2047 1.0 3,455 3,455
CNl QLICI - Loan B 2047 1.0 1,545 1,545
Total UCMC Title Holding Corporation debt $ 42,176 42 176
Community Health and Hespital Division:
Fixed Rate: Series 2013 2043 3.5-5.0% $ 60,145 60,915
Fixed Rate: Series 2017 2026 46 38,300 40,340
Unamortized debt fair vahie adjustment as part of acquisition 4,011 4,367
Unamortized debt issuance costs {880} (933)
Total debt and unamortized premiums (discount) 101,576 104,689
Less current portion of long-term debt (2,890) (2,810)
Total CHHD debt, excluding current portion $ 98,686 101,879
Total notes and bonds payable $ 1,005,95 1,028,452
Less current portion {18,008) (17,323)
Long-term debt, excluding current portion $ 987,858 1,011,120
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Scheduled annual repayments for the next five years and thereafter are as follows at June 30:

Year ending June 30;

2020 3 18,008
2021 19,230
2022 21,510
2023 21,948
2024 21,938
Thereafter 882 012

$ 884,736

(a) UCMC Obligated Group

Under its various credit agreements, UCMC is subject to certain financial covenants, including
maintaining a minimum debt service coverage ratio; maintaining minimum levels of days’ cash on hand:
maintaining debt to capitalization at certain levels; limitations on selling, leasing, or otherwise,

disposing of UCMC property; and certain other nonfinancial covenants.

{7} Letters of Credit

Payment on each of the variable rate demand revenue bonds is also collateralized by a letter of
credit. The letter of credit that supports the Series 2009D bonds expires in June 2022. The letter of
credit that supports the 2009E bonds expires in July 2021. The letters of credit that support the
Series 2010A and Series 2010B bonds expire in November 2020 and July 2021, respectively, and
the letters of credit that support the Series 2011A and Series 2011B bonds expire in May 2021.
Payment of each of the IEFA bonds is collateralized by a letter of credit maturing May 2022. The
letters of credit are subject to certain restrictions, which include financial ratio requirements. The
most restrictive financial ratio is to maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1:25:1,

Included in UCMC's debt is $66,029 of commercial paper revenue notes and $325,000 of variable
rate demand bonds. In the event that UCMC’s remarketing agents are unable to remarket the
bonds, the trustee of the bonds will tender them under the letters of credit. Scheduled repayments
under the letters of credit are between zero and three years, beginning after a grace period of at
least one year from the event, and bear interest rates different from those associated with the
original bond issue. Any bonds tendered are still eligible to be remarketed. Bonds subsequently
remarketed would be subject to the original bond repayment schedules.

{b) UCMC Title Holding Corporation

During 2018, UCMC entered into New Market Tax Credit (NMTC) financing agreements with
various entities for the purposes of financing various projects at UCMC that would benefit the
surrounding community. The NMTC program was established in 2000 by the United States
Congress and is administered by the Department of Treasury to encourage private investment in
qualifying low-income communities. Pursuant to Section 45(D) of the Internal Revenue Code,
UCMC’s NMTC structure consists of an NMTC investor (Investor) who provided qualified equity
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investments to a community development entity (CDE) who in turn provided debt financing to a
separate not for profit tax exempt entity, which is a qualified active low income community business
{QALICB).

In August 2017, UCMC was a lender in the NMTC structure for the construction of a new
emergency department and adult trauma center. Because UCMC has the power to appoint all
board members of UCMC Title Holding Corporation Il NFP, the QALICB has been consolidated in
the financial statements. The Investor made qualifying equity investments into various CDE funds,
including UCMC Trauma Center NMTC Investment Fund, LLC (the CDE Funds), which in turn
provided debt financing of $20,880 to UCMC Title Holding Corporation to fund qualified
construction costs and equipment, as required under the terms of the agreement. Management
anticipates that the NMTC structure will stay in effect through July 2025 when the NMTC tax
compliance period expires. At that time, management believes the Investor will exercise its Put
Option in the Put and Call Agreement, allowing UCMC to acquire a 100% equity interest in the
investment fund. If the Put Option is not exercised, UCMC has the right to call for the purchase of a
100% equity interest in the investment fund at a fair market value. In either case, once the option is
exercised, UCMC’s loan to the investment fund would be extinguished, the investment fund and the
CDE Funds would be dissolved, and the loans from the CDE Funds to UCMC Title Holding
Corporation || NFP would be extinguished.

{c) Community Health and Hospital Division

(i} Recent Financing Activity

In December 2017, CHHD issued variable rate bonds, Series 2017, in the amount of $40,340. The
Series 2017 bonds were initially sold to JPMorgan Chase Bank. In 2019, the Series 2017 bonds
were restructured and now bear interest at a fixed rate untit December 28, 2026 when they are
subject to mandatory redemption.

{d) Lines of Credit

As of June 30, 2019, UCMC has a $50,000 line of credit from a commercial bank. As of June 30, 2019
and 2018, no amount was outstanding under this line. On September 24, 2019, UCMC renewed the
line of credit with an expiration date of September 25, 2020 and the line of credit was increased to
$100,000.
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(i) Other Debt Related ltems

Scheduled principal repayments on long-term debt based on the variable rate demand notes being
put back to the System and a corresponding draw being made on the underlying credit facility, if
available, are as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2020 3 18,098
2021 158,036
2022 174,847
2023 120,834
2024 21,938
Thereafter 490,883

$ 984,736

The System paid interest, net of capitalized interest, of approximately $37,700 and $37,000 in 2019
and 2018, respectively.

{11} Derivative Instruments

The System has interest rate related derivative instruments to manage its exposure on debt instruments.
By using derivative financial instruments to manage the risk of changes in interest rates, the System
exposes itself to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under
the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the
counterparty owes the System, which creates credit risk for the System. When the fair value of a derivative
contract is negative, the System owes the counterparty, and therefore, it does not possess credit risk;
however, the System is required to post collateral to the counterparty when certain thresholds as defined in
the derivative agreements are met. Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument
that results from a change in interest rates. The market risk associated with interest rate changes is
managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may
be undertaken. System management also mitigates risk through periodic reviews of their derivative
positions in the context of their total blended cost of capital.

The System is required to post collateral under the specific terms and conditions for the various interest
rate swap agreements as described below. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, $13,750 and $0 was held as
collateral, respectively, and was recorded in current portion of investments limited to use and included in
Note 7 as Funds in Trust for disclosure. Collateral postings are primarily driven by the value of the swap as
measured at the reset date. Collateral requirements increase if credit ratings were to be downgraded.
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The fair value of each swap is the estimated amount UCMC would receive or pay to terminate the swap
agreement at the reporting date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness
of the swap counterparties. The fair value is included in interest rate swap liability on the consolidated
balance sheets, while the change in fair value is recorded in net assets without donor restrictions for the
effective portion of the change and in nonoperating gains and losses for the ineffective portion of the
change

UCMC Interest Rate Swap Agreement

In August 2006, UCMC entered into a forward starting swap transaction against contemplated variable rate
borrowing for the Center for Care and Discovery. This is a cash flow hedge against interest on the variable
rate debt. The fair value of these swap agreements is the estimated amount that UCMC would have to pay
or receive to terminate the agreements as of the consolidated balance sheet date, taking into account
current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterparty. The swap values are
based on the London Interbank Rate (LIBOR). The inputs to the fair value estimate are considered Level 2
in the fair value hierarchy.

In July 2011, UCMC novated the original swap agreement to divide the original notional amount in two
equal parts between financial institutions. The fair value of the terminated portion of the hedge on the date
of the novation was recorded in net assets in the amount of $35,123 and is being amortized into interest
expense over the life of the related debt (approximately $1,726 of amortization in 2019 and 2018),
commencing on February 23, 2013, the date the Center for Care and Discovery was placed into service.
The new agreement is being accounted for as a hedge. The combined notional amount of the swap is
$326,000 with an effective start date of August 2011. Management has determined that the interest rate
swaps are effective, and have qualified for hedge accounting. The fair value of the UCMC swap agreement
liabilities was $127,068 and $97,299 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and has been included in
other long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The net effective portion of
the change in fair value on the UCMC swap agreements of $(29,233) and $24,635 in 2019 and 2018,
respectively, has been included in the change in net assets without donor restrictions in the accompanying
2019 and 2018 consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without donor restriction.
Management has recognized ineffectiveness of approximately $1,190 in 2019 and an ineffectiveness of
$(62) in 2018 in nonoperating gains and losses. This movement reflects the spread between tax-exempt
interest rates and LIBOR during the period. The effective portion of these swaps is included in other
changes in unrestricted net assets. The interest rate swaps terminate on February 1, 2044. Cash
settlement payments related to the swaps are recorded in interest expense.
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The following summarizes the general terms of each of UCMC’s swap agreements:

Assoclated Current
Effective date debt series Original ferm_ notional amount UCMC pays UCMC receives
August 9, 2011 2009 D/E, 2010
A/B, 2011 A/B 32.5Years § 162,500,000 3.89% 68% of LIBOR
August 9, 2011 2009 D/E, 2010
A/B, 2011 A/B 32.5 Years 162,500,000 3.97% 68% of LIBOR

CHHD Swap Agreement

CHHD entered into an interest rate swap agreement on June 28, 2004 to lock in long-term fixed rates on
the Series 2004 variable-rate debt issuance, with a notional amount of $40,125 and a maturity date of
May 135, 2034. This agreement was amended on March 1, 2013. Under the amended agreement, the
notional amount and maturity did not change, and CHHD receives, on a monthly basis, 67% of one-month
LIBOR pius 47.5 basis points and makes payments on a monthly basis, an annualized fixed rate of 4.61%.
The swap is not designated as a hedging instrument, and therefore, the change in fair value of the 2004
interest rate swap agreement of $(2,003) and $2,356 in 2019 and 2018, respectively, was recognized as a
component of nonoperating gains in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and changes
in net assets without donor restriction. The fair value of the Series 2004 interest rate swap agreement
liability of $9,118 and $7,115 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, is included as a component of other
long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The differential to be paid or received
under the Series 2004 interest rate swap agreement is recognized monthly and has been included as a
component of interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and changes in
net assets without donor restriction.

A summary of outstanding positions under the interest rate swap agreements for CHHD at June 30, 2019 is as
follows:

Notional
Series amount Maturity date Rate received Rate paid
2004 Interest rate swap
Agreement: $ 40,125 May 15, 2034 % of LIBOR * Fixed 4.61%

* Rate received is 67% of one-month LIBOR plus 47.5 basis points.
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{12) Commitments
Leases

The System leases office space and equipment under leases that are classified as operating leases. Future
minimum payments required under noncancelable leases as of June 30 are as follows:

Operating Capital

2020 $ 6,184 1,987
2021 6,569 1,547
2022 6,393 1,458
2023 6,171 1,319
2024 and thereafter 33,583 13,573
$ 58,800 19,894

Less amount representing interest 7,984

Present value of net minimum capital lease
payments $ 11,910

The amount of total assets capitalized under these leases at both June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 is
$13,600 and $11,300 with related accumulated depreciation of $2,400 and $1,200, respectively. Rental
expense was approximately $10,900 and $9,400 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

{13) Insurance
Professional and General Liability

The System maintains separate seif-insurance programs for UCMC and CHHD. UCMC is included under
certain of the University's insurance programs. Since 1977, UCMC, in conjunction with the University, has
maintained a self-insurance program for its medical malpractice liability. This program is supplemented with
commercial excess insurance above the University's seif-insurance retention, which for the years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $5,000 per claim and unlimited in the aggregate. Claims in excess of $5,000
are subject to an additional self-insurance retention limited to $12,500 per claim and $22,500 in aggregate.
There are no assurances that the University will be able to renew existing policies or procure coverage on
similar terms in the future.

CHHD maintains a self-insurance program for professional and general liability. Coverage from commercial
insurance carriers is maintained for claims in excess of self-insured retentions at various levels by policy
year. CHHD established a trust fund with an independent trustee for the administration of assets funded
under the malpractice and general liability self-insurance program.

The System has engaged professional consultants for calculating an estimated liability for medical

malpractice self-insurance and is actuarially determined based upon estimated claim reserves and various
assumptions, and represents the estimated present value of self-insurance claims that will be settled in the

42 {Continued)
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future. It considers anticipated payout patterns, as well as interest to be eamed on available assets prior to
payment. The discount rate used to value the self-insurance liability is a rate commensurate with the
duration of anticipated payments.

A comparison of the estimated liability for incurred malpractice claims (filed and not filed) and assets
available for claims for the combined University and UCMC self-insurance program as of June 30, 2019
and 2018 is presented below:

2019 2018
Actuarial present value of self-insurance liability for medical
malpractice $ 192,018 201,440
Total assets available for claims 260,084 269,378

If the present-value method were not used, the ultimate liability for medical malpractice self-insurance
claims would be approximately $28,651 higher at June 30, 2019. The interest rate assumed in determining
the present value was 3.5% and 4% for 2019 and 2018, respectively. UCMC has recorded its pro-rata
share of the malpractice self-insurance liability in the amount of $86,408 and $90,648 at June 30, 2019 and
June 30, 2018, respectively, with an offsetting receivable from the malpractice trust to cover any related
claims, The malpractice self-insurance frust assets consist primarily of funds held in TRIP.

UCMC recognizes as malpractice expense its negotiated pro-rata share of the actuarially determined
normal contribution, with gains and losses amortized over five years, with no retroactive adjustments, as
provided in the operating agreement. For fiscal year 2020, UCMC's expense is estimated to be
approximately $10,000 related to malpractice insurance.

Cn April 30, 2019, CHHD entered into a loss portfotio transfer for the Ingalls Memorial Hospital medical
malpractice program by obtaining an occurrence-based policy for claims through June 30, 2018 through a
payment of $47,311 to an unrelated insurance company. The loss portfolio transferred was structured
through Ingalls Captive Insurance entity for purposes of additional insurance protection and risk
management. AtJune 30, 2019, there was no additional liability calculated by the programs actuaries that
would require additional reserves by CHHD or the captive. Accruals for CHHD professional and general
liabilities are recorded on an undiscounted basis.

Pension Plans
Active Plans

A majority of UCMC's personne! participate in the University’s defined benefit and contribution pension
plans, which are considered multi-employer pension plans. Under the defined benefit portion of this plan,
benefits are based on years of service and the employee's compensation for the five highest paid
consecutive years within the last ten years of employment. UCMC and the University make annual
contributions to this portion of the plan at a rate necessary to maintain plan funding based on the guidelines
set forth by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, on an actuarially determined basis.
UCMC recognizes its share of net periodic pension cost as expense and any difference in the contribution
amount as a transfer of unrestricted net assets. The adjustment to net assets was $(14,787) and $(7,853)

43 (Continued)
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for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. No contributions were made in the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018. UCMC expects to make contributions not to exceed $3,200 for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2020.

Effective January 1, 2017, the 401(a) defined benefit pension plan was frozen for UCMC employees
participating in the plan and was replaced with an enhanced defined contribution plan. Under the defined
contribution portion of the plan, UCMC and plan participants make contributions that accrue to the benefit
of the participants at retirement. UCMC'’s contributions, which are based on a percentage of each covered
employee’s salary, totaled approximately $23,800 and $22,300 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

UCMC's expense related the multiemployer University's defined benefit plans included in the University's
consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Contribution of UCMC

Plan name EIN 2019 2018
University of Chicago Retirement Income
Plan for Employees 36-2177139-002 $ — —_
University of Chicago Pension Plan for
Staff Employees 36-2177139-003 e —
$ —_ —

The benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status for the University's defined benefit plan
included in the University's consolidated financial statements as of June 30 are shown below.

2019 2018
Projected benefit obligation $ 946,250 921,794
Fair value of plan assets 763,789 745,768
Deficit of plan assets over benefit obligation $ (182,461) (176,026)

The weighted average assumptions used in the accounting for the plan are shown below.

2019 2018
Discount rate 36% 42 %
Expected retum on plan assets 6.3 6.5
Rate of compensation increase 3.5 3.5
44 {Continued)
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The weighted average asset allocation for the plan is as follows:

2019 2018
Domestic equities 23 % 24 %
Intemational equity 27 26
Fixed income S50 50
100 % 100 %

The pension and other postretirement benefit obligation considers anticipated payout patterns as well as
investment retums on available assets prior to payment. The discount rate used to value the pension and
other postretirement benefit obligation is a risk-adjusted rate commensurate with the duration of anticipated
payments. These inputs to the fair value estimate are considered Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Expected future benefit payments excluding plan expenses are as follows:

Fiscal year:
2020 3 62,238
2021 49,753
2022 50,367
2023 49,532
2024 49,772
2025-2029 271,125

UCMC and CHHD also maintain additional defined contribution retirement plans for employees. The
System’s pension expense under these distinct defined contribution retirement plans for UCMC was $7,600
and $7,100 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

CHHD expense under these distinct defined contribution retirement plans was $2,800 and $3,000 for the
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Curtailed and Frozen Plan

In June 2002, UCMC assumed sponsorship of the Louis A. Weiss Memorial Hospital Pension Plan
{Employer Identification Number 36-3488183, Plan Number 003), which covers employees of a former
affiliate. Participation and benefit accruals are frozen. All benefit accruals are fully vested.

45 {Continued)
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Components of net periodic pension cost and other amounts recognized in unrestricted net assets include
the following:

Year ended June 30

2019 2018
Net periodic pension cost:
Senvice cost $ — —
Net periodic pension cost $ — —
Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized
in unrestricted net assets:
Interest cost $ 1,892 2,187
Expected retumn on plan assets (2.677) (3,001)
Amortization of unrecognized net actuarial loss 949 1,097
Liability for pension benefits — (8,362)
Total recognized in net periodic pension cost and
unrestricted net assets $ 164 8,845

The following table sets forth additional required pension disclosure information for this plan:

Year ended June 30

2019 2018
Changes in projected benefit obligation:
Benetfit cbligation at beginning of year $ 46,955 61,105
Interest cost 1,892 2,187
Net actuarial loss (gain) 6,042 (3,965)
Settlements o (8,769)
Benefits paid (3,643) (3,603)
51,246 46,955
Changes in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 45,017 50,522
Actual return on plan assets 2,247 867
Employer contribution 1,500 6,000
Settlements —_ (8,769)
Benefits paid {3,643) (3,603)
45,121 45 017
Funded status at end of year $ (6,125) (1,938)
46 {Continued)
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Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets are included in other noncurrent liabilities.

Accumulated plan benefits equal projected plan benefits. Assumptions used in the accounting for the net

periodic pension cost were as follows:

2019 2018
Discount rate 3.5% 4.2 %
Expected retum on plan assets 6.0 6.0
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A
Weighted average asset allocations for plan assets are as follows:
2019 2018
Cash 2% 1%
Fixed income 66 61
Domestic equities 21 28
Intermnational equities 11 10
100 % 100 %

All plan assets are valued using Level 1 inputs in 2019 and 2018. The target asset allocation is 60%
equities and 40% fixed income. The expected return on plan assets is based on historical investment

returns for similar investment portfolios.

UCMC expects to make contributions of $3,000 to the plan in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

Expected future benefit payments are as follows:

Fiscal year:
2020 3 3,659
2021 3,767
2022 3,684
2023 3,606
2024 3,527
2025-2029 16,162
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{15) Functional Expenses
Total operating expenses by function are as follows for the years ended June 30:

2019
Healthcare Fund
sorvices Admin raising Total 2018
Salaries, wages, and benefits $ 887,053 103,448 1,897 992,398 943,525
Supplies and other 675,896 89,515 1,631 767,042 679,541
Physician senices 271,828 11,314 - 283,142 280,779
Insurance 25,682 3,300 - 28,982 46,690
Interest 38,079 6,377 —_— 44 456 43,900
Medicaid provider tax 49 517 17,123 —_— 66,640 59,773
Depreciation and amortization 112,468 15,730 — 128,188 125,031
Total $ 2,080,523 246,807 3,528 2,310,858 2,179,239
e ] S S

(16) Contingencies

{a) Litigation
The System is subject to various legal proceedings and claims that are incidental to its normal business
activities. In the opinion of the System, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will
not materially affect the consolidated operations or net assets of the System.

{b) Regulatory Investigation and Other
The U.S. Department of Justice and other federal agencies routinely conduct regulatory investigations
and compliance audits of healthcare providers. The System is subject to these regulatory efforts.
Additionally, the laws and regulations goveming the Medicare, Medicaid, and other government
healthcare programs are extremely complex and subject to interpretation, making compliance an
ongoing challenge for the System and other healthcare organizations. Recently, the federal government
has increased its enforcement activity, including audits and investigations related to billing practices,
clinical documentation, and related matters. The System maintains a system wide compliance program
and conducts audits and other activities to identify potential compliance issues, including overpayments
by governmental payors. Compliance reviews may result in liabilities to government healthcare program
which could have an adverse impact on the System's net patient service revenue

{¢) Nursing Strike
From September 20, 2019 to September 24, 2019, nurses of the System that were members of the
National Nurses Union went on strike. The strike resulted in additional costs being incurred, which
included hiring temporary contracted nurses, combined with a loss of patient volume during the time
period of the strike. While these nurses subsequently returned to work on September 25, 2019, no
formal contract has been agreed to as of the reporting date. While the financial impact of the nursing
strike and ongoing negotiations has not been fully estimated, management does not believe the impact
will materially affect the consolidated operations or net assets of the Company over the long term.

48
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Economic Feasibility

Attachment 36

Economic Feasibility

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements.

The Project will be financed through cash on hand and securities and a lease. Letters
attesting to the reasonableness

B. Conditions of Debt Financing.

The Project is being paid for through cash and securities and therefore, these criteria do not

apply.

of the

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs.

Section 1V - Size of Project

University of Chicago Medical Center
Orland Park Expansion

financing arrangements

#21-033

are attached.

N Cron P | Comtg OS] o
VIEW. B
C&_ (A’C} 4 (-BIE) "E‘Eﬂ.‘ |

Outpatient Clinics 992 18 $3,048,715 $339, $3,388,41*
Infusion Therapy 0 0

Radiation Oncology 0

Diagnostic Imaging 3,220 20 105,572 1,2i0,600 51,316,172
Total Reviewable 4,212 19¢ $3,154,284 1,550,300 $4,704,58¢
Contingencies 521 $3 315428 160,499 $475.92
Grand Total Reviewabld §$295 11,772 31 4,212 $3,469,714 $1,710,799 $5,180,512
Non-Reviewable

Administrative 3268 81 2,156 29 126 $577.6 $102,70d $680,39¢
Public $268 ¥l 1,221 55 1,412 $321,16 $378,343 $705,.508
Staff Support $268 1.537 20 0 $411.8 L1 $411,83¢
Building Support 5268 § 664 21 0 $177,91 b 11 $177.9i%
Space to be leased $0 0 0 0

Parking Deck $0 0 0 0

Total Non-Reviewable $268 3318 5,577 31Y 1,539 $1,494,61 $481,043 §1,975,658
Contingencies $27 s 149,461 42,635 $192.097
GrandTotal Non-Revie $295 s 5,577 31 1,539 1,644,076 523,678 $2,167,75%
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Note: Building gross square footage is used.

We believe the Project meets all state standards for project costs except construction and
modernization. A letter from the architect explaining these differences is attached.

D. Project Operating Costs

2024
Operating Costs $6,159,018
PET, MRI & Exam Visits 24,539
Annual Operating Cost Per
Unit $251
2021 Dollars

E. Total Effect of Project on Capital Costs
Annual Project Depreciation $1,816,682

Equivalent Patient Days 830,993
Capital Cost per Equiv. Pat.
Day $2.19

UCMC Capital Cost FY18 $18,530,767

ATTACHMENT 36
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Section XI, Safety Net Impact Statement

Attachment 37

#21-033

Since the proposed Project is a non-substantive project, the safety net impact statement is not
applicable. Nevertheless, for informational purposes, a copy of UCMC’s 2020 Community
Benefit Report is included in Attachment 38.

3409307
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Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) FY18 FY19 FY20
Inpatient 363 695 940
Outpatient 12,050 10,535 21,192
Total 12,413 11,230 22,132
Charity (cost in dollars)
Inpatient $9,410,323 $12,182,929 $17,320,551
QOutpatient $8,826,675 $11,497.252 $24,157,208
Total $18,236,998 $23,680,181 $41,477,759
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) FY18 FY19 FY20
Inpatient 10,993 12,278 11,635
QOutpatient 137,908 152,071 147,940
Total 148,901 164,349 159,576
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient $247,072,000 $346,893,000 $334,038,769
Outpatient $93,329,000 $110,369,000 $88,188,976
Total $340,401,000 $457,262,000 $422,227,745
ATTACHMENT 37
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Charity Care Information
Attachment 38

Shown below is the amount of charity care provided by UCMC

CHARITY CARE
FY18 FY19 FY20
Net Patient Revenue $2,183,011,000 | $2,121,969,000 | $2,049,957,000
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $94,227,662 | $138,262,328 | $181,577,629
Cost of Charity Care $18,236,998 $23,680,181 $41,477,75%
Ratio of Charity Care Cost to Net Patient Rev. 0.84% 1.12% 2.02%

ATTACHMENT 38
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AT THE FOREFRONT
OF HEALTH EQUITY

2020 Community Benefit Report Highlights
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To you, our community.

Through community benefit programs, partnerships and

other investments, the University of Chicago Medicine, with
its Urban Health initiative and its community and healthcare

partners, seek to improve health equity for residents of

Chicago’s South Side. We want to make sure that everyone

is able to live their most healthful life.

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic highlighted stark health
disparities. Our Black and Brown communities bore the
heaviest burden of the COVID-19 pandemic, through

iliness, loss of life and economic hardship. These disparities

demonstrate how racism is a public health crisis.

Throughout the pandemic, the University of Chicago
Medicine has been focused on providing world-class care
to our patients and our community and working with our
Community Advisory Council and community partners to
continue to advance health equity.

We invite you to learn about our community investment
and how we partner with the community to respond to
crisis, deal with community health priorities and work to
build a healthier South Side.

Kenneth Tom Brenda

S. Polonsky, MD
Dean and Executive
Vice President for
Medical Affairs

TO VIEW THE FULL REPORT, VISIT

Jackiewicz
President, University
of Chicago Medical
Center

Battle, RN, BSN, MBA
Senior Vice President
for Community Health
Transformation and
Chief Diversity, Equity
and Inclusion Officer

Community.UChicagoMedicine.org/2020

COVER: O5CAR SANCHEZ PHOTO

Fiscal 2020 Investment in th#ao%%a

$567.1 Million

Increase of 9.2% over fiscal 2019

This investment included supporting patients who rely on
Medicare or Medicaid or who were not able to pay for care.
It also included teaching and training future healthcare
professionals, funding medical research and donating to
community groups for health and wellness programs.

Total Investment: Fiscal 2020

$4.3M |7$658,000

$746,000

$513.4M

Bl Uncompensated care

B $405.6M Medicaid and Medicare program losses
B $66.3M Unrecoverable patient debt
£ $41.5M Medicaid program losses

Bl $458M Medical research
B $4.3M Uncategorized community benefits
0 $658,000 Cash/in kind

0 $746,000 Medical education

TO VIEW THE FULL REPORT, VISIT
Community.UChicagoMedicine.org/2020

ATTACHMENT
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HEALTH PRIORITIES

#21-033

» Prevent and manage chronic diseases (asthma, diabetes)

» Build trauma resiliency (violence recovery, mental health)

» Reduce inequities caused by social determinants of health
(access to care, food insecurities, employment)

HEALTH EQUITY

Life expectancy
It is undeniable: on Chicago’s

Racism is a public EOUTh Sidzih
health crisis. nglewood is

only 60 years old.
UChicago Medicine is Just 9 miles north

In 2020, UChicago Medicine provided important programs,

working within the medical in Streeterville, events* and resources to support community health priorities:
center, in the community and the average life
across the city to end health expectancy is 90.
disparities and promote & ¥ » 830 in-person and virtual visits made to 279 children

= . Source. and families by community health workers to provide
health equity, including: :

auity g City Heaith Dashboard asthma education (via South Side Pediatric Asthma

* In June 2020, UChicago Center (SSPAC))

Medicine and more than

40 healthcare organizations took a health equity
pledge to overcome health disparities in minority
communities. The open letter was published in the
Chicago Sun-Times and Chicago Tribune.

+ UChicago Medicine announced a system-wide
Equity Plan to identify and address inequities in the
workforce, work climate, healthcare delivery and
services, and community.

» Along with St. Bernard Hospital and Advocate Trinity
Hospital, UChicago Medicine launched the South
Side Health Transformation Project to bring together
federally qualified health centers (FQHCs), faith
leaders, community organizations, elected officials
and residents to secure state funding and support for
a new South Side health transformation plan. Nearly
500 people have joined the effort.

In fiscal 2020, the Diversity, Inclusion and Equity
Office provided 7,418 hours of cultural competence
training to staff — an increase of 121 percent over
the prior year.

= 119 attendees for SSPAC’s virtual asthma education summit

ABETES
Fat=} e

* 698 attendees for 215 fitness sessions for South Side Fit
program

* 94 attendees for 9 workshops for Diabetes Education &
Empowerment Program (DEEP™)

* 1,500 patients and 586 families served by the Violence
Recovery Program, a part of the Block Hassenfeld Casdin
(BHC) Collaborative for Family Resilience

» Violence prevention summit hosted by Southland RISE
(Resilience Initiative to Strengthen and Empower), a
collaboration with Advocate Health Care inspired by
U.S. Senator Dick Durbin’s Chicago HEAL (Hospital
Engagement, Action and Leadership) program

* $100,000 awarded to 14 grassroots organizations by
Southland RISE for summer violence prevention programs

Yincludes virtual and in-person events prior to pandemic

TO VIEW THE FULL REPORT, VISIT
Community.UChicagoMedicine.org/2020
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COVID-19 RESPONSE

Meeting the community’s needs
during the pandemic
Since the pandemic started, UChicago Medicine has

worked with its partners to quickly identify and respond
to the community’s needs, providing such resources as:

* PPE donations
* Food pantry

= Emergency relief funding
* Vaccine distribution and

+ COVID-19 testing information
= Patient contact tracing « COVID-12 educational
* Phase 3 vaccine trials resources

Community Health
Workers: Healthcare
ambassadors to
our South Side
neighborhoods
Community health
workers (CHWS)
play an important
role in providing
care and health-
related education to
patients, often in their
homes. In addition
to asthma education
offered through the
South Side Pediatric
Asthma Center, CHWs
also provided 124
families with food,
transportation and
supplies in response to
the pandemic.

WORKFORCE AND COMMUNITY INV#QEﬁT—O 3 3

We can reduce inequities by
increasing employment opportunities
for our South Side residents

$22 mI”IOH 85% 90-day retention rate

of South Side hires
funds granted for

local hiring since 2019, 24% of total workforce

leading to 76 local hires o livei the UChicago
(minimum 2-to 5_year’ Medicine service area

living wage jobs)

We value local
and diverse
partnerships

for purchasing
and construction
projects

$20.8 million

contracts awarded
and paid to certified
minority and women-
owned firms

$4.3 million

wages to minority and
female construction
workers

$1.9 million

wadges earned by 208
Chicago residents

working on UChicago
Medicine construction

Hiring local talent:
UChicago Medicine
hires local talent like
Dwayne Johnson to
help build its workforce

projects

and strengthen

communities. A South R
Community

Shore resident, Johnson . i
is a founding team benefit service

member of the Violence area by ZIP code

Recovery Program, the 60609 60628
only hospital-based

- L P 60615 60636

violence intervention
program in Chicago 60617 60637
serving adults and 60619 60643
children. 60620 60649
60621 60653

TO VIEW THE FULL REPORT, VISIT
Community.UChicagoMedicine.org/2020
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AT THE FOREFRONT Thomas Jackiewicz MC 1000, §-115
President 5841 South Maryland Avenue

4 UChicago Chicago, llinois 60637-1470

phone (173) 702-8908

MediCine Jox (773) 702-1897

QOctober 29, 2021
Debra Savage, Chair
Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson, 2™ Floor
Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re:  University of Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC”, the “Medical Center”),
UCMC Medical Office Building Completion of Shell Space (the “Project”)
Application for Permit

Dear Chairperson Savage:

We are pleased to submit our application to the Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review
Board (“IHFSRB” or the “Review Board”) for approval to build out the remaining shell space in a
medical office building owned by the University of Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC” or the “Medical
Center”) in Orland Park.

The Medical Center opened its Orland Park medical office building (“Orland Park MOB”’) in
December 2016, bringing specialized medicine to a community setting for patients seeking care closer to
home. In our original application to the Review Board, we proposed shell space on the fourth floor of the
MOB with a projection for robust growth in demand in Planning Area A-04.

The purpose of the Project is to expand access to multi-specialty outpatient care, high-quality
cancer screening, and diagnostic imaging to meet the demand we anticipated and to continue to address
the disparate distribution of needed health care resources in the communities that UCMC serves. For
FY21, 51% of patient care is outpatient care at UCMC, which has grown steadily over time. From
October 2018, to September 2021, monthly clinic visits at the Orland Park MOB have gone up
80%. During the same period, the average time from making an appointment to coming in for the clinic
visit for new patients has increased 20%.

The COVID-19 crisis has also accelerated ongoing changes in traditional care delivery models.
Shifts from hospital sites, both because of advances in medical technology and patients seeking care
closer to home, have been occurring for many years, but with acute care resources strained by the public
health crisis, and patients hesitant to enter hospitals for elective care, the need for high quality ambulatory
care has only become more apparent.

With this Project, UCMC seeks to maximize the availability of patient care within its existing
ambulatory footprint, keeping patient safety, patient experience, and patient convenience foremost in
mind.

UCMC’s Existing Services

The Orland Park MOB offers primary care services and specialty care for people across three key
dimensions of outpatient care — initial diagnosis, episodic and procedural care, and chronic disease
management — in a state-of-the-art outpatient center. The Orland Park MOB more recently became a
destination for screening mammography, alongside bone density testing and a broad spectrum of
women’s health care.

AT THE FOREFRONT OF MEDICINE®
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Debra Savage, Chair

Orland Park MOB Completion Project
October 29, 2021

Page 2

UCMC's team of clinicians at the Orland Park MOB flex academic expertise in a
community setting, using an integrated approach across specialty areas that include cancer,
digestive diseases, heart and vascular, neurology, orthopaedics, otolaryngology (ENT), and
women’s health. At Orland Park, UCMC provides expertise and access, offering extended daytime
and weekend hours, same-day appointments, and on-site pharmacy, laboratory and imaging
services, all 3o its patients can receive necessary medical care without a commute.

Since the onset of the COVID-19 crisis, UCMC has been focused on providing world-class
care to our patients and the communities we serve. With a commitment to excellence and
innovation, we responded to community needs, collaborating with partners and our Community
Advisory Council to provide such needed resources as COVID-19 testing, contact tracing,
educational resources, PPE and more. UCMC set up a drive-thru COVID-19 testing site in the
parking lot of the Orland Park MOB location and has provided 29,673 tests at this location alone
since May 2020.

Description of Current Project

On August 27, 2014, the Medical Center received Permit #14-023 from the Review Board
to move forward with the construction of a four-story ambulatory medical office building in
downtown Orland Park. The fourth floor was reserved as shell space. On June 4, 2019, UCMC
received Permit #19-013 from the Review Board to move forward with a Mammography Services
Joint Venture to develop and jointly operate a dedicated Mammography Suite with Solis
Mammography in a portion of this shell space on the fourth floor.

UCMC now secks authority from the Review Board to build out the remainder of this shell
space on the fourth floor, to reconfigure existing space on the second and third floors of the Orland
Park medical office building, and to expand diagnostic imaging (the “Project”™).

Specifically, UCMC proposes to complete the build out of the fourth floor of the Orland
Park MOB with 17 new multi-specialty exams rooms, a procedure suite with two rooms equipped
for GI endoscopy, colonoscopy’ and other similar office-based procedures, and dedicated space for
cardiac and vascular imaging. Additionally, UCMC proposes to expand diagnostic imaging with
one (1) additional MRI and one (1) PET scan in the existing diagnostic imaging suite on the second
floor.

Based on current and planned provider FTEs, the new space on the 4* floor will result in

an approximately 20% increase in clinical capacity exams in the building. The Project is
expected to be complete at the end of the second quarter of calendar year 2023 .

Need to Address Health Disparities and the Shifting Paradigm of Qutpatient Care

1 The Project is an extension of UCMC's commitment to community service and to improve access to services in which our
own community has been historically underserved. Qur 20168 community needs heaith assessment identified cancer
screening as a priority for the patients that we serve. The expansion of colon and bowel cancer screening and diagnostics
throughout Chicago is a key priority for UCMC.

39171557.2
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Orland Park MOB Completion Project
October 29, 2021
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Programmatically, this Project champions the areas in which UCMC is already serving its
community. As one salient example, the expansion of imaging and procedural services to increase
access to such needed care is consistent with UCMC’s commitment to reduce disparities of health
outcomes in cancer and lower rates of cancer screening. Differential access to specialists, health
care technology and affiliation with academic medical centers may attribute to this digparity. An
inequitable distribution of specially trained providers exists, with a high concentration in Chicago
Metro area, but insufficient access in surrcunding communities and suburbs. UCMC’s addition of
colorectal cancer screening and diagnosis is one example of how expansion of its existing MOB
addresses this problem by providing access to an academic medical center environment, specialized
physicians, and state-of-the-art technology.2 UCMC seeks to addressing markers of health equity
such as differing disease burdens, health risks, and utilization behaviors in all of the communities
it serves.

Updating the existing care delivery model is essential to help cope with levels of demand
that had been rising for many years before the COVID-19 crisis. In the US, while inpatient stays
steadily declined from 2005 through 20135, outpatient visits rose. UCMC’s monthly clinic visits at
Orland Park MOB have grown 80% from October 2018 through September 2021. A paradigm shift
is also vital to help quickly clear the backlog of patients whose care may have been postponed
because of the pandemic. UCMC recognizes a unique opportunity to use the momentum for change
created by the current crisis to accelerate the transformation of outpatient care.?

UCMC remains one of the largest Medicaid providers in the State of Illinois. Additionally,
UCMC has robust financial assistance and charity care policies, which are available to patients on
the same terms at its Orland Park MOB.

We are pleased to submit our application for completion of UCMC’s existing Orland Park
MOB to the Review Board and look forward to working with you to continue to bring exceptional
care to the patients in the communities we serve.

Very truly yours,

2 Colorectal cancer is the second leading cause of cancer deaths in the United States.” The U.S. Preventive Services Task
Force recommends that all adults ages 45 to 75 get scresned for the disease.” But in 2015, only about 82% of adults in the
United States were screened according to the guidelines. In lllinois, the problem is even more pronounced. The state is in
the highest quartile for incidence rates of colorectal cancer in the Nation,"and the lowest quartile for screening rates. Within
the state, Cook County falis in the lowest quartile for screening rates by county,” and screening rates are particularly low
among racial and ethnic minorities. htips.//www.cancer.org/content/dam/cancer-org/rescarch/cancer-facts-and-statistics/colorectal-
cancer-facts-and-figures/colorectal-cancer-facts-and-figures-2017-2019.pdf

3 A Post Covid Paradign Shift in Outpatient Care, Homer, Gooch, and Labno (May 2020}
https/Awww.beg.com/publications/2020/paradigm-shift-in-outpatient-care-post-covid
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